
 

 

 

Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 

Date/Time:  Tuesday, April 8, 2014 @ 7:00 P.M. 

Location:  Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building (2nd floor) 

   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 

Members: Ron Christianson, Michael Engelberger, Eric Hohol, Greg Jenson, David 

Kneebone, Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Tricia Suess, Tim 

Swadley, Sonny Swangstu, vacant 

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: NINE (9) MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM. The Council 

may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the meeting, please notify 

the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email mhougan@ci.stoughton.wi.us. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  

 

 Kettle Park West update 

 

2. Minutes and Reports: Public Safety 02-26-2014, Opera House 02-04-2014, Risk Management 

01-13-2014, Library Board 02-17-2014 

 

3. Public Comment 

 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

4. Request from Council President Hohol to convene into the Committee of the Whole for the  

 purpose of making a recommendation regarding selection of the company to 

perform the Economic and Fiscal Impact Analysis relating to the proposed Kettle Park West  

development, then reopen for the regular Common Council meeting. 

   

5. Approving the award of the contract to the company selected to perform the Economic and 

Fiscal Impact Analysis relating to the proposed Kettle Park West development. 

 

6. Discussion and possible action regarding filling the aldermanic vacancy in Aldermanic  

 District 4.  (2 year term). 

 

 7.  R-35-2014:   Approving and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the recommendation   

 from the EMS/Fire ad hoc committee of leaving the Fire Department and Emergency Medical  

 Services two separate departments, and to pursue filling the Emergency Medical Services  

 Director vacancy.  (Public Safety approved 4-0 with Mayor Olson voting) 

 

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 

regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 

  

 

mailto:mhougan@ci.stoughton.wi.us


 

 

 

8. R-30-2014:  Approving and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Class “B” Beer 

license to Stoughton Merchant’s Baseball for the period of April 2014 to October 2014. (Public 

Safety approved 4-0 with Mayor Olson voting) 

  

9. R-32-2014:  Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to implement changes to  

 The Park Reservation Policy/Procedure Manual, that includes the addition of the Stoughton  

 Rotary Park and Norse Park well as other changes to words and layout.  (Parks & Recreation 

 Approved 2-0)  

 

10.  R-33-2014:  Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to accept the Stoughton 

 Utilities voluntary Electric and Water Tax Stabilization Dividends and the required Electric 

 And Water Payments in Lieu of Taxes.  (Utilities Committee approved 5-2 with Mayor Olson  

 Voting) 

 

11. R-34-2014:  Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Stoughton  

 Utilities 2013 Audit Report and Management Letter.  (Utilities Committee approved 7-0 with 

 Mayor Olson voting) 

  

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 

aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Clerk at (608) 873-6677. 

 

By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Eric Hohol, City Clerk Maria Hougan 





 


 


 


Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, April 8, 2014 @ 7:00 P.M. 


Location:  Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building (2nd floor) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Ron Christianson, Michael Engelberger, Eric Hohol, Greg Jenson, David 


Kneebone, Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Tricia Suess, Tim 


Swadley, Sonny Swangstu, vacant 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: NINE (9) MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM. The Council 


may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the meeting, please notify 


the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email mhougan@ci.stoughton.wi.us. 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 


 Kettle Park West update 


 


2. Minutes and Reports: Public Safety 02-26-2014, Opera House 02-04-2014, Risk Management 


01-13-2014, Library Board 02-17-2014 


 


3. Public Comment 


 


 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


4. Request from Council President Hohol to convene into the Committee of the Whole for the  


 purpose of making a recommendation regarding selection of the company to 


perform the Economic and Fiscal Impact Analysis relating to the proposed Kettle Park West  


development, then reopen for the regular Common Council meeting. 


   


5. Approving the award of the contract to the company selected to perform the Economic and 


Fiscal Impact Analysis relating to the proposed Kettle Park West development. 


 


6. Discussion and possible action regarding filling the aldermanic vacancy in Aldermanic  


 District 4.  (2 year term). 


 


 7.  R-35-2014:   Approving and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the recommendation   


 from the EMS/Fire ad hoc committee of leaving the Fire Department and Emergency Medical  


 Services two separate departments, and to pursue filling the Emergency Medical Services  


 Director vacancy.  (Public Safety approved 4-0 with Mayor Olson voting) 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



mailto:mhougan@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 


 


 


8. R-30-2014:  Approving and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Class “B” Beer 


license to Stoughton Merchant’s Baseball for the period of April 2014 to October 2014. (Public 


Safety approved 4-0 with Mayor Olson voting) 


  


9. R-32-2014:  Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to implement changes to  


 The Park Reservation Policy/Procedure Manual, that includes the addition of the Stoughton  


 Rotary Park and Norse Park well as other changes to words and layout.  (Parks & Recreation 


 Approved 2-0)  


 


10.  R-33-2014:  Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to accept the Stoughton 


 Utilities voluntary Electric and Water Tax Stabilization Dividends and the required Electric 


 And Water Payments in Lieu of Taxes.  (Utilities Committee approved 5-2 with Mayor Olson  


 Voting) 


 


11. R-34-2014:  Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Stoughton  


 Utilities 2013 Audit Report and Management Letter.  (Utilities Committee approved 7-0 with 


 Mayor Olson voting) 


  


 


 


ADJOURNMENT 


 
Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 


aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Clerk at (608) 873-6677. 


 


By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Eric Hohol, City Clerk Maria Hougan 








PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, February 26, 2014 @ 6:00 p.m. 
Hall of Fame Room/City Hall 
 
Members Present: Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski (VC), Tim Swadley (C) 
Mayor Olson  
Absent & Excused: Eric Hohol 
Also Present:  Police Chief Greg Leck, City Clerk Pili Hougan, David Kneebone, 
George Mann, Vik Malling, Sharon Mason-Boersma. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 
1. COMMUNICATIONS  
Swadley stated he had a phone call from a citizen asking about the EMS restructure, 
and if there was any consideration regarding paramedics.  Mayor Olson stated she has 
appointed an AD HOC committee and they have met twice and will determine what the 
best process for the city will be.  Don Peterson from McFarland was in attendance at the 
last AD HOC meeting to explain the restructure process in McFarland. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
2. Minutes of January 22, 2014  
Moved by Majewski, second by Lawrence, to approve as presented. All in favor. 
 
3. Application for an Operator’s License: George Mann.  
Alderperson Swadley explained the applicant has the choice to go into closed session.  
The applicant denied.  Chief Leck explained his reason for recommendation of denial.   
Moved by Lawrence, second by Majewski, to recommend approval to Council. Motion 
carried 2-2 with Swadley and Mayor Olson voting in opposition. 
 
4. Application for a Change of Agent: Walgreens Store #07519, located at 
1705 US Highway 51, Stoughton , requests appointment of Jeremy Iverson as 
Agent..     
Moved by Lawrence, second by Majewski to recommend Council approval.  Motion 
carried 4-0, with Mayor Olson voting. 
 
5. Application for a Class “B” Beer and “Class C” Wine license:  Viking Brew 
Pub, LLC, Vik Malling, Agents, dba Viking Brew Pub, located at 211 E. Main Street. 
Vik Malling was in attendance. He will not brew beer until he has his brew pub permit in 
place.  He is working on the Brew Pub application process.  Moved by Majewski, 
second by Lawrence, to recommend approval to council.  Motion carries 4-0 with Mayor 
Olson voting. 
 
6. Discussion and possible action on Preserving a Positive Alcohol 
Environment Assessment Process. Chief Leck explained the process where Attorney 







Dregne will review all alcohol related ordinances and policies the city has in place, and 
recommend best practices.  Moved by Majewski, second by Lawrence, to direct staff 
(police) to include this as an offer in the 2015 Budgeting for Outcomes.  Motion carries 
4-0 with Mayor Olson voting. 
  
7. Discussion and possible action on the Residential Traffic Management 
Program:  Chief Leck presented this item.  Moved by Lawrence, second by Majewski, 
to amend the resolution to add Public Works committee, and to recommend approval 
and referral to the Public Works committee.  Motion carried 4-0 with Mayor Olson 
voting. 
 
8.        Discussion and possible action on the adoption of State Statute 951.095, 
Harassment of Police and Fire Animals. Moved by Lawrence, second by Majewski, to 
recommend approval to Council.  Motion carries 4-0 with Mayor Olson voting. 
 
9.        Discussion on revisions to the Snow Emergency Ordinance and Alternate 
Side Parking.   Chief Leck presented his reasons for requesting a change.  This is 
more about compliance and consistency.  Further discussion followed.  Moved by 
Lawrence, second by Majewski, to hold a joint Public Works and Public Safety meeting 
to discuss this item.  Motion carried 4-0 with Mayor Olson voting. 
 
Future agenda items: 
Restructuring in the Police Department, Special Event Ordinance-Policy 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Moved by Lawrence, second by Majewski, to adjourn at 7:30 p.m. All in favor. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Pili Hougan 
City Clerk 
 







**Here is a draft Mission Statement based on the discussion** Amy McFarland


Opera House Board Meeting Tuesday
February 4, 2014 - 10am Hall of Fame
Room


Present: President Mary Carel Verden, Amy McFarland, Jon Lewis, Sonny Swangstu
Absent/Excused: Greg Jenson, VP John Beutel, Janet Hedstrom


Staff: Bill Brehm, Director of Opera House/Media Services
Christina Dollhausen, Event Coordinator


1. The meeting was called to order by President Verden at 10:03am.
2. Moved by Lewis, seconded by Swangstu, that minutes of 12/3/2013 be approved. Motion passed


unanimously by acclamation.


3. Brehm presented Directors Report:
-Continuing to stay very busy with shows
-Brehm & Dollhausen spoke at the Madison West Rotary to an enthusiastic and encouraging
crowd. The group feels that the Opera House is a major contributor to the Cultural Landscape of
Dane County.
-looking into buying a large quantity of incandescent bulbs for opera house
-Holiday shows went well. Sold out Messiah.
-already working on 14-15 season...picking dates and sending out offers.
-SOHFA - a non-profit - has been formed. Their major goal it to support the Opera House. It may
be a good source for fundraising, sponsorships, etc.
-Director Brehm is considering pursuing a 30 hr position as well as investigating possible wage-
scale adjustments to existing positions. The board recommends gathering the #'s and putting
together a proposal for the personnel committee.
- All shows are currently on the new ticketing site, continuing to transition between the two
sites.
-for continued growth: more volunteers, interns/tech stuff, contracted jobs.
-gather info from downtown businesses about percentage up or stagnant during shows.


4. Financial update presented by Brehm:
-Had some very successfu l shows, Josh Ritter & Marty Stuart to name a couple, but
took a hit on Del McCoury this past January. -Upon earning an addit ional $80k net
profit on performance revenue, projected goals for the 2013-2014 season
performance revenue wil l be met
- Board directed the Director to allocate money budgeted for conferences, networking
opportunities, etc. as he sees fit.


5. Future agenda items: Very impressive growth at the Opera House - Recommended to schedule a time to
meet with council to share these #'s, seat maintenance, continue with OH growth and prosperity
plan/discussion, seeking foundational supporters for upcoming seasons and shows, Grants, Donations,
and Fundraisers need to be scheduled into the year, Opening Day Event 2014?


6. A motion to adjourn was made by Lewis at 11:43am, seconded by Verden. Motion carried
unanimously by acclamation.


Respectfully submitted,
Christina Dollhausen


Event Coordinator, Stoughton Opera House







The Stoughton Opera House's mission is to promote and provide diverse and inspiring performing arts;
to reflect and enrich local and regional audiences of all ages, interests and backgrounds; to respect and
expand historic preservation; and to sustain a strong and vital partnership with the city of Stoughton.







DRAFT STOUGHTON RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REGULAR 
MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, March 26, 2014 – 11:00 a.m. 
Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
Stoughton Utilities Building 
600 S. Fourth St. 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
Members Present: Robert Kardasz, Chairperson, Greg Leck, Karl Manthe, 


Mayor Donna Olson, and Lisa Schimelpfenig. 
 
Excused: Marty Lamers and Rodney Scheel. 
   
Absent: None. 


 
Others Present: Cities and Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC) 


Loss Control Specialist Joseph Laeser. 
 
Call To Order:  Robert Kardasz called the regular Stoughton Risk Management 
Committee Meeting to order at 11:00 a.m.  
 
Stoughton Risk Management Committee Consent Agenda:  Robert Kardasz 
presented and discussed the January 13, 2014 Risk Management Committee Meeting 
Minutes.  Discussion followed.  Motion by Greg Leck, the motion seconded by Karl 
Manthe, to approve the consent agenda as follows:  the January 13, 2014 Risk 
Management Committee Meeting Minutes.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 







 


STOUGHTON RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 
Monday, January 13, 2014 – 10:57 a.m. 
Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
Stoughton Utilities Building 
600 S. Fourth St. 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
Members Present: Robert Kardasz, Chairperson, Marty Lamers, Greg Leck, 


Karl Manthe, Mayor Donna Olson, and Rodney Scheel, Vice-
Chairperson. 


 
Excused: Cathy Rigdon. 
   
Absent: None. 


 
Others Present: None. 
 
Call To Order:  Robert Kardasz called the regular Stoughton Risk Management 
Committee Meeting to order at 11:00 a.m.  
 
Stoughton Risk Management Committee Consent Agenda:  Robert Kardasz 
presented and discussed the November 20, 2013 Risk Management Committee 
Meeting Minutes.  Discussion followed.  Motion by Marty Lamers, the motion seconded 
by Greg Leck, to approve the consent agenda as follows:  the November 20, 2013 Risk 
Management Committee Meeting Minutes.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
2013 Cities and Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC) Year End Reports:  
Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the 2013 CVMIC Year End Reports consisting 
of the following:  APD Claims and Incidents, GL Financial Summary, GL Financial 
Summary by Department, All APD Claims, APD Closed Claims, APD Claims and 
Incidents Reported, and GL Claims and Incidents Closed.  Discussion followed.  It was 
decided to seek a letter from CVMIC defining the year end reports. 
   
January 14, 2014 Leadership Team Meeting:   Robert Kardasz presented and 
discussed the January 14, 2014 Leadership Team being hosted by Stoughton Utilities 
and explained that CVMIC WC Claims Manager Greg Gilsinger would be participating in 
the meeting.  Discussion followed.  
  
Meeting Noticing:  Robert Kardasz presented and discussed Risk Management 
Committee meeting noticing as requested by Greg Leck.  Discussion followed.  It was 
decided to only send future Risk Management Committee meeting notices to the 
committee membership, the CVMIC Loss Control Specialist assigned to Stoughton, the 
Stoughton Leadership Team, and Stoughton Utilities staff and consultants. 
 
 
 
 







 


STOUGHTON RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, January 13, 2014 – 10:57 a.m.  
Stoughton, WI 
Page No. 2 
 
Stoughton Risk Management Committee Next Meeting Date and Location:  
Robert Kardasz requested that the next Stoughton Risk Management Committee 
Regular Meeting be scheduled at a date to be determined in the Edmund T. 
Malinowski Board Room at Stoughton Utilities, when necessary.  Discussion followed.  
It was decided to seek further clarification from CVMIC on what would be discussed 
with the Stoughton Leadership Team at the January 28, 2014 Work Plan meeting and 
an evaluation of City of Stoughton present safety compliance.   
 
Adjournment:  Motion by Greg Leck, the motion seconded by Marty Lamers, to adjourn 
the Stoughton Risk Management Committee Meeting at 11:30 a.m.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Robert P. Kardasz, P.E., Chairperson and Interim City of Stoughton Risk Manager 
Stoughton Risk Management Committee 


 
 







LIBRARY BOARD MEETING MINUTES 


FEBRUARY 19, 2014 @ 6:30 P.M. 


CARNEGIE ROOM, STOUGHTON PUBLIC LIBRARY 


 


PRESENT: Library Board President Elva Tyson, Vice-President Linda Schaefer, Sandra Black, Denise Duranczyk, 


Petra Horst, Mike Vienneau 


 


ABSENT: Stoughton Area School District Superintendent Dr. Tim Onsager, Kathleen Kelly 


[Alder Ross Urven resigned his seat on the City Council prior to the February meeting] 


 


ALSO PRESENT: Library Director Richard MacDonald, Library Administrative Assistant Sarah Monette 


 


1. CALL TO ORDER 


President Elva Tyson called the meeting to order at 6:33 P.M. 


 


2. REVIEW AGENDA 


Library Director Richard MacDonald requested that the January financial statements from the City be added to Item 


7: Review/Approval of "Final" Financial Statements for December 2013. 


 


3. REVIEW/APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JANUARY 15, 2014 


Moved by Denise Duranczyk, second by Petra Horst, to approve. Motion carried 6-0. 


 


4. PUBLIC COMMENT 


Duranczyk requested an update on the health of librarian Beth Frankwick. MacDonald replied that he had an update 


included in Item 9. 


 


5. REVIEW/DISCUSS CORRESPONDENCE 


MacDonald shared more I love my library cards and two thank you notes. 


 


6. BOARD IN-SERVICE 
None. 


 


7. REVIEW/APPROVAL OF "FINAL" FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR DECEMBER 2013 


MacDonald reviewed the statements. The Board discussed allocation of the surplus. 


 a. Account 215 (General Fund): Moved by Duranczyk, second by Mike Vienneau, to approve the Fund 215 


statements for December 2013. Motion carried 6-0. 


 b. Account 217 (Special Gift Fund): Moved by Duranczyk, second by Sandra Black, to approve the Fund 217 


statements for December 2013. Motion carried 6-0. 


 c. Stoughton Area Community Foundation: The Library has not received a January statement from Edward 


Jones regarding the Stoughton Area Community Foundation pass-through fund. 


 d. Per MacDonald's request, the January 2014 financial statements were added to the agenda. 


MacDonald reviewed the statements. The Board requested more information about whether substitute librarians' 


wages were drawn from account 120 or account 127. MacDonald will pursue. 


  i. Account 215 (General Fund): Moved by Duranczyk, second by Black, to approve the Fund 215 


statements for January 2014. Motion carried 6-0. 


  ii. Account 217 (General Fund): Moved by Duranczyk, second by Horst, to approve the Fund 217 


statements for January 2014.  


 


8. REVIEW/APPROVAL OF BILLS FOR FEBRUARY 2014 


MacDonald reviewed the February bills lists. He also presented the list of bills from the 2013 budget that were paid in 


2014. This list was accepted by consensus. 


 a. Account 215 (General Fund): Moved by Duranczyk, second by Linda Schaefer, to approve the Fund 215 


bills list for February 2014. Motion carried 6-0. 







 b. Account 217 (General Fund): Moved by Duranczyk, second by Horst, to approve the Fund 217 bills list for 


February 2014. Motion carried 6-0. 


 


9. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 


 a. Statistics for January 2014: MacDonald discussed the change in the way SCLS compiles wireless use 


statistics. 


 b. Administration Report: MacDonald reported on Library Legislative Day and on the progress of the Library's 


Wish Tree campaign. He is surveying other libraries about their Sunday hours. Duranczyk suggested that the Library 


be prepared to run a pilot program in Autumn 2015. 


 MacDonald reported on the health of librarian Beth Frankwick. The Board agreed that they want to send her a 


gift. MacDonald will ask staff what Ms. Frankwick would most appreciate. 


 Moved by Duranczyk, second by Vienneau, to allocate $50 from the Undesignated Fund 217 account (500) for 


a gift for Beth Frankwick. Motion carried 6-0. 


 Black stated her admiration of Children's Librarian Amanda Bosky and her efforts to reach out to the schools 


and the Youth Center. 


 


10. COMMITTEE REPORTS 


 a. FINANCE: did not meet. 


 b. PERSONNEL: did not meet. 


 c. PLANNING: did not meet. 


 d. POLICIES: met January 29. Tyson noted a correction to the minutes. MacDonald reported; due to time 


conflicts, the Policies Committee was not able to meet for long enough to make the progress they wanted. They have 


scheduled another meeting. 


 e. SECOND FLOOR BUILDLING: did not meet. 


 f. FUNDRAISING: met February 11. Duranczyk reported. The committee is pleased with their new 


administrative assistant Laura Hughes. Schaefer reported that the Fundraising Kickoff on January 30 was a success, 


with between fifty and seventy attendees. MacDonald reported that the owner of Famous Yeti's Pizza is organizing a 


fundraising Ultimate Frisbee tournament for June. 


 


11. FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY REPORT 


Horst presented the Friends annual financial reports. They are preparing for their Spring Fling fundraising event. 


Tickets will be $25. They are applying for an SACF grant for $5,000 to install security cameras in the Library. 


 


12. OLD BUSINESS 


 a. Fundraising update: [The fundraising update was covered under Item 10.f., the Fundraising 


Committee report.] 
 b. Collect Library Director evaluation forms: Horst requested that Board members give their Library Director 


evaluations to her, either in person or by email. 


 


13. NEW BUSINESS 


 a. Review previous year's budget: This item was partially covered in Item 7; Finance Director Laurie Sullivan 


will be present at the March Board meeting to report on the 2013 budget, so it was agreed to table further discussion 


until then. 


 b. Review Special Gift Fund and allocate interest: Moved by Duranczyk, second by Schaefer, to allocate the 


$68.06 interest from the 217 Fund to the 217 Undesignated account. Motion carried 6-0. 


 c. Statement of Library System Effectiveness: MacDonald recommended approving the Statement of Library 


System Effectiveness for the 2013 Wisconsin Public Library Annual Report. Moved by Duranczyk, second by Black, 


to approve. Motion carried 6-0. 


 d. Approve State of Wisconsin 2013 Annual Report: MacDonald presented the 2013 Wisconsin Public Library 


Annual Report. There was some discussion of how reference transactions ought to be counted. Moved by Duranczyk, 


second by Black, to approve the 2013 WPLAR. Motion carried 6-0. 


 e. Review Board member terms: The Board reviewed member terms. Kathleen Kelly is the only person whose 


term ends in 2014. Tyson will talk to her about renewing her term. There was discussion of Alder Ross Urven's 


resignation and whether the Mayor will appoint a new Council representative before his seat is filled. Duranczyk 







asked if there is a list of people who might be interested in serving on the Board; MacDonald responded that, yes, 


there is. The Board also was puzzled by the number of people whose terms end in 2015. MacDonald will check with 


the City and be sure the Library's information is correct. 


 f. Adoption of policy to allow payment of Library fines without a Library card present: The Policies 


Committee recommended the adoption of a new procedure allowing library fines to be paid without a library card 


being present. This affects two policies. Moved by Black, second by Schaefer, to amend both policies. Motion carried 


6-0. 


 


14. PENDING AGENDA ITEMS 


 a. Presentation from City Finance Director in March 


 b. Review and update Capital Improvements Plan in March 


 c. Closed session for Library Director evaluation in March 


 d. Trustee Essential #9: "Managing the Library's Money": After some discussion, it was agreed to provide this 


article to Board members in advance of the March meeting so that they can prepare for Finance Director Sullivan's 


presentation (see Item 14.a.). 


 e. Addition to Library Board By-Laws (Policies Committee) 


 f. Visit in April by Mark Ibach to discuss Library Advocacy: MacDonald will provide the Trustee Essential 


article on Advocacy in March so that Board members can review it in preparation for the April meeting. 


 g. Discussion of Sunday hours: MacDonald will provide the SCLS information on Sunday hours in advance of 


the March meeting. 


 


15. ADJOURNMENT 


Moved by Duranczyk, second by Horst, to adjourn at 8:12 P.M. Motion carried 6-0. 


 


Respectfully submitted, 


Sarah Monette 


Library Administrative Assistant 





		02-26-2014 PS minutes.pdf

		correct amended min - Opera House.pdf

		Risk- January 13, 2014 Meeting Minutes.pdf

		Library Board APPROVED Minutes 02-19-2014.pdf






Agenda items for city Council meeting April 8 adjournment during meeting to COW.
From: Eric Hohol
Sent: Thursday, April 03, 2014 9:25 PM
To: Donna Olson; Maria Hougan
Cc: Council
Subject: Agenda items for city Council meeting April 8 & adjournment during
meeting
to COW.


Dear Mayor,


As we discussed on the phone today, our next city Council meeting is scheduled
for next week Tuesday, April 8, at 7:00 PM.


As we discussed, please give notice on the agenda, immediately after the
public comment period, that the council may Temporarily adjourn to a committee
of the whole in order to review and discuss the bids for the kettle Park West
economic impact analysis study and that the council will then reopen for their
regular course of business after the committee of the whole meeting. The
only agenda item for the committee of the whole will be discussion, review and
recommendation to council on the Kettle Park West fiscal / economic impact
analysis bids. I will send those bids out to the council tonight and they
should also be included in the council / COW packet for next week on the 8th.


As we further discussed today, then please place on the regular council
meeting agenda, under new business (after the committee of the whole
discussion) an agenda item for council approval of a KPW bid for the economic
impact analysis.


Pili / Mayor - Please revert if there are any concerns relative to this
request......, and please include this on the agenda that goes out tomorrow.


FYI - The council has previously adjourned at its regular council meeting to a
committee of the whole for various discussion topics and then reopened as a
council, so the language to use for this request should already be
established. If not I'm sure the city Atty. can advise on how we should
publish it on the agenda in case you're not exactly sure the language to use
to do it.


Thanks!


Best Regards,


Eric N. Hohol
Common Council President
District #4 Alderman
City of Stoughton
381 E Main Street
Stoughton WI 53589
ehohol@ci.stoughton.wi.us


Page 1







CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


February 12, 2014


Re: Economic & Fiscal Impact Analysis


The City of Stoughton requests a proposal for professional services to prepare an Economic &
Fiscal Impact Analysis, per Section 78-205(11)(e)3 of the municipal ordinance, for the Kettle
Park West Commercial Center development proposed at the corner of USH 51 and STH 138.
The following is a summary of these guidelines.


The economic and fiscal impact analysis shall include all of the items identified in Figure 2.3
of this section. In addition, the economic and fiscal impact analysis shall include the
following:


a. Identify and assess the economic and fiscal impacts on the community;


b. Propose measures to mitigate adverse impacts and/or maximize positive impacts
including provision of infrastructure or public services improvements sufficient to
support the project. Any adverse impacts that cannot be mitigated shall be identified.
Mitigation measures to be implemented by the applicant shall be identified.


c. The applicant shall provide the necessary funding to the city to hire a consultant of the
city's choice, with appropriate experience to complete and present an economic and
fiscal impact analysis to the city.







Figure 2.3: Economic and Fiscal Impact Analysis Requirements


1. For the project, estimate the following:


a. Types of jobs created


b. Number of full-time (40 hrs/wk) and part time (less than 40 hrs/wk) jobs created


2. Estimate the amount of local labor to be used in the construction of the project
and in employment. Local is defined as city or county residents or businesses.


3. Include an analysis indicating the market proposed for the project and the area
from which patrons will be attracted.


4. Compare and evaluate the projected costs and benefits to the community
resulting from the project including:


a. Projected costs arising from increased demand for and required improvements
to public services and infrastructure.


b. Value of improvements to public services and infrastructure to be provided by
the project.


c. Projected tax revenues to the city to be generated by the project in the first five
years.


The City of Stoughton has been working with developers for several years related to
development of this area. The City was recently informed that the anchor retailer for this
development is Walmart.


We are including the following background information:


City Ordinance 78-205(11)(e)3


Agreement to Undertake Development


Ordinance Rezoning Property to PD (Planned Development)


Kettle Park West Commercial Center Economic and Public Service Considerations


Analysis of Potential Economic Impacts Due to the Proposed Retail Development
At the Southeast Corner of US Highway 51 and County Road B
In the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin – 2007


Retail Service Sector Analysis: April 2012


A copy of the City Comprehensive Plan and associated Detailed Neighborhood Plan is available
on the City’s website.


A complete written report must be provided in electronic format. Ten (10) hardcopies of the
report shall also be provided. One public presentation of the report shall be included in your
proposed fee.


Please return your proposal no later than March 4, 2014. Proposals will be reviewed at the
Finance Committee and Common Council meetings held on March 11, 2014. If selected, you







will be authorized to begin work immediately. The completed report is to be submitted no later
than April 8, 2014.


Please feel free to contact me at 608-873-6619 if you have any questions.


Sincerely,
City of Stoughton


Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development







Gibbs 
                                                                         Planning Group                                            Urban intelligence 


 


240 Martin Street  ·  Birmingham, Michigan ·  48009 
TRADITIONAL TOWN PLANNING   +   RETAIL CONSULTING   +   MARKET RESEARCH 


Tel. 248.642.4800 · Fax. 248.642-5758 · www.gibbsplanning.com 


 
 
26 March 2014 
 
Rodney Scheel 
Director of Finance & Economic Development 
City of Stoughton 
381 E. Main Street      
Stoughton, Wisconsin 53589 
      
Dear Mr. Scheel: 
  
On behalf of Gibbs Planning Group (GPG), I am pleased to respond to your request to provide 


retail consulting services for an Economic & Fiscal Impact Analysis for the Kettle Park West 


Commercial Center development. 


 


I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Don’t hesitate to call me if you have any 


questions. 


 


Sincerely, 


 


 


 


 


Robert J. Gibbs, ASLA, PLA, CNU-A 


President 


rgibbs@gibbsplanning.com 


 



mailto:rgibbs@gibbsplanning.com





 
 
 


Urban intelligence 


240 Martin Street · Birmingham, Michigan · 48009 
Tel. 248.642.4800 ·  Fax. 248.642-5758 ·  www.gibbsplanning.com 


Gibbs 
Planning Group 


26 March 2014 
 
Rodney Scheel 
Director of Finance & Economic Development 
City of Stoughton 
381 E. Main Street     Sent via email: rjscheel@ci.stoughton.wi.us 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 53589 
      
Dear Mr. Scheel: 
  
On behalf of Gibbs Planning Group (GPG), I am pleased to respond to your request to provide retail 
consulting services for an Economic & Fiscal Impact Analysis, per Section 78-205(11)(e)3 of the 
municipal ordinance, for the Kettle Park West Commercial Center development proposed at the 
corner of USH 51 and STH 138. GPG’s expertise allows us to formulate and refine a proven and 
focused approach to accomplish the market research. GPG is dedicated to providing practical, 
actionable results, which reflect economic development realities and not just theoretical research.  
 
GPG has a broad range of both private and public sector experience across North America. Public 
urban retail consulting clients include: Alexandria, Cambridge, Charleston, Chicago, Houston, 
Knoxville, Madison, Miami, Portland and Seattle. GPG’s private sector clients include EDS, 
Rosemary Beach, Steiner Associates, The St. Joe Company, The Taubman Company, Simon 
Property Group and the Walt Disney Company.  
   
Please find below my proposed scope and fees based upon our recent discussions and my 
understanding of the city’s objectives: 
 


The economic and fiscal impact analysis shall include the following:  


a. Identify and assess the economic and fiscal impacts on the community; 


b. Types of jobs created by the project 


c. Number of full-time (40 hrs./wk. and part time (less than 40 hrs./wk.) jobs created 


d. Estimate the amount of local labor to be used in the construction of the project and in 
employment. Local is defined as city or county residents or businesses. 


e. Include an analysis indicating the market proposed for the project and the area from which 
patrons will be attracted. 


f. Compare and evaluate the projected costs and benefits to the community resulting from 
the project including: 


a. Projected costs arising from increased demand for and required improvements to 
public services and infrastructure. 


b. Value of improvements to public services and infrastructure to be provided by the 
project. 


c. Projected tax revenues to the city to be generated by the project in the first five 
years. 


g.    Propose measures to mitigate adverse impacts and/or maximize positive impacts including 
provision of infrastructure or public services improvements sufficient to support the project. 
Any adverse impacts that cannot be mitigated shall be identified. Mitigation measures to be 
implemented by the applicant shall be identified.  


Meetings & Presentations  
This proposal includes GPG’s availability for one (1) on-site meeting with the city council and staff 
and up to two (2) conference calls as mutually agreed. In addition, GPG will be available for  
additional meetings and charrette participation on an hourly or per diem basis as authorized by the 
client and as outlined below:  
 







Stoughton, Wisconsin Impact Analysis Proposal 
Gibbs Planning Group, Inc. 
26 March 2014  


2. 


 
Principal:    $250/hr.                       $2,500 per diem 
Associate:  $100/hr.                       $1,000 per diem 
Clerical       $ 50/hr.       N/A 
 


Professional Fees: 
GPG’s proposed fee for the consulting services required for your project is $25,000, plus direct costs 
for all travel, lodging and document reproduction expenses. Expenses shall not exceed $1,000.  
 
Limits of Scope of Services: 
The services described in this agreement are for qualitative retail and planning analysis only, and 
should not be used as the sole basis of development, financing or leasing. Actual site, building, 
parking, utility, environmental, grading, civil engineering and architectural plans, cost projects, real 
estate leasing, brokerage services  and construction documents are not included within the scope of 
work of this proposal and are to be completed by others.  
 
Conditions of Agreement:  


a. GPG will begin services as described by this proposal upon receipt of a non-refundable 
retainer as outlined below. This retainer will be deducted from the final invoice for services 
completed by this proposal.  


b. GPG will invoice the client on a monthly basis or at the completion of each step.  
c. All invoices will be paid by the client within 30 days receipt.  
d. This agreement will not be enforced by either party until each party has in its possession a 


copy of this agreement signed by the other.  
e. In the event of termination or suspension due to the fault of others than GPG, GPG will be 


paid compensation for all completed work, plus other fees which may have been authorized 
by the client for expenses resulting from such termination or suspension.  


f. GPG does not imply or warrant that the findings of this research will include any minimal 
amounts or types of commercial development at the subject site. 


g. GPG’s responsibilities for any damages or losses resulting from the services completed 
pursuant to this agreement shall be limited to One Thousand Dollars ($1,000). All additional 
claims, disputes and other matters in question arising out of, or relating to, this agreement or 
the breach thereof, will be decided by an arbitrator; said arbitrator will be appointed by 
American Arbitration Association, and arbitration shall occur in Oakland County, Michigan.  


 
If you agree with the terms, fees and conditions of this proposal, please sign below. GPG will 
begin these services upon the receipt of a $10,000 retainer check made out to GIBBS 
PLANNING GROUP, INC. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal and we are looking forward to working with 
the city in the near future.  


 
Sincerely, 
GIBBS PLANNING GROUP, INC.  


 
Robert J. Gibbs, ASLA, PLA, CNU 
President             
rgibbs@gibbsplanning.com   The above terms accepted by: 
 
 


............................................................................................... 
                     Signature   Date 
 


 
..................................................…........................................... 


   Title    Representing  
     


- END OF AGREEMENT - 



mailto:rgibbs@gibbsplanning.com





 


A Proposal to Conduct an 
Economic and Fiscal Impact Analysis 


for Kettle Park West in 
 the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


   
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared for: 


City of Stoughton 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 


March 2014 
 
 
 
 
 


1221 Nicollet Mall 
Suite 218 
Minneapolis, MN 55403 
612.338.0012 
www.maxfieldresearch.com 







 


612‐338‐0012  (fax) 612‐904‐7979 
1221 Nicollet Mall, Suite 218, Minneapolis, MN  55403 


www.maxfieldresearch.com 


March 28, 2014 


 
Mr. Rodney Scheel 
Director 
Department of Planning & Development 
City of Stoughton 
381 East Main Street 
Stoughton, WI  53589 
 
Dear Mr. Scheel: 
 
Maxfield Research Inc. is pleased to submit its proposal to the City of Stoughton to complete an econom‐
ic and fiscal impact analysis for the Kettle Park West Commercial Development that would be located at 
the intersection of USH 51 and STH 138 in Stoughton, Wisconsin.  As requested and required by ordi‐
nance, the attached proposal will address the following factors: 
 


 Identify and assess the economic and fiscal impacts of the proposed development on the com‐
munity. 


 Propose measures, as needed, to mitigate adverse impacts and/or maximize positive impacts 
including provision of infrastructure or public services improvements sufficient to support the 
project.  Any adverse impacts that cannot be mitigated shall be identified.   
 


 Specific tasks and information to be provided in the analysis is outlined in detail in the proposal.   
 


Maxfield Research Inc. has prepared a work program and associated costs to complete the requested 
analysis.  Also included with this proposal is a summary of the company’s background and related 
project experience including resumes of Maxfield staff that would prepare the analysis.   
 
We welcome the opportunity to work on this project.  Please call me at (612) 904‐7977 if you have any 
questions about the proposed work program or if you need any other information.   You can also email 
me at mbujold@maxfieldresearch.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
MAXFIELD RESEARCH INC. 


 
Mary C. Bujold 
President 
 
Attachment 







Economic & Fiscal Impact Analysis 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin     


MAXFIELD RESEARCH INC.    1 


BRIEF OUTLINE OF PROJECT SCOPE AND SERVICES 
 
Maxfield Research Inc. proposes to provide market research and consulting services to the City 
of Stoughton, Wisconsin to complete an Economic and Fiscal Impact Analysis for the Kettle Park 
West commercial development.  The analysis will focus on identifying employment, infrastruc‐
ture, economic and tax impacts resulting from the development and operation of the proposed 
project.  We understand this analysis is required according to the City’s zoning ordinances.   
 
The analysis will identify positive and negative impacts and will provide recommendations to 
mitigate negative impacts that may result from the development.  Quantitative analysis will 
identify the net economic impact from both positive and negative impacts to the community 
and the resulting potential revenues to the City from taxes to be paid.  Where appropriate, 
qualitative impacts will also be addressed. 
 
 
DESCRIPTION AND BIOGRAPHY OF FIRM 
 
Maxfield Research Inc. has 30 years of experience in assisting communities to determine 
economic and market conditions for planning and development efforts, providing demographic 
estimates and projections and analyzing county and municipal commercial and residential 
needs.  Our thorough knowledge of market trends in the real estate industry allows us to 
support our clients with valuable information that affects planning and development.   
 
Maxfield Research Inc. provides research and analysis in the areas of general market housing, 
student housing, senior housing, office, retail, hospitality and hotels, recreation, industrial 
development and financial institutions.  A more detailed company overview is located in the 
Appendix.   
 
Maxfield Research Inc. has been requested to provide economic and fiscal impact analysis for 
the City of Brookfield, Wisconsin related to new housing development, for the Children’s 
Theater Company in Minneapolis, Minnesota and the economic and fiscal impact for the 
Northpointe Health Care Center in North Minneapolis.  Each of these assessments was unique, 
providing an analysis of the benefits and costs of undertaking major capital expenditures to 
upgrade and improve facilities, to undertake new development, and the extent to which these 
improvements may provide ongoing benefits to the communities in which they are located.   
 
 


 
 







Economic & Fiscal Impact Analysis 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin     


MAXFIELD RESEARCH INC.    2 


COMPANY BACKGROUND 
 
Maxfield Research Inc. 
 
Company Headquarters:  Minneapolis, Minnesota (One office) 
 
Staff:  8 
 
8 Full‐Time 
 
President      1 
Vice President     1 
Senior Research Analyst  1 
Research Analysts    4 
Office Manager    1 
 
PRIMARY PROJECT CONTACT/PROJECT ADMINISTRATOR 
 
Mary Bujold, President of Maxfield Research Inc. would serve as the primary project contact for 
all billings, general contract administration and research assignments.  Contact information is: 
 
Mary C. Bujold, CRE, President 
Maxfield Research Inc. 
1221 Nicollet Mall, Suite 218 
Minneapolis, MN  55403 
Direct: (612) 904‐7977    
Fax: (612) 904‐7979  
Email: mbujold@maxfieldresearch.com 
 
Additional information on the company background, resumes of the staff members and experi‐
ence with similar projects is provided later in this document. 
 
Our work approach draws on our experience and expertise in conducting economic and market 
analyses on behalf of public entities and private developers.  A detailed Scope of Services on 
the following pages outlines the specific tasks we will undertake to conduct this needs assess‐
ment. 
 


 







Economic & Fiscal Impact Analysis 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin     


MAXFIELD RESEARCH INC.    2 


RESEARCH STAFF 
 
Primary Project Contact/Project Administrator 
 
Mary Bujold from Maxfield Research Inc. will serve as the primary project contact for all billings, 
general contract administration and research assignments.  Contact information is: 
 
Mary Bujold, President 
Maxfield Research Inc. 
1221 Nicollet Mall, Suite 218 
Minneapolis, MN  55403 
Direct: (612) 904‐7977  
Fax: (612) 904‐7979  
Email: mbujold@maxfieldresearch.com 
 
Additional information on the company background, resumes of the staff members and experi‐
ence with similar projects is provided later in this document. 
 
Maxfield Research Inc. 
 


 


Mary Bujold, CRE, President, Maxfield Research Inc. will serve as the Project 
Principal for this assignment.  Mary is involved in and oversees all of the 
firm’s work with regard to providing services to public and private sector 
clients and analyses focused on community revitalization and redevelop‐
ment.  She has nearly 30 years of experience in market research and consult‐
ing with public and private sector clients on a broad spectrum of land use 
and real estate issues including commercial office, retail, industrial, and 
housing development and redevelopment projects in the Twin Cities Metro 
Area, the Upper Midwest, and across the country.  Mary is a licensed real 
estate broker in Minnesota and holds the Counselors of Real Estate designa‐
tion.  Mary has worked closely with non‐profits and communities in conduct‐
ing economic and fiscal impact analyses for large scale community redevel‐
opment projects and capital improvement developments.   
 


 


Joe Hollman, Senior Research Analyst, will serve as the project manager for 
the project.  As a former city planner and commercial real estate profession‐
al, Joe has over 15 years of experience in the research, analysis and presen‐
tation of data relevant to the real estate industry.  He has expertise in 
commercial real estate, housing, city planning, Geographic Information 
Systems mapping and demographic analysis. 
  
Prior to joining Maxfield Research, Joe was a member of the national re‐







Economic & Fiscal Impact Analysis 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin     


MAXFIELD RESEARCH INC.    3 


search team for Cushman & Wakefield, one of the world’s largest commer‐
cial real estate firms.  In this role, he authored nearly 100 reports focusing 
on the office, industrial and retail real estate markets in the Twin Cities 
Metropolitan Area.  Before joining the commercial real estate industry, Joe 
was a municipal planner for the following organizations:  City of Columbia 
Heights, Minnesota; Arrowhead Regional Development Commission in 
Duluth, Minnesota; and, Peoria County, Illinois.  As a planner, he contributed 
to the creation of multiple comprehensive plans, land use studies, zoning 
ordinances and site assessments. 
  
Joe has been the project manager for several commercial and industrial 
analyses over the past two years including a comprehensive retail analysis 
for the proposed Central Commons retail development in the City of Eagan, 
Industrial Market Analysis for the City of Amery, Wisconsin, Downtown 
Commercial and Residential Analysis for the City of Hugo, Minnesota.   
 


 
DESCRIPTION OR OUTLINE OF RESEARCH APPROACH 
 
It is our understanding that the primary objective of this analysis is to provide the City of 
Stoughton with an analysis of the potential economic and fiscal impacts of the proposed large 
scale commercial development, Kettle Park West, on the community.  The analysis is intended 
to identify the potential positive and negative impacts and the fiscal costs and benefits to the 
community. 
 
If there are negative impacts, recommendations will be made by the consultant to the City 
regarding the size and potential timeframe of these negative impacts.   
 
The hallmark of Maxfield Research Inc.’s research approach is a thoughtful, in‐depth combina‐
tion of primary and secondary research.  Primary research includes field work, personal inter‐
views, with developers, builders, real estate brokers, property managers, city and government 
agency staff, and others familiar with development factors in the local market.  Secondary 
research includes data obtained from reliable published sources including the Census Bureau, 
ESRI (a national demographics firm), and the Wisconsin Demographic Center, the Wisconsin 
Workforce Center and others.  
 
Secondary published data is always reviewed carefully in light of other local factors revealed 
through the primary research that may have an impact on the analysis.  The result is a custom 
analysis that provides the Client with information that is timely and locally pertinent. 
 
 







Economic & Fiscal Impact Analysis 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin     


MAXFIELD RESEARCH INC.    4 


SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
A.  Project Kickoff Meeting 


1.  Meet with City staff via conference call and to review project goals and objectives.  
Refine work program as needed. 


 
B.  Review of Past Studies/Planning Documents 


1.  Obtain information on past studies/planning documents or other research re‐
ports/publications with information pertinent to the assignment.  Review these doc‐
uments and identify information from these analyses that is important in completing 
the requested assessment.   


2.  Summarize information obtained from other documents and its impact on the cur‐
rent analysis; include conflicting information or document key issues and their rele‐
vance to the current project. 


 
C.  Economic Factors and Characteristics 


1. Identify the types of jobs to be created through the development of the proposed 
  commercial center.   
2. Estimate the number of full‐time (40 hours per week) and part‐time (less than 40 


hours per week) jobs created. 
3. Estimate the amount of local labor to be used in the construction of the project and 


in employment.  For the purposes of this analysis, local is defined as city or county 
residents or businesses.   


4. Include an analysis indicating the market proposed for the project and the area from 
which patrons will be attracted. 


5. Compare and evaluate the projected costs and benefits to the community resulting 
from the project including but not limited to: 


a. Projected costs arising from increased demand for and required improve‐
ments to public services and infrastructure including roadway improve‐
ments, sewer and water improvements and enhancements to capacity, 
costs of additional police, fire safety, building inspections, or other city ser‐
vices.  Include additional costs that may be required for emergency services 
not directly related to the city. 


b. Value of improvements to public services and infrastructure to be provided 
  by the project 
c. Projected tax revenues to the City to be generated by the project in the 


first five years.   
6. Conduct interviews with local city staff in building inspections, police, fire safety re‐


garding any potential required enhancements or additional costs in these depart‐
ments resulting from the new development.  Quantify any increased staffing or 
overtime costs for existing staff.   







Economic & Fiscal Impact Analysis 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin     


MAXFIELD RESEARCH INC.    5 


7. Identify current traffic volumes along adjacent roadways.  Identify increased traffic 
to the site based on average projected volumes for the type of development pro‐
posed. 


8. From the traffic analysis, identify costs associated with increased traffic to the de‐
velopment.  Identify the potential costs associated with needed improvements to 
signalization, highway or road improvements and the entity responsible for paying 
for those costs. 


9. Consider potential alternate uses for the proposed property and the potential 
timeframe to attract an alternate use to the Site. 


10. Discuss the implications of the findings on the City of Stoughton. 
 
D.    Competitive Retail Analysis 


1. Identify the primary and secondary trade areas for the proposed Kettle Park West 
Commercial development.  Identify the amount of draw from each of these areas 
separately. 


2. Identify the number and type of competitive facilities that exist within the primary 
and secondary trade areas, including but not limited to grocery stores, garden and 
landscaping supply centers, eye care centers, cell phone sales outlets, auto tire sales 
and service, auto repair services, pharmacy, general merchandise retailers, etc.   


3. Complete an analysis of the amount of leakage occurring in various retail categories.  
Compare leakage in the trade area with the proposed development.  Estimate the 
amount of leakage that would be captured back to the community through the pro‐
posed development. 


4. Identify the amount of revenue that may be lost to existing competitive facilities 
with the development of the proposed facility.  Identify how the proposed facility 
may impact specific businesses in the community and to what degree. 


5. Analyze data collected from the survey on rental rates, vacancies, year 
built/remodeled, building type, unit types and features, common area amenities, 
and resident profiles.  


6. Inventory any other pending retail developments and assess the potential impact to 
the market of other properties in addition to the proposed Kettle Park West. 


7. Conduct interview with the developer and other retailers proposed for the property.  
Identify types of jobs to be provided, wage rates for the types of jobs proposed, jobs 
available in Dane County and average wage rates, skill levels of jobs to be provided 
and match with skill levels of existing workers in the area.   


8. Discuss and analyze the potential impacts on existing retail trade in Stoughton.  
Identify and recommend potential mitigation factors for any negative impacts identi‐
fied.   


 
E.  Revenues Generated 


1. Identify the assessed land and building values for the proposed development 
through discussions with the City/County Assessor.   







Economic & Fiscal Impact Analysis 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin     


MAXFIELD RESEARCH INC.    6 


2. Compare commercial property values of similar types of developments in Stoughton.   
3. Identify the potential tax rates for the proposed development and the amount of 


taxes to be generated based on an estimated assessed value of the land and build‐
ings and an estimated increase in assessed value over time.     


4.  Provide estimates of the amount of taxes to be generated by the proposed devel‐
opment over a five‐year timeframe.   


5.  Discuss the implications of the findings on the community. 
 


F.  Mitigation Measures 
    1.  Based on the analysis, identify the major potential impacts to the community, 


positive and negative.  Compare/contrast the positive and negative impacts and 
quantify those where possible.   


    2.  Recommend mitigation measures to be undertaken to reduce negative impacts 
  to the community.   


 
G.  Meetings and Client Contact 


1. One kick‐off meeting with Client (via conference call). 
2. Review of Draft report with Client and other stakeholders (via Skype or conference 


call).  
3. One formal presentation to address findings of the analysis (in person). 
4. Report preparation. 


 
 
INFORMATION/ACCESS TO VARIOUS DOCUMENTS 
 
In order to complete the analysis, Maxfield Research Inc. will require that information be 
provided to us by the City, other public agencies or the developer of the Kettle Park West 
Commercial Development.  This will include but is not limited to: 
 


 Assessor’s data 


 Traffic Volume Data for adjacent roadways 


 Tax Rates for City of Stoughton and Dane County 


 Estimated infrastructure costs for various improvements 


 Access to construction cost data and builder information from Client 


 Other proprietary data as needed 
 
We expect that we would receive this information free of charge.  If there is a charge to obtain 
this information, that would be billed back to the Client at our direct cost. 
 
 
PROPOSED BUDGET FOR ECONOMIC AND FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 
 







Economic & Fiscal Impact Analysis 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin     


MAXFIELD RESEARCH INC.    7 


The following table outlines our proposed budget to complete the analysis and provide the 
requested deliverables for the project.  Work completed on any assignment is billed to the 
Client monthly as costs are incurred. 
 
The proposed Economic and Fiscal Impact Analysis is proposed to be completed for a cost of 
Fifteen Thousand Five Hundred Twenty‐Five Dollars ($15,525.00), plus the direct costs for 10 
printed copies of the final report and travel expenses for a formal presentation of the findings 
of the analysis for a total cost of $16.525.00. 
 
Any research tasks and/or meeting time requested by the Client beyond the scope of the 
services outlined herein will be charged in addition at our standard hourly rates for staff time 
which range from $55 to $150 per hour. 
 


Project


Mary  Joe Phyll is Maxfield Totals


Bujold Hollman Austin Research


President Sr. Analyst Support Total


Economic and Fiscal Impact Analysis


A. Project Kick‐off Meeting 1 1 0 2 $275


B. Review of Previous Studies 2 3 0 5 $675


C. Economic Factors and Characteristics 4 16 0 20 $2,600


D Competitive Retail Analysis 4 22 0 26 $3,350


E. Revenues Generated 1 4 0 5 $650


F Mitigation Measures 4 8 0 12 $1,600


J. Meetings and Presentations 10 3 0 13 $1,875


K. Document Preparation 8 24 6 38 $4,500


Total Hours 34 81 6 121 242


(times) Hourly Rate $150 $125 $50


Total Cost for Staff Time $5,100 $10,125 $300 $15,525 $15,525


Cost for 10 Copies of Report @ $65/each $650


Cost for Travel Expenses for Presentation $350


Total Cost for Staff Time and All Expenses $16,525


Note:  Travel  Expenses  include mileage, meals  and overnight hotel  stay.


Project Task


PROPOSED BUDGET


ECONOMIC AND FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS‐KETTLE PARK WEST


Maxfield Research Inc. Staff


 







Economic & Fiscal Impact Analysis 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin     


MAXFIELD RESEARCH INC.    8 


An initial payment in the amount of Seven Thousand Seven Hundred Dollars ($7,700.00), will be 
required along with an executed copy of this agreement prior to commencement of work by 
Maxfield Research Inc. 
 
 
DELIVERABLES 
 
As requested, ten bound copies of the report will be provided to the Client including one 
electronic copy in PDF format and are included in the project budget. 
 
 
PROPOSED COMPLETION SCHEDULE 
 
The following outlines our proposed completion schedule for the requested analysis.  The 
Scope of Services outlined above would be completed in draft form within 60 to 75 days of the 
execution of a contract agreement with the Client unless delayed by unexpected emergencies, 
forces beyond the control of the parties, or by written agreement of the parties.   
 
Completion Timeframe 


 


Project Tasks Wk 1 Wk 2 Wk 3 Wk 4 Wk 1 Wk 2 Wk 3 Wk 4 Wk 1 Wk 2 Wk 3 Wk 4 Wk 1 Wk 2 Wk 3 Wk 4


Project Overview and Initial  Meeting


Review of Past Studies


Economic Factors  and Characteristics


Competitive Retail  Analysis


Revenues  Generated


Mitigation Measures


Preparation of Draft Document


Formal  Presentation of Findings


PROPOSED COMPLETION TIMEFRAME


ECONOMIC AND FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS‐KETTLE PARK WEST


* We would deliver a final  of the report within 14 days after receiving feedback on the draft report.


Month 1 Month 2 Month 3 Month 4


 
 
 
PAYMENT 
 
All invoices are payable to Maxfield Research Inc., within fifteen (15) days of receipt of an 
invoice showing the work completed and the direct costs for expenses. All invoices are sent out 
via email.  A finance charge of one and one‐half percent (1.5%) per month will be added to the 
unpaid balance of each invoice not paid within thirty (30) days. 
 







Economic & Fiscal Impact Analysis 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin     


MAXFIELD RESEARCH INC.    9 


DISCLAIMER 
 
The objective of this research assignment is to gather and analyze as many market components 
as is reasonable within the time limits and projected staff hours set forth in this agreement.   
 
We assume no responsibility for matters legal in character. 
 
Certain information and statistics contained in the report, which are the basis for conclusions 
continued in the report, will be furnished by other independent sources.  While we believe this 
information is reliable, it has not been independently verified by us and we assume no 
responsibility for its accuracy. 
 
The conclusions in the report are based on our best judgments as market research consultants.  
Maxfield Research Inc. disclaims any express or implied warranty of assurance of 
representation that the projections or conclusions will be realized as stated.  The result of the 
proposed project may be achieved, but also may vary due to changing market conditions 
characteristic of the real estate/banking industry, changes in facts that were the basis of con‐
clusions in this report, or other unforeseen circumstances. 
 
This agreement will be construed according to the laws of the State of Minnesota. 
 
 
TERMINATION 
 
This agreement may be terminated upon written notification of either party to the other.  In 
the event of termination, the Client will pay Maxfield Research Inc. for staff hours performed at 
the firm's normal hourly rates, plus all expenses incurred through the date of termination. 
 
If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign and return one copy to the offices of 
Maxfield Research Inc. 
 
Agreed to this                       day of                                     2014. 
 
MAXFIELD RESEARCH INC.  CITY OF STOUGHTON 


 
                                                              
 
Mary C. Bujold  By:     
 
President   Its:   







Economic & Fiscal Impact Analysis 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin     


MAXFIELD RESEARCH INC.    10 


ADDENDA







Economic & Fiscal Impact Analysis 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin     


MAXFIELD RESEARCH INC.    11 


SELECTED ECONOMIC AND FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSES 
 
Fiscal Impact Analysis for the City of Brookfield, Wisconsin 
 
Maxfield Research Inc. working in conjunction with the Cuningham Group, an architectural and 
land use planning firm in Minneapolis, was requested to provide a fiscal impact analysis to 
determine the economic benefits and costs to the City for the development of residential, 
commercial and industrial uses.  The analysis identified the potential increase to public services, 
infrastructure and tax base resulting from each of the different types of development in the 
community.  Figures were provided for current year and an estimate was given regarding 
inflation over a period of ten years. 
 
Economic Impact Analysis for the Children’s Theater of Minneapolis, Minnesota 
 
The Children’s Theater of Minneapolis was undertaking a capital campaign to raise funds for a 
complete renovation of the theater lobby and expansion of the theater to incorporate addi‐
tional performance and rehearsal spaces.  The Children’s Theater of Minneapolis is one of the 
preeminent children’s theater companies in the United States.  The economic impact analysis 
identified the impacts to Minneapolis and to the Twin Cities Metropolitan Region of the con‐
struction impacts and increased customer attendance and increased number of jobs produced 
as a result of the construction and permanent improvements to the theater.   
 
Economic Impact Analysis for NorthPointe Health Care Center, Minneapolis, Minnesota 
 
NorthPointe Health Care Center is a clinic located in North Minneapolis that provides a full 
range of out‐patient affordable health care services to a diverse population.  The demand for 
NorthPointe’s services has grown exponentially since its inception and its physical facilities are 
strained.  NorthPointe had proposed to construct a new clinic building, administrative offices 
and parking ramp on property adjacent to its existing facilities.  The economic impact analysis 
documented the impacts to the community of the construction and the expansion of health 
care services to the community, current and future retail impacts of hiring additional employ‐
ees and the number and types of jobs that would be incorporated for the new facilities.  Cur‐
rent year and projected impacts for a period of ten years were provided. 







Our Clients 


Public Sector—recommenda ons provide 


decision makers a guide to future planning. 


Strategic counsel on market trends and real 


estate ac vi es assists clients with a value 


added service 


 


Private Sector—provides clients with 


objec ve and unbiased advice to posi on 


themselves to maximize opportunity and 


reduce risk 


 


Ins tu onal Sector—extensive experience 


serving broad spectrum of clients with 


unique organiza onal needs. 


30 years of  Experience 
Offering Solutions to your 


Real Estate Challenges 


Examples of Our Services 


Residen al—Assist with informa on on mul family, senior housing, tax credit, master planned communi es, residen al scenarios and more. 


 


Commercial—Analysis for retail, office, industrial and hotel space working with private developers on specific projects 


 


Land Use—Highest and best use assessments, redevelopment and development issues, collabora ng with planning consultants to provide 


market data and support land use recommenda ons. 


 


Special—Providing expert tes mony and li ga on support, economic impact analysis, financial pro‐formas, etc. 


 


Consul ng Services—custom analysis according to specific needs, specified aspects regarding floor plans, unit mix, premium pricing 


assessments, compe ve shopping and more. 


Research that breaks ground…. 


1221 Nicollet Avenue 


Suite 218 


Minneapolis, MN  55403 


www.maxfieldresearch.com 


MAXFIELD RESEARH INC.  


Phone: 612-338-0012 
Fax: 612-904-7979 


Our Staff 
 


Mary Bujold, President 
 
Ma  Mullins, Vice President & 
Business Development 
 
Joe Hollman, Sr. Research Analyst 
 
Brian Smith,  Sr. Research Analyst 
 
David Sajevic  Research Analyst 
 
Rob Wilder, Research Analyst 
 
Mace Wesco , Research Analyst 
 
Phyllis Aus n Office Manager 


Maxfield Research Inc. is a full‐service research firm providing mely and 
comprehensive real estate market informa on and analysis that is cri cal to 
the success of our clients. With 30 years of experience in real estate market 
feasibility and consul ng, our exper se enables us to offer solu ons to difficult 
challenges. We assess the needs of each project, an cipate problems and pro‐
vide solu ons. We work closely with each 
client to assure our research data and analysis provide exactly the  
informa on needed in planning and developing new projects. We 
provide customized studies designed to deliver strategic framework for each of 
our clients’ objec ves to op mize land use and value of their real estate needs. 
 
Developing dynamic rela onships and delivering strategic solu ons has earned 
us our clients’ confidence in our exper se. Our broad experience and varied 
customer base includes public, private and ins tu onal clients seeking crucial 
informa on in making decisions regarding the latest trends in the real estate 
industry. 
 
Maxfield Research Inc. is a local, regional, na onal and interna onal player in 
the real estate consul ng industry. 







Phone: 612-338-0012 
Fax: 612-904-7979 
E-mail: mbujold@maxfieldresearch.com 


1221 Nicollet Avenue 
Suite 218 
Minneapolis, MN  55403 
www.maxfieldresearch.com 


Maxfield Research Inc. 


Organization Maxfield Research Inc. 
Research that breaks ground…. 


 


General Background 
 
Mary has almost 30 years of experience in real estate 
research and consul ng and is considered a market 
expert in the field of residen al real estate and in market 
analysis for financial ins tu ons. She regularly tes fies as 
an expert witness for eminent domain, tax appeal and 
other types of real estate li ga on. 
 
As President, she heads projects for large‐scale land use 
and redevelopment studies including downtown 
revitaliza on for private developers and municipali es as 
well as private developers and universi es on their 
student housing needs. 
   
Mary frequently gives presenta ons at seminars and 
workshop sessions on current real estate market topics.  Mary Bujold 


President Experience 
 
Large‐Scale Redevelopment 
Master‐Planned Communi es 
Rental Housing 
Condominium Housing 
Senior Housing  
Student Housing 
Financial Ins tu ons 
Expert Tes mony and Li ga on Support 
Comprehensive Housing Needs 
Retail Analysis 
Downtown Revitaliza on 
Industrial Analysis 
Fiscal Impact Analysis 


 


Professional Designa on and Appointments 
Counselors of Real Estate (CRE) 
CRE Board of Directors – 2‐year term 
Editor‐Real Estate Issues Journal 
Housing Development Commi ee‐Project for Pride in 
Living 


 


Professional Organiza ons 
Counselors of Real Estate (CRE) 
Na onal Associa on of Realtors (NAR) 
Minnesota Associa on of Realtors (MAR) 
Minneapolis Area Associa on of Realtors (MAAR) 
Na onal Historic Trust – Main Street Center 


 


Educa on 
Bachelor of Arts in Business Administra on  
Marque e University 
 
Masters of Business Administra on 
University of Minnesota 
 


 


 







Phone: 612-338-0012 
Fax: 612-904-7979 
E-mail: jhollman@maxfieldresearch.com 


1221 Nicollet Avenue 
Suite 218 
Minneapolis, MN  55403 
www.maxfieldresearch.com 


Maxfield Research Inc. 


Organization Maxfield Research Inc. 
Research that breaks ground…. 


 


General Background 
 
As a former city planner and commercial real estate 
professional, Joe has  over 15 years of experience in the 
research, analysis and presenta on of data relevant to 
the real estate industry.  He has exper se in commercial 
real estate, housing, city planning, Geographic 
Informa on Systems mapping and demographic 
analysis. 
 
Prior to joining Maxfield Research, Joe was a member of 
the na onal research team for Cushman & Wakefield, 
one of the world’s largest commercial real estate firms.  
In this role, he authored nearly 100 reports focusing on 
the office, industrial and retail real estate markets in the 
Twin Ci es Metropolitan Area.  Before joining the 
commercial real estate industry, Joe was a municipal 
planner for the following organiza ons:  City of 
Columbia Heights, Minnesota; Arrowhead Regional 
Development Commission in Duluth, Minnesota; 
and, Peoria County, Illinois.  As a planner, he 
contributed to the crea on of mul ple 
comprehensive plans, land use studies, zoning 
ordinances and site assessments. 


Joe Hollman 
Sr. Research Analyst 


Experience 
 
Retail, Office and Industrial 
General Occupancy Rental Housing 
Market Poten al Analyses 
Comprehensive Housing Plans 
Senior Housing and Re rement Communi es 
For‐Sale Housing 
Student Housing 


Educa on 


Bachelor of Science in Geography 
University of Wisconsin at La Crosse 
 


 







 
 


 


 


 


999 Fourier Dr. Suite 201 


Madison, WI 53717 


(608) 826-0532 phone 


(608) 826-0530 FAX 


www.vierbicher.com 


vision to reality 
 


R e e d s b u r g  ( 6 0 8 )  5 2 4 - 6 4 6 8  |  M a d i s o n  ( 6 0 8 )  8 2 6 - 0 5 3 2  |  P r a i r i e  d u  C h i e n  ( 6 0 8 )  3 2 6 - 1 0 5 1  


 


 


March 25, 2014 


 


Donna Olson, Mayor 


City of Stoughton  


381 E. Main Street 


Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


Re: Proposal to Provide Economic Development Consulting Services: 


 Assess the Economic & Fiscal Impacts of Kettle Park West 


 


Dear Mayor Olson: 


 


Vierbicher Associates, Inc. (Consultant) is pleased to submit this Agreement to provide Economic 


Development Consulting Services to the City of Stoughton (Client). 


 


I. PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 


 


Consultant will assess the economic and fiscal impacts of the proposed Kettle Park West 


development consistent with the standards established in municipal ordinance Section 78-


205(11)(e)3. 


 


II. SCOPE OF SERVICES 


 


A. Economic and Fiscal Impact Assessment 


  


Consultant shall analyze and report on the economic and fiscal impact of the proposed 


project including the following: 


 Types of jobs created; 


 An estimate of the number of full-time and part-time jobs created; 


 An estimate of the amount of local labor to be used in the construction of the 


project and in employment; 


 An analysis of the market and trade area for the proposed project; 


 An estimate of the projected costs arising from increased demand for, and 


required improvements to, public services and infrastructure; 


 An estimate of the value of improvements to public services and infrastructure to 


be provided by the project; 


 An estimate of the tax revenues to the City to be generated by the project in the 


first five years. 


 


B. Mitigation and Leveraging Project Impacts 


 
Consultant shall propose measures to mitigate adverse impacts and/or maximize positive 


impacts including provision of infrastructure or public services improvements sufficient to 







March 25, 2014 


Page 2 of 3 


 


  


support the project. Any adverse impacts that cannot be mitigated shall be identified. 


Mitigation measures to be implemented by the project developer shall be identified. 


 


C. Stakeholder Outreach & Public Meetings 


 


Effective impact assessment requires both a qualitative and a quantitative approach.  


As part of the study methodology, Consultant proposes to interview up to 20 stakeholders 


– businesses, property owners, local government officials, developers, and individuals 


who believe they will be impacted by the proposed project.  Stakeholder concerns 


about potential impacts – positive and negative – will be noted and addressed as 


appropriate.   


 


A presentation of the study results will be made at a public meeting to be scheduled by 


the Client. 


 


D. Additional Services if Requested by Client 


 


If requested by Client, Consultant is prepared to provide the following additional 


services: 


 


Attend meetings in addition to those defined in this scope of service. 


 


III. INFORMATION PROVIDED BY OTHERS 


 


In order to complete the above-described scope of services, the following shall be provided by 


the Client: 


A. Appropriate background information relating to the proposed project. 


B. Information related to capacity of existing infrastructure, as well as any studies or cost 


estimates related to improving the capacity of existing infrastructure. 


C. Names and contact information of stakeholders to be interviewed. 


 


IV. SCHEDULE 


 


The proposed scope of services will be completed within three months of receipt of Client’s 


authorization to proceed. 


 


V. SCHEDULE OF DELIVERABLES 


 


The following deliverables will be provided to the Client during the course of the project: 


A. A report documenting the findings and recommendations resulting from the scope of 


services. 


B.  A presentation to be delivered at a public meeting. 


 
VI. DESIGNATION OF RESPONSIBLE PARTIES 


 


The designated responsible parties representing the Client and Consultant, respectively, shall 


have authority to transmit instructions, receive information, and render decisions relative to the 


project on behalf of each respective party. 


 


Overall coordination and project supervision for Consultant is the responsibility of Gary Becker, 


CEcD, Project Manager.  He, along with other personnel, will provide the services required for 


the various aspects of the project.  Please direct all communications that have a substantive 


impact on the project to Gary. 


 







March 25, 2014 


Page 3 of 3 


 


  


The Client designates _______________ as its representative.  Consultant will direct all 


communications that have a substantive impact on the project to the Client’s representative, 


and his/her responses shall be binding on the Client. 


 


VII. FEES 


 


A. The fixed fee to provide the scope of services described herein is $17,500. 


B. This fee assumes that the work will be completed within the time frame set forth herein.  If 


significant delays to the project occur, which are not due to the negligence of the 


Consultant including, by way of example and not limitation, decisions of the Client, 


regulatory approvals, deferrals to the next construction season or calendar year, etc., 


the Consultant reserves the right to negotiate and adjust an appropriate change to the 


fee. 


C. Reimbursable expenses are included in the above stated fee. 


  
VIII. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 


The General Terms and Conditions dated 10/16/12 and attached hereto are incorporated 


herein by reference. 


 


We appreciate the opportunity to work with you on this project.  If this Agreement is acceptable to you, 


please sign the Authorization below and return one copy to me.  Should you have any questions or 


require any additional information, please feel free to contact us. 


 


Sincerely, 


  


 


Gary Becker, CEcD 


Project Manager 


 


Enclosure: General Terms & Conditions 


 


AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED 


 


In witness whereof the parties have made and executed this Agreement as of the day and year written 


below. 


 


Client       Consultant 


 


              


Donna Olson, Mayor     Gary Becker, CEcD, Planning Segment Manager 


City of Stoughton     Vierbicher Associates, Inc. 


381 E. Main St.      999 Fourier Drive, Suite 201 


Stoughton, WI 53589     Madison, WI 53717 


 


        3/25/14     


Date       Date 


              


Witness       Witness 


 


© 2014 Vierbicher Associates, Inc. 


 
 M:\Stoughton, City of\Kettle West Development Impact Study 2014\Proposal & Budget\Stoughton KPW Econ & Fis Impact Proposal 0314.docx 







Rev. 10/16/12  


Page 1 of 3 
(General Terms and Conditions) 


W:\Standard Contracts\GeneralTerms and Cond Rev 1012-HVC.doc 


VIERBICHER ASSOCIATES, INC. (CONSULTANT) 
 GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICES 


 
1. Services Not Provided as Part of This Contract 
 


Environmental studies, resident construction observation services, 
archaeological investigations, soil borings, flood plain analysis, 
wetland delineations, public hearing representation, easements, 
property descriptions or surveys, negotiations for property rights 
acquisitions, and other detailed studies or investigations, unless 
specifically identified in this Agreement for Services, are not 
included as part of this work.   


 
2. Hazardous Environmental Conditions 
 


Unless specifically identified in this Agreement for Services, it is 
acknowledged by both parties that Consultant’s scope of services 
does not include any services  related to the discovery, 
identification, presence, handling, removal, transportation, or 
remediation at the site, or the inspection and testing of hazardous 
materials, such as asbestos, mold, lead paint, PCBs, petroleum, 
hazardous waste, or radioactive materials.  Client acknowledges 
that Consultant is performing professional services for Client, and 
Consultant is not and shall not be required to become an “arranger,” 
“operator,” “generator” or “transporter” of hazardous substances as 
defined in the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation, and Liability Act of 1990 (CERCLA).  If Client is the 
owner of the project site, Client shall defend, indemnify and hold 
Consultant harmless from and against any CERCLA-based claims. 


 
3. Additional Services 
 


The Scope of Services in this Agreement is intended to cover 
services normally required for this type of project.  However, 
occasionally events occur beyond the control of the Consultant or 
the Client that create a need for additional services beyond those 
required for a standard contract. 


 
The Consultant and/or Client shall promptly and in a timely manner 
bring to the attention of the other the potential need to change the 
Scope of Services set forth above, necessitated by a change in the 
Scope of Project, Scope of Services, or the Schedule.  When a 
change in the Scope of Services, Schedule, or Fees is agreed to by 
the Consultant and Client, it shall be initiated by written 
authorization of both parties. 


 
4. Client’s Responsibility  
 


A. Provide Consultant with all criteria and full information as to 
Client’s requirements for the project, including design 
objectives and constraints, capacity and performance 
requirements, flexibility, expandability, and any budgetary 
limitations; furnish previous plans, studies and other 
information relevant to the project; furnish copies of all design 
and construction standards which Client will require to be 
included in the drawings and specifications; and furnish copies 
of Client’s standard forms, and conditions, including insurance 
requirements and related documents for Consultant to include 
in the bidding documents, or otherwise when applicable. 


 
B. Furnish to Consultant any other information pertinent to the 


project including reports and data relative to previous designs, 
or investigations at or adjacent to the site, including hazardous 
environmental conditions and other data such as reports, 
investigations, actions or citations. 


 
C. Arrange for safe access to and make all provisions for 


Consultant to enter upon public and private property as 
required for Consultant to perform services under this 
Agreement. 


 
D. Examine all alternate solutions, studies, reports, sketches, 


drawings, specifications, proposals, and other documents 
presented by Consultant and render timely decisions 
pertaining thereto. 


 


E. For projects involving construction, attend any pre-bid 
conference, bid opening, pre-construction conferences, 
construction progress and other job related meetings, and 
substantial completion and final payment inspections. 


 
F. For projects involving construction, if more than one prime 


contract is to be awarded for the work designed or specified by 
Consultant, designate a person or entity to have authority and 
responsibility for coordinating the activities among the various 
prime contractors, and define and set forth in writing the 
duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such 
individual or entity and the relation thereof to the duties, 
responsibilities, and authority of Consultant.  


 
G. For projects involving construction, if Client designates a 


Construction Manager or an individual or entity other than, or 
in addition to, Consultant to represent Client at the site, the 
Client shall define and set forth in writing the duties, 
responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such other party 
and the relation thereof to the duties, responsibilities, and 
authority of Consultant and make a part of this Agreement.   


 
H. Provide information relative to all concealed conditions, 


subsurface conditions, soil conditions, as-built information, and 
other site boundary conditions. Consultant shall be entitled to 
rely upon the accuracy and completeness of such information. 


 
5. General Considerations (for projects involving construction) 
 


A. Consultant shall not at any time supervise, direct, or have 
control over any contractor’s work, nor shall Consultant have 
authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, 
techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected 
or used by any contractor, for safety precautions and programs 
incident to a contractor’s work progress, nor for any failure of 
any contractor to comply with laws and regulations applicable 
to contractor’s work. 


 
B. Consultant neither guarantees the performance of any 


contractor nor assumes responsibility for any contractor’s 
failure to furnish and perform its work in accordance with the 
contract between Owner and such contractor. 


 
C. Consultant shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of 


any contractor, subcontractor or supplier, or of any contractor’s 
agents or employees or any other persons (except 
Consultant’s own employees) at the project site or otherwise 
furnishing or performing any of construction work; or for any 
decision made on interpretations or clarifications of the 
construction contract given by Owner without consultation and 
advice of Consultant. 
 


6. Fees 
  


A. The fees set forth in this Agreement are based on the 
assumption that the work will be completed within the time 
frame set forth herein.  If significant delays to the project occur, 
which are not due to the negligence of the Consultant, e.g. 
decisions of the Client, regulatory approvals, deferrals to the 
next construction season or calendar year, etc., the Consultant 
reserves the right to negotiate and adjust an appropriate 
change to the fees. 


 
B. Consultant may submit invoices monthly for work completed to 


date.  Fixed fees will be submitted on the basis of percent of 
the Scope of Services completed.  Estimated fees will be 
submitted on the basis of time and expense incurred in 
accordance with Consultant’s fee schedule in effect at the time 
the costs are incurred. 


 
C. Invoices are due upon receipt.  For invoices not paid after 30 


days, interest will accrue at the rate of 1 ½% per month. 
Payments will be credited first to interest and then to principal.  
In the event any portion of the account remains unpaid after 90 







Rev. 10/16/12  


Page 2 of 3 
(General Terms and Conditions) 


W:\Standard Contracts\GeneralTerms and Cond Rev 1012-HVC.doc 


days after the billing, Consultant may initiate collection action 
and the Client shall be responsible for all costs of collection, 
including reasonable attorneys’ fees.  As a matter of business 
practice, Consultant would intend to file lien rights against the 
property if payment is not received before lien rights would 
expire.  Consultant shall have the right to suspend its services 
without any liability arising out of or related to such suspension 
in the event invoices are not paid within 30 days of receipt. 
 


D. When estimates of fees or expenses are quoted, they are 
simply that, estimates.  Actual costs invoiced may be higher or 
lower due to actual fees or expenses incurred.  When fees or 
expenses are anticipated to be higher or lower than estimated, 
Consultant will make every effort to inform you in a timely 
manner, even prior to incurring the costs, if possible. 


 
E. Consultant will bill additional services, if requested, in 


accordance with the fee schedule in effect at the time the work 
is performed or as otherwise negotiated.  


 
7. Dispute Resolution 
 


In the event a dispute shall develop between the Client and the 
Consultant arising out of or related to this Agreement, the Client and 
Consultant agree to use the following process to resolve the 
dispute: 


 
A. The Client and Consultant agree to first negotiate all disputes 


between them in good faith for a period of at least 30 days 
from notice first being served in writing to the Client or 
Consultant of the dispute. 


 
B. If the Client and Consultant are unable to resolve the dispute 


by negotiation as described above, the Client and Consultant 
agree to submit the dispute to non-binding mediation.  Such 
mediation shall be conducted in accordance with Construction 
Industry Dispute Resolution procedures of the American 
Arbitration Association. 


 
C. If the Client and Consultant are unable to resolve the dispute 


by negotiation or by mediation, they are free to utilize whatever 
other legal remedies are available to settle the dispute. 


 
8. Insurance 
 


A. Consultant 
 
Consultant maintains general liability and property insurance; 
vehicle liability; and workers’ compensation coverage meeting 
state and federal mandates.  Consultant also carries 
professional liability insurance.  Certificates of Insurance will 
be provided upon written request. 


 
B. Client 


 
The Client shall procure and maintain, at its expense, general 
liability, property insurance and, if appropriate, workers’ 
compensation and builders risk insurance. Client waives all 
claims against the Consultant arising out of losses or damages 
to the extent such losses or damages are covered by the 
foregoing insurance policies maintained by the Client.   


 
C. Contractor 


 
 The Consultant shall procure from the Contractor, as directed 


by the Client and/or as provided in the Scope of Services, 
Certificates of Insurance for the type and amounts as directed 
by the Client, and shall require the Contractor to name the 
Consultant as an additional insured under the Contractor’s 
general and auto liability policies.  


 
9. Limitations of Liability/Indemnity 
 


A. In recognition of the relative risks, rewards and benefits of the 
project to both the Client and Consultant, the risks have been 
allocated such that the Client agrees that, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, the Consultant’s total aggregate liability to 
the Client for any and all injuries, damages, claims, losses or 


expenses arising out of this Agreement from any cause or 
causes, shall not exceed the limits of Consultant’s professional 
liability insurance policy, not including reimbursable 
subconsultant fees and expenses.  Such causes include, but 
are not limited to, Consultant’s negligence, errors, omissions, 
strict liability, breach of contract or breach of express or 
implied warranty. 


 


B. Client and Consultant each agree to indemnify and hold the 
other harmless, and their respective officers and employees 
from and against liability for losses, damages and expenses, 
including reasonable attorneys’ fees, to the extent they are 
caused by the indemnifying party’s negligent acts, errors or 
omissions.  In the event claims, losses, damages or expenses 
are caused by the joint or concurrent negligence of Client and 
Consultant, they shall be borne by each party in proportion to 
its negligence. 


 
C. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, 


impose, or give rise to any duty owed by Client or Consultant 
to any contractor, subcontractor, supplier, other individual or 
entity, or to any surety for or employee or any of them.  
 
All duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this 
Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of Client 
and Consultant and not for the benefit of any other party. 
 


10. Use of Documents 
  


All documents prepared or furnished by consultant pursuant to this 
Agreement are instruments of Consultant’s professional service, 
and Consultant shall retain an ownership and property interest 
therein, including all copyrights.  Consultant grants Client a license 
to use instruments of Consultant’s professional service for the 
purpose of planning, constructing, occupying or maintaining the 
project or as otherwise intended.  Reuse or modification of any such 
documents by Client, without Consultant’s written permission and 
professional involvement in the applicable reuse or modification, 
shall be at Client’s sole risk, and Client agrees to waive all claims 
against and defend, indemnify and hold Consultant harmless from 
all claims, damages and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising 
out of such reuse by Client or by others acting through Client.  


 
11. Survey Stakes for Construction (for projects involving 


construction) 
 


Stakes placed by Consultant for use by the Contractor shall only be 
used for the specific purpose indicated.  Any use of stakes by the 
Client for purposes other than indicated and/or communicated by 
the Consultant, without Consultant’s written permission, shall be at 
Client’s sole risk, and Client agrees to indemnify and hold 
Consultant harmless for all claims, damages and expense, including 
attorneys’ fees, arising out of such unauthorized used by Client or 
others acting through Client. 


 
12. Use of Electronic Media 
 


Copies of documents that may be relied upon by Client are limited 
to the printed copies (also known as hard copies) that are signed or 
sealed by Consultant except for electronic copies of documents 
available for printing by Contractors during bidding and/or 
construction from QuestCDN.com or as specified in this Agreement 
for Services or as specifically indicated in writing by Consultant.  
Files in electronic formats, or other types of information furnished by 
Consultant to Client such as text, data or graphics, are only for 
convenience of Client.  Any conclusion or information obtained or 
derived from such electronic files will be at the user’s sole risk.  
When transferring documents in electronic formats, Consultant 
makes no representations as to long-term compatibility, usability, or 
readability of documents resulting form the use of software 
application packages, operating systems or computer hardware 
differing from those in use by Consultant at the beginning of the 
project. 


 
13. Opinions of Cost 
 


When included in Consultant’s scope of services, opinions or 
estimates of probable construction cost are prepared on the basis of 
Consultant’s experience and qualifications and represent 







Rev. 10/16/12  


Page 3 of 3 
(General Terms and Conditions) 


W:\Standard Contracts\GeneralTerms and Cond Rev 1012-HVC.doc 


Consultant’s judgment as a professional generally familiar with the 
industry.  However, since Consultant has no control over the cost of 
labor, materials, equipment or services furnished by others, over 
contractor’s methods of determining prices, or over competitive 
bidding or market conditions,  Consultant cannot and does not 
guarantee that proposals, bids, or the actual construction cost will 
not vary from Consultant’s opinions or estimates of probable 
construction cost. 


 
14. Standard of Care 
 


The Standard of Care for all professional services performed or 
furnished by Consultant under this Agreement will be the skill and 
care used by members of Consultant’s profession practicing under 
similar circumstances or similar scope of services at the same time 
and in the same locality.  Consultant makes no warranties, express 
or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with 
Consultant’s services. 


 
15. Termination  
   


The obligation to provide further services under this Agreement may 
be terminated: 


 
A. For Cause 


 
1. By either party upon 30 days written notice in the event of 


substantial failure by the other party to perform in 
accordance with the terms hereof, through no fault of the 
terminating party.  The failing party shall have the right, 
within 30 days, to correct or remedy the cited failures. 


 
2. By Consultant 
   


a. Upon seven days written notice if Consultant 
believes that he is being requested by Client to 
furnish or perform services contrary to Consultant’s 
responsibilities as a licensed professional.  
Consultant shall have no liability to Client on account 
of such termination. 


 
b. Upon seven days written notice if the Consultant’s 


services for the project are delayed or suspended for 
more than 90 days for reasons beyond Consultant’s 
control. 


 
c. Upon seven days written notice if the Client has 


failed to pay for previous services rendered and/or if 
his account is more than 60 days past due. 


 
B. To Discontinue Project 


 
By Client effective upon the receipt of notice by Consultant. 


 
C. Reimbursement for Services 


 
Consultant shall be reimbursed for all services and expenses 
rightfully incurred prior to termination.   


 
16. Force Majeure 
 


Neither party shall be deemed in default of this Agreement to the 
extent that any delay of failure in the performance of its obligations 
results from any cause beyond its reasonable control and without its 
negligence.  This shall include mass illness caused by a pandemic 
and potential government pronouncement of the pandemic. 


 
17. Successors Assigns and Beneficiaries 
 


A. Client and Consultant each is hereby bound and the partners, 
successors, executors, administrators and legal 
representatives of Client and Consultant are hereby bound to 
the other party by this Agreement and to the partners, 
successors, executors administrators and legal 
representatives (and said assigns) of such other party, in 
respect of all covenants, agreements and obligations of this 
Agreement.  


 


B. Neither Client nor Consultant may assign, sublet, or transfer 
any rights under or interest (including, but without limitation, 
moneys that are due or may become due) in this Agreement 
without the written consent of the other, except to the extent 
that any assignment, subletting, or transfer is mandated or 
restricted by law.  Unless specifically stated to the contrary in 
any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will 
release or discharge the assignor from any duty of responsibility 
under this Agreement.  


 
18. Controlling Laws 
 


This Agreement is to be governed by the laws of the state in which 
the project is located. 





		Cover Letter-Request for Proposals.pdf

		Gibbs Planning Group Proposal March 2014.pdf

		Maxfield Research Proposal- March 2014.pdf

		Maxfield - statement of Qualifications update 2013 match bios.pdf

		Maxfield Researh Inc.



		mbujold 2013 bio.pdf

		Maxfield Research Inc.

		Maxfield Research Inc.



		jhollman 2013 bio.pdf

		Maxfield Research Inc.

		Maxfield Research Inc.





		Vierbicher Proposal - March 2014.pdf






Ç StafÍo rd Rose nb,?,y,T','


To


From


Date


Re


Mayor Donna Olson


Matt Dregne, City Attorney Ø
August 29,2011


Filling a Vacancy in the Office of Alderperson


Member of LEGUS lntemationd Netuork. of Lau Finu


Milwaukee Office


This memo outlines the options and procedure for filling avacaîcy in the office of alderperson.


1. Options for filling the vacancy.


The Common Council may appoint a person to fill the vacancy until a successor is
elected and qualified. The time at which a successor would legally have to be
elected varies, depending on when the vacancy occurs. The statue is difficult to
interpret. We have attached a timeline that illustrates when a successor could be
elected, based on the date of the vacancy. Note that if a vacancy occurs after June


1 of the second year of an alderperson's term, the successor would be elected at
the next regular April election.


While there is an argument that a vaçaîcy must be filled, I believe the better
argument is that the Common Council may chose to leave the seat vacant until a


successor is chosen in the next regular election coinciding with the expiration of
that offices term.


2. Method of appointing a person to fill the vacancy.


a. The Common Council may determine its own procedure for nominating
candidates and selecting a person to fill the vacancy. No particular procedure is
required.


b. A simple majority vote is required to fill the vacancy. Note that the vacancy
cannot be filled by secret ballot. Wis. Stat. $ 19.88(1). The appointment is
complete when the result of a suffrcient vote is ascertained and announced. No
resolution is necessary. It is likely that the mayor may not veto the appointment.
State ex rel. Schneider v. Darby,179 Wis. I47, I54 (1922).


b.


Enclosure


H:\DOCS\005649\000004\0063 l402.DOCX
08291I1352 


Madison offìce


222\íestnüashingtonAvenue 608,256.0226


P.O. Box 1784


Madison, \X/isconsin


5310r.r184


888.655.4752


Fax608.259.2600


wwrv.staffordlaw.com


1200 North Mayfair Road


Surte 410


Milwaukee, \X/isconsin


53226-)2U


414.982.2B50


888.655.4152


Fax414982.2889


w*n¡¡.staffordlaw.com







R-15-2014: Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to adjust the COBRA Insurance rates to reflect the


city’s premium rate for terminated employees immediately upon council approval, and to also adjust the Retiree


health insurance rate effective January 1, 2015 for all retiree’s continuing on the city’s insurance. Finance Director


Sullivan explained the resolution. Moved by Swangstu, second by Suess, to approve. Motion carried unanimously


by acclamation.


R-5-2014: Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the position description for the


Administrative Assistant/Department of Planning & Development. Moved by Swangstu, second by Suess, to


approve. Motion carried unanimously by acclamation.


Discussion and possible action regarding the process in filling the aldermanic seat vacancy in District 4, due to the


resignation of Alderperson Ross Urven. Clerk Hougan explained the process. The council decided to take no


action on this matter until after the April 1, 2014 Spring Election.


Review, discussion and possible action relative to a formal performance appraisal process for the City Attorney.


Swadley presented this request. He wanted to have a performance appraisal or matrix in place for the Attorney.


This will be referred to the CA/CP Committee to draft up a performance review and appraisal. Jenson stated there


should be a joint committee for final decisions on the performance appraisal. Moved by Hohol, second by


Lawrence, to refer this to the CA/CP Committee to draft up performance measures. Motion carried unanimously


by acclamation.


ADJOURNMENT


Moved by Lawrence, second by Hohol, to adjourn at 10:20 P.M. All in favor.


Respectfully submitted,
Maria P. Hougan, City Clerk



mhougan

Highlight



mhougan

Cross-out



mhougan

Cross-out







l\l


q,
t
=


N


olt
E
Gl


o


ôl


o
.ll
E


F.


o3
Eo
o


lf vacancy occurs:


Successor elected in April yr 2 (unless SPECIAL ELECTION (green))


Successor elected in April yr 3 (unless SPECIAL ELECTION (green))


Successor elected in April yr 3 (unless SPECIAL ELECTION (green))


Successor elected in April yr 3


May hold SPECIAL ELECTION in November yr 1 or November yr 2


I May hold SPECIAL ELECTION in November yr 2







mhougan

Line



mhougan

Line



mhougan

Line



mhougan

Line
















 
 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the recommendation from the EMS/Fire ad hoc 


committee of leaving the Fire Department and EMS two separate departments, and to pursue filling the EMS 


Director vacancy. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Public Safety approved 4-0 with Mayor Olson voting; Personnel 0-0 


  
 
File Number: 


 
R-35 -2014 


 
Date Introduced: 4-08-2014  


 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to approve filling a vacancy for an Emergency Medical 


Services Director, and 


 


WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on March 26, 2014, to consider the recommendation 


from the EMS/Fire ad hoc committee to leave the Fire and EMS as two separate departments, and to 


pursue filling the EMS Director position, now therefore  


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby directed to approve the recommendation from the EMS/Fire ad hoc committee to approve 


leaving the Fire Department and EMS as two separate departments, and to pursue filling the EMS 


Director position. 


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 
 







PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday, March 26, 2014 @ 6:00 p.m.
Hall of Fame Room/City Hall


Members Present: Eric Hohol, Tim Swadley (C), Paul Lawrence
Mayor Olson
Absent & Excused: Tom Majewski
Also Present: Police Chief Greg Leck, City Clerk Pili Hougan, Tricia Suess, Lisa
Schimelpfening, Jeanne Dunbar, Brett Klitzke, Dale Seffens, William Hanson.


CALL TO ORDER
Chair Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.


1. COMMUNICATIONS
Chief Lamers reported the Fire Department received a grant to purchase equipment.
There will be an open house for Red Benshop on March 27, 2014. Chief Leck reported
the Police Department also received a grant to purchase forensic equipment. The
foundation they received the grant from will also pay a software maintenance fee for the
next 2-3 years. The Police Department hired a part time officer. Clerk Hougan reported
license renewals are coming up.


NEW BUSINESS


2. Minutes of January 22, 2014
Moved by Lawrence, second by Hohol, to approve as presented. All in favor.


3. Application for an Retail License Transfer-Premises to Premises: Jeanne
Dunbar, agent, dba Main Street Pour House.
Chief Leck stated the Liquor License application will need to be amended to indicate the
new premises after the transfer is approved. Further discussion followed. The
applicant and owner of the building will need to comply with zoning and inspection
requirements.
Moved by Lawrence, second by Hohol, to recommend approval to Council based on all
conditions met from the planning and zoning and building inspection. Motion carried 4-0
with Mayor Olson voting.


4. Application for a Class “B” Beer license (6 months): Stoughton Merchants
Baseball, Brett Klitzke, agent.
Moved by Lawrence, second by Hohol to recommend approval to council. Motion
carried 4-0, with Mayor Olson voting.


5. Discussion/report out regarding the EMS/Fire ad hoc committee. Chief
Lamers reported the ad hoc committee met several times and had many discussions.
They reviewed the pros and cons of combining the two departments. The consensus
was to leave the departments as two separate units. This was the consensus of the ad
hoc committee. EMS Interim Director Lisa Schimelpfenig was also in attendance and



mhougan

Highlight



mhougan

Cross-out



mhougan

Cross-out







spoke regarding the outcome, she is pleased the consensus was to leave the
departments as two separate departments. Moved by Hohol, second by Lawrence, to
recommend council to approve the consensus report of the EMS/Fire ad hoc committee,
and to pursue replacement of an EMS Director. Motion carried 4-0 with Mayor Olson
voting.


Future agenda items:
Restructuring in the Police Department, Special Event Ordinance-Policy, Joint meeting
with Public Works, Traffic Management Plan, Alternate Side Parking


ADJOURNMENT
Moved by Hohol, second by Lawrence, to adjourn at 6:55 p.m. All in favor.


Respectfully submitted,


Pili Hougan
City Clerk



mhougan

Highlight



mhougan

Cross-out



















































Ad hoc Committee on EMS/Fire


Meeting Minutes 02-19-14


Hall of Fame Room City Hall


Members Present: Mayor Donna Olson, Fire Chief Martin Lamers, Police Chief Greg Leck, EMS Director


Cathy Rigdon, Dane County EMS Tim Hellebrand, PFC President Dan Kittleson.


Members Not Present: Council President Eric Hohol (ex)


Also Present: Chaplain John Karay, Alder Ron Christiansen, and McFarland Village Administrator Don


Peterson.


Call to Order


Meeting called to order by Chair Lamers at 4:05 p.m. Introductions were made of all present.


Moved by Leck, second by Rigdon to approve the minutes from the 2-13-14 meeting. All in favor.


The Chair turned the floor over to Don Peterson to talk about McFarland’s experience with consolidating


EMS and Fire management. Peterson explained that McFarland’s process actually started in the 90’s


with discussions and decision to keep the services separate at that time. Peterson explained that in


2006 the Village hired Virchow Krause to conduct a study and make recommendations regarding the


EMS, Fire, and Police operations. Peterson stated that in the end, the study indicated that there were


efficiencies to be gained by combining EMS/Fire and keeping Police separate.


Peterson advised that because of internal circumstances the Village decided not to follow the


recommendations of the consultant and keep the services separate. They did, however recruit an EMS


Director that also had a fire service background after the study. Peterson stated that some of the


reasons they didn’t follow the consultant’s recommendation was because of the instability in EMS


management at the time.


Peterson went on to explain that last year after the retirement of their long time fire chief the Village


decided to consolidate the EMS/Fire management under one person (Fire Chief). They then recruited a


Fire Chief with a strong EMS/Fire background. Peterson went on to state that things are still a work in


progress. Peterson added that the departments are really not combined at this point but are managed


by one person.


Peterson then stated that in his experience it is really more about what is right for the individual


community and the services then it is about what everyone else does or recommends. Peterson then


went on to list some considerations for us to evaluate.







Peterson stated that we should consider the following;


 Local culture and traditions (of the departments)


 Volunteer perspective


 Merger of equals


 Staffing efficiencies


 Leadership (experienced and committed to both sides)


 Type of consolidation (being EMTs or Fire or both)


 Different types of personalities of why one becomes and EMT vs Firefighter


 Training requirements


 Longevity in each department


 Loss of individual department identity


 Day to day management


Lastly, Peterson recommended that we think through implementation issues that may arise thoroughly.


He added that timing was really important in McFarland’s decision.


Several questions of clarification were asked of Mr. Peterson. Once the questions were answered, Mr.


Peterson left the meeting at 4:48 p.m.


EMS Director Rigdon asked a question about the change in the title of the Ad Hoc Committee with the


addition of adding “Consolidation” to the title. Kittleson and Leck suggested that the name of the


committee be kept more neutral to reflect the open mindedness of the discussion. It was then decided


that the name of the committee would be “Ad hoc Committee on EMS/Fire”


Discussion followed regarding Mr. Peterson’s presentation.


Leck suggested that each member prepare a pros and cons list to help put the issues in perspective for


evaluation. It was then decided that those present would prepare pros and cons lists and submit them


to the Chair. The Chair will then compile them and send them out to the group before the next meeting.


Next meeting was then scheduled for March 12, 2014 at 3:30 p.m. in the Hall of Fame Room.


Motion to adjourn at 5:20 p.m. by Kittleson, seconded by Lamers. Motion carried.


Respectfully,


Greg Leck







Ad hoc Committee on EMS/Fire 


Meeting Minutes 03-12-14 


Hall of Fame Room City Hall 


 


Members Present: Mayor Donna Olson, Fire Chief Martin Lamers, Police Chief Greg Leck, EMS Director 


Cathy Rigdon, Dane County EMS Tim Hellebrand, Council President Eric Hohol. 


Members Not Present:  PFC President Kittleson (ex)  


Also Present: Interim EMS Director Lisa Schimelpfenig, Chaplain John Karay, and Mark Ignatowski from 


the HUB. 


Call to Order  


Meeting called to order by Chair Lamers at 3:30 p.m.   


Move by Leck, second by Olson to approve the minutes from the 2-19-14 meeting.  All in favor. 


The Chair asked if everyone reviewed the Pros and Cons lists.  Committee comments were that there 


were not any surprises in any of the lists.   The committee members expressed similar conclusions after 


meeting with McFarland Village President Peterson and reviewing the Pros/Cons lists. 


Leck then made a motion to recommend that both the EMS and Fire Department remain structured as 


the currently are.  Motion 2nd by Hohol.  Leck then went on to state that after reviewing the Pros & Cons 


list it remained apparent that both services are currently running very smoothly and that now would not 


be the time to disrupt that.  The stability of the volunteers being one of the most significant factors in 


recommending to keeping both services as is.   


Cathy Rigdon stated that she agrees but also believes that the City should look at the Emergency 


Management and overall public safety management as we move forward.  Rigdon suggested a 


dedicated emergency manager position of some type as she had recommended in a letter to Mayor 


Olson.  General discussion then followed regarding emergency management issues. 


Chair Lamers then called the question.  Motion carried unanimously. 


Committee recommendations will be reported out at the next Public Safety Meeting.  All Ad-hoc 


Committee members were encouraged to attend for discussion with the Public Safety Committee. Chief 


Lamers advised he would make the report out to the Public Safety Committee. 


There was then discussion regarding a question from an Alder regarding EMS and elevation to 


paramedic status.  Schimelpfenig reported out that the EMS has no plans at this time to elevate the 


service level to a paramedic service.  Schimelpfenig went on to explain that the service as it is could not 


support a paramedic level because of the training level required.  In order to move to a paramedic level 







it would likely require fulltime staff and likely a doubling of the budget.  Further, because of the 


closeness of our hospital the advantages would be minimal from a general patient care standpoint. 


Rigdon and Hellebrand added similar comments regarding the benefit verses costs ratios.  Comments 


regarding this issue will be forwarded to the Alder that had the question. 


Based on the previous listed motion to recommend no changes with either service structures, Leck 


moved to disband the committee.  Motion seconded by Hohol.  Motioned carried unanimously. 


Motion to adjourn at 4:05 p.m. by Leck, seconded by Hohol.  Motion carried. 


Respectfully, 


 


Greg Leck 


   


 








 
 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Class “B” Beer license to Stoughton 


Merchant's Baseball for the period of April 2014October 2014.   


.  
Committee Action:  


pu 


 
Public Safety  approved 40 with Mayor Olson voting


  
 
File Number: 


 
R-30-2014 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
April 8, 2014 


 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to direct the proper city official(s) to approve the Class 


“B” Beer license to the Stoughton Merchant Baseball group for the period of April 2014-October 2014 


for the sale of fermented male beverages during ball games at Norse Park. 


 


WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on March 26, 2014 to consider the terms of approving 


a Class “B” Beer license for the Stoughton Merchant's Baseball group allowing the sale of fermented malt 


beverages only, now therefore  


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby directed and authorized to approve the Class “B” Beer license to the Stoughton Merchant's 


Baseball group. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 
 







PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday, March 26, 2014 @ 6:00 p.m.
Hall of Fame Room/City Hall


Members Present: Eric Hohol, Tim Swadley (C), Paul Lawrence
Mayor Olson
Absent & Excused: Tom Majewski
Also Present: Police Chief Greg Leck, City Clerk Pili Hougan, Tricia Suess, Lisa
Schimelpfening, Jeanne Dunbar, Brett Klitzke, Dale Seffens, William Hanson.


CALL TO ORDER
Chair Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.


1. COMMUNICATIONS
Chief Lamers reported the Fire Department received a grant to purchase equipment.
There will be an open house for Red Benshop on March 27, 2014. Chief Leck reported
the Police Department also received a grant to purchase forensic equipment. The
foundation they received the grant from will also pay a software maintenance fee for the
next 2-3 years. The Police Department hired a part time officer. Clerk Hougan reported
license renewals are coming up.


NEW BUSINESS


2. Minutes of January 22, 2014
Moved by Lawrence, second by Hohol, to approve as presented. All in favor.


3. Application for an Retail License Transfer-Premises to Premises: Jeanne
Dunbar, agent, dba Main Street Pour House.
Chief Leck stated the Liquor License application will need to be amended to indicate the
new premises after the transfer is approved. Further discussion followed. The
applicant and owner of the building will need to comply with zoning and inspection
requirements.
Moved by Lawrence, second by Hohol, to recommend approval to Council based on all
conditions met from the planning and zoning and building inspection. Motion carried 4-0
with Mayor Olson voting.


4. Application for a Class “B” Beer license (6 months): Stoughton Merchants
Baseball, Brett Klitzke, agent.
Moved by Lawrence, second by Hohol to recommend approval to council. Motion
carried 4-0, with Mayor Olson voting.


5. Discussion/report out regarding the EMS/Fire ad hoc committee. Chief
Lamers reported the ad hoc committee met several times and had many discussions.
They reviewed the pros and cons of combining the two departments. The consensus
was to leave the departments as two separate units. This was the consensus of the ad
hoc committee. EMS Interim Director Lisa Schimelpfenig was also in attendance and



mhougan

Highlight



mhougan

Cross-out



mhougan

Cross-out



mhougan

Cross-out



mhougan

Cross-out



mhougan

Cross-out



mhougan

Cross-out







spoke regarding the outcome, she is pleased the consensus was to leave the
departments as two separate departments. Moved by Hohol, second by Lawrence, to
recommend council to approve the consensus report of the EMS/Fire ad hoc committee,
and to pursue replacement of an EMS Director. Motion carried 4-0 with Mayor Olson
voting.


Future agenda items:
Restructuring in the Police Department, Special Event Ordinance-Policy, Joint meeting
with Public Works, Traffic Management Plan, Alternate Side Parking


ADJOURNMENT
Moved by Hohol, second by Lawrence, to adjourn at 6:55 p.m. All in favor.


Respectfully submitted,


Pili Hougan
City Clerk



mhougan

Cross-out



mhougan

Cross-out
























CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to implement changes to the Park Reservation
Policy/Procedure Manual, that include the addition of Stoughton Rotary Park and Norse Park as well
as other changes to words and layout.


Committee Action: Approved by Parks and Recreation 2-0 on 3-19-14


Fiscal Impact: None


File Number: R - 32 - 14 Date Introduced: April 8, 2014


WHEREAS, the Park Reservation Policy/Procedure Manual outlines which parks can be reserved and how
they can be used, and


WHEREAS, the policy needs to be updated to address new facilities and uses, and


WHEREAS, The Parks and Recreation Committee voted 2-0 (quorum) to approve to the changes made to
the document,


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized to implement the changes to the Park Reservation Policy/Procedure Manual.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







CITY OF STOUGHTON
PARK RESERVATION POLICY/PROCEDURE MANUAL


Adopted by Council:


RESERVATIONS
Anyone desiring use of a specific park area for their particular group or anyone who wants to bring beer and/or wine
coolers under 6% alcohol by volume (no hard liquor allowed) into a public park must apply for and obtain a Park
Reservation Permit. Applications are accepted starting on the first work day of the year following New Year’s Day.
Park facilities are reserved on a first-requested, first-reserved basis. A request must become a reserve within 7 days. A
reserve consists of a signed contract and paid fees. The adult signing the reservation form is the duly authorized
representative for any and all damages, missing items and clean up. The user is required to clean up the shelter or picnic
area after use.


Parks available for reservation are Norse Park, East Park, Bjoin Park, Virgin Lake Park, Stoughton Rotary Park,
Westview Ridge Park and Mandt Park.


FEES AND RESIDENCY
In addition to the rental fee, a $25 deposit is required for each rental (to be paid with a separate check). This check will
be held in the Parks and Recreation Department office and returned by mail within a week of the rental if no damage
was done and the park area was cleaned up. Fees are based on residency. A resident is defined as any person residing
or organization located within the corporate limits of the City of Stoughton as well as property owners within.
Individuals and/or organizations within the Stoughton School District, but not within the corporate city limits, are
considered non-residents and pay non-resident rates.


Exemption(s) from park rental fees are provided for the Syttende Mai Festival, Coffee Break Festival, Stoughton
Schools, Stoughton Rotary Club at the Rotary Gazebo, and the Stoughton Junior Fair. No other exemptions will be
allowed.


PARK HOURS
Except for authorized events, all City parks shall be closed from 10:00 p.m. to 5:00 a.m.


MOTORIZED VEHICLES
Motor vehicles are restricted to the roads, drives and parking areas. Vehicles are allowed to drop off people and picnic
supplies at park shelters, when conditions are appropriate; however, all vehicles must be parked on the street or in
designated parking areas. No person shall operate any off-the-road vehicle, motorcycle, snowmobile, trail bike, all-
terrain vehicle, truck or other motorized vehicle in any park, playground, or public area.


ALCOHOL USE
Glass beverage bottles are prohibited in parks. This park permit will allow consumption a person to serve of beer and/or
wine coolers under 6% alcohol by volume (no hard liquor allowed). Usage of beer/wine coolers shall be kept to within
30 feet of a reserved shelter (within reserved shelter time), within the marked usage areas at Racetrack Park and Mandt
Park (Attachment “C”), and inside the sidewalk where applicable.


If beer, or wine coolers under 6% alcohol by volume are to be sold (Mandt Park, Norse Park, and Racetrack Park only),
a Temporary Class “B” Picnic license must be obtained from the City Clerk’s Office, per guidelines set forth in Chapter
125 of the Wis. Statutes, and city code 14.461 (1)O, as well as fees paid for the license and to the Recreation Dept.
Temporary Class “B” licenses can take from 45-60 days to be processed. These licenses will only be granted to bona
fide clubs, lodges, societies and churches which have been in existence for at least six months, or be veteran’s
organizations or fair associations. Only Racetrack Park and Mandt Park will be eligible for sales.


FIRES
No person shall start, tend or maintain a fire except in personal grills or designated fireplaces. Personal grills shall be
used only in designated picnic areas. The use of personal grills is permitted provided lawns and vegetation are not
endangered.



tlynch

Highlight



tlynch

Highlight



tlynch

Highlight



tlynch

Highlight



tlynch

Highlight



tlynch

Highlight



tlynch

Highlight







PHONE NUMBERS: For emergency – Police, Fire and Ambulance call 911
Non-emergency – Police call (608) 873-3373
Reservation questions -- Parks and Recreation 873-6746


PROCEDURES
1. Applicant for a park permit requests a particular date and park area. The schedule is checked to verify availability. If
available, an application form (attachment “A”, back page) is filled out in its entirety, particularly noting the person in
charge and his/her telephone number and address, and where the deposit should be returned.


2. The applicant is advised of the appropriate fee as shown on Attachment "B". The fee must be paid at the time of
application. A $25 deposit, to be paid with a separate check, will be required for each rental. The deposit will be
returned to the renter within one week after the rental if it has been determined by the staff that the premises have been
cleaned and restored to its original condition.


3. The use of loudspeakers or amplifying devices in the parks of the City of Stoughton is prohibited unless the party
desiring to use such loudspeaker or amplifying device first obtains a permit from the Recreation Department.


4. Upon payment of fee and deposit, three (3) copies of the completed application form are made. The original copy of
the reservation is given to the applicant, along with a map (Attachment "C") showing the park area reserved. The
applicant is advised to have the reservation slip, as well as the Temporary Class "B" license, if selling beer and/or wine
coolers under 6% alcohol by volume, with them at the park on the day of picnic.


One copy of the reservation is given to the Police Department; one is kept in the Parks and Recreation Department file,
and one to the Parks Maintenance Supervisor.


5. A refund can be made to applicants requesting such a refund, when the event was cancelled due to rain-out, or if the
park reservation is cancelled by the applicant giving such notice to the Recreation Dept. at least 2 days prior to the date
reserved. The fee paid for a Temporary Class "B" license is not refundable. All refunds are subject to an administrative
processing fee of five dollars.


6. Deposits will be returned in their entirety if the grounds near the shelter are clean, the tables are wiped off, rest rooms
are as they were found, doors locked, lights out, and keys returned. The parks maintenance staff will check the shelter
for these items on the following day. If the City’s costs of cleanup or repair of damages exceeds the deposit amount,
the applicant shall be responsible for reimbursement to the City for those costs.







Attachment B
CITY OF STOUGHTON


POLICY/PROCEDURE MANUAL


SUBJECT: FEE POLICY
______________________________________________________________________________


PARK SHELTER CITY RESIDENT NON-RESIDENT*


Park Shelter $30 $50


Beer/Wine Cooler Endorsement $10 $10


Deposit $25 $25


Extra Tables (each) $10 $10


BALLFIELDS (per hour)


Ball Field $10 $15


Ball Field-lights $15 $20


OTHER (per hour)


Racetrack Building $10 $15


Mandt Grandstand $50 $75


Tennis Court $10 $15


Basketball Court $10 $15


Equipment-Picnic Table $10 $10


Includes Sales Tax
*Non-resident includes anyone not living or owning property in the City of Stoughton
Non profit organizations will be charged a flat fee per the Park Rental agreement.







Attachment C


Approved Permitted alcohol use and sales in Mandt Park are allowed in the following areas and times:


1. Within 30 feet of the large shelter during reservations.
2. Within the defined area at the band shell
3. Within 30 feet of, as well as within the grandstand, and the area between the grandstand and the


Mandt Community Center.
4. No later than 10 PM.
5. Unless additional approvals are granted by the City Council.


Approved Permitted alcohol use and sales in Racetrack Park are in the following areas and times:


1. Within 50 feet of fencing currently used for eligible game.
2. Within 20 feet of Racetrack Building.
3. After 15 minutes of completion of Little League.
4. Within 15 minutes of, or 15 minutes after game start and finish times.
5. No later than 10 PM
6. Unless additional approvals are granted by the City Council.


Approved alcohol use and sales in Norse Park are in the following area and times:


1. Within 50 feet of the baseball diamond fencing.
2. Only during Merchant Home Talent baseball games on Thursdays and Sundays from April through


September.
3. Unless additional approvals are granted by the City Council.



tlynch

Highlight



tlynch

Highlight



tlynch

Highlight







STOUGHTON PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT
PARKS AND FACILITY RESERVATION AGREEMENT


321 S. Fourth St.
Stoughton WI 53589
Phone (608) 873-6746


tlynch@ci.stoughton.wi.us


Applicant:________________________________________________________________________________________


Address: _________________________________________________________________________________________


City: _______________________________________ State: ______________ Zip Code: _______________________


Phone: Home: ___________________ Work: ________________ Cell: ________________Email:________________


Organization: _____________________________________________________________________________________


Address: _________________________________________________________________________________________


City: ______________________________________________ State: ______________ Zip Code: _________________


Type of Event: ____________________________________ # of participants anticipated: _______________________


PARK _____________________ DATE (S) __________________ TIME (0:00-0:00) _______________________


___________________________________________________________________________________________________________


 Beer Use? No_____ Yes_____ If yes, refer to “Attachment B”.
 Amplification? No_____ Yes_____ Allowed at Mandt Park and the Pool
 Tents? No_____ Yes_____ If yes, Size _____________ Number ____________
 Special Event? No_____ Yes_____ Excess of 250 people, contact Parks and Recreation


Director for additional information.


The undersigned accepts full responsibility for the conduct of the above group while on park property and agrees to indemnify
and save harmless the City of Stoughton from any and all liability which might be occasioned to said City by virtue of granting
permission in this agreement. I further agree to exercise due care in the preservation of the premises. I further agree that I will
ensure compliance with all rules, regulations or ordinances applicable to the use of City of Stoughton parks and facilities.


Signature_______________________________________________________Date ______________________
(Applicant must be 21 years of age or older)


IMPORTANT: A KEY SHOULD BE PICKED UP AT THE RECREATION DEPARTMENT A FEW DAYS
PRECEEDING THE RESERVATION, TO GAIN ACCESS TO BJOIN, VIRGIN LAKE, AND NORSE
PARKS.


FOR OFFICE USE ONLY


Fee: ___________ Deposit: ___________


Attachment “A”







Insurance Required: No_________ Yes ___________ Amount: $__________________________


Department Approval_____________________________________________ Date_____________________







PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday, March 19, 2014
5:30 PM
Hall of Fame Room


Present: Alderpersons: Tricia Suess, Michael Engelberger, and Parks and Recreation Director
Tom Lynch
Guests: Jon Lewis


1. Call to Order
By Suess at 5:40 PM


2. Approval of February 17, 2014 Minutes
Motion by Engelberger, seconded by Suess, to accept the minutes from February 17, 2014.
Motion passed 2-0.


3. Communications
None


Old Business


4. Parks and Open Space Plan Update
The Parks and Open Space plan is nearly completed. The maps are finished, save for a couple
changes. The plan will be completed and reviewed at the next meeting.


5. Park Reservation Policy
The committee reviewed the policy and suggested changes that include the addition of Stoughton
Rotary Park and Norse Park as well as other changes to words and layout. There was discussion
about the value of allowing glass bottles for the Gazebo events. In the end the committee decided
to not push for a policy change in that area.


Motion by Engelberger, seconded by Suess, to recommend to Council to implement changes to
the Park Reservation Policy/ Procedure Manual, that include the addition of Stoughton Rotary
Park and Norse Park as well as other changes to words and layout.. Motion passed 2-0.


6 Riverbank Restoration
Lynch recommended returning the DNR grant that didn’t address the bank restoration needs in
Division St Park. The grant was for a trail along the river that doesn’t make sense unless there is
a connection from the park to the downtown. Lynch also recommended holding off this summer
on the riverbank restoration pending a grant that is due next February. The grant initially was due
on May 1, but was moved by the DNR. Karl Manthe feels that with better control of the river flow,
there is less chance of erosion than in the past. He also recommends waiting and having a
chance to supplement the cost with a grant.


Motion by Engelberger, seconded by Suess, to direct staff to return the DNR grant and hold off on
the riverbank restoration until 2015. Motion passed 2-0.


New Business


7. Youth Center Update
Lynch presented the attendance for February and talked about upcoming changes in the Friends
of the Stoughton Area Youth Center board. The focus will shift to more fund raising than
construction and programming. Suess asked that expanded Saturday hours be discussed at the
next FSAYC meeting.



tlynch

Highlight







8. Future Agenda Items
Parks and Open Space Plan
Contract with the Stoughton Area Baseball Association
2014 Projects Update


Motion made by Engelberger, seconded by Suess to adjourn the meeting at 6:45 PM. Motion
passed 2-0





		Resolution R-32-14.pdf

		PARK RESERVATION POLICY 2014.pdf

		PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 3-19-14.pdf






 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE STOUGHTON UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE 


STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) toaccept the Stoughton Utilities voluntary 


Electric And Water Tax Stabilization Dividends and the required Electric and Water Payments in Lieu 


of Taxes. 
 
Committee Action: 


 
5-2 with Mayor Olson voting 


 
Fiscal Impact: $25,213 and $742,404 for a total of $767,617 


 
File Number: 


 
R-33-2014 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
March 25, 2014 


 
WHEREAS, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause LLP has prepared the Stoughton Utilities Audit Report for 


2013, and 


 


WHEREAS, calculations from the Audit Report yielded a required Electric Payment in Lieu of Taxes 


(PILOT) of $380,584 and a required Water PILOT of $361,820, and 


 


WHEREAS, calculations from the Audit Report also yielded a voluntary Electric Tax Stabilization 


Dividend of $19,212 and a voluntary Water Tax Stabilization Dividend of $6,001, and 


 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met on March 17, 2014to consider, approve, and 


recommend the acceptance of the Stoughton Utilities voluntary Electric and Water Tax Stabilization 


Dividends of $19,212 and $6,001 respectively, and the adoption of the corresponding resolution, now 


therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s)are 


hereby authorized and directed to accept the Stoughton Utilities voluntary Electric and Water Tax 


Stabilization Dividends of $19,212 and $6,001 respectively along with the required Electric and Water 


PILOT’s totaling $742,404for a grand total of $767,617. 


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


          


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 
 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR 
MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, March 17, 2014 – 5:00 p.m. 
Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
600 S. Fourth St. 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
Members Present: Citizen Member David Erdman, Citizen Member 


Jonathan Hajny, Alderperson Eric Hohol, Alderperson 
Paul Lawrence, Mayor Donna Olson, Citizen Member 
Alan Staats, and Alderperson Elvin (Sonny) Swangstu. 


  
Excused: None. 
 
Absent: None. 
 
Others Present: Jodi Dobson, CPA, Partner with Baker Tilly, Stoughton 


Utilities Office and Information Systems Supervisor 
Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Finance and 
Administrative Manager Kim Jennings, CPA, and 
Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz, P.E.  


 
Call To Order:  Mayor Donna Olson called the regular Stoughton Utilities 
Committee Meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.  
 
Stoughton Utilities Proposed Electric And Water Tax Stabilization Dividends:  
Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager Kim Jennings and 
Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the 
Stoughton Utilities proposed electric and water tax stabilization dividends.  
Discussion followed.  Motion by Alderperson Paul Lawrence, the motion seconded 
by Alderperson Eric Hohol, to approve the proposed electric and water tax 
stabilization dividends of $19,212 and $6,001 respectively and to recommend their 
acceptance by the Stoughton Common Council and the adoption of the 
corresponding resolution on April 8, 2014.  The motion carried 5 to 2 with Citizen 
Members Jonathan Hajny and Alan Staats voting no.   
 







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  March 11, 2014 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Kim M. Jennings, CPA - Stoughton Utilities Finance & Administrative Manager 


  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. - Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Proposed Electric and Water Tax Stabilization Dividends. 


 


In September of 2003, the Stoughton Utilities Committee declared our first Stoughton Utilities Electric and 


Water Tax Stabilization Dividends to the Finance Committee and Common Council, under the following 


criteria: 


 The Tax Stabilization Dividend will be based on 5% of the Stoughton Utilities Electric and 


Water previous year’s net income adjusted for the prior-year dividend and contributed capital 


reported as non-operating income/expense from the audited financial statements as presented by 


Stoughton Utilities’ independent auditing firm. 


 The dividend is estimated at the time the annual budget is approved by the Utilities Committee 


and recommended to the Common Council; and presented to the Utilities Committee and 


Common Council at the time of audit. 


 The dividend can be suspended by the Utilities Committee and Common Council if the budget 


shows a requirement for the cash flow for debt liquidation and/or capital outlays, or an 


acceleration of electric and water rate increases occurs.  


 


Our 2013 audit reports will show that utility earnings and cash flow are sufficient in order to make the full tax 


stabilization dividend as outlined above.    Stoughton Utilities remains the highest taxpayer in the City with 


electric and water Payments In Lieu Of Taxes (PILOT) equaling $742,404.  If approved by the Stoughton 


Utilities Committee, tax stabilization dividends of $25,213 will be paid to the City of Stoughton in addition to 


the PILOT. This will lessen property tax burdens and strengthen our community. The following chart shows a 


total payment to the City of Stoughton of $767,617 in 2014. 


 


Electric Water Total Total


2013 2013 2013 2012


Tax Stabilization Dividend (Recommended) 19,212$     6,001$        25,213$      40,868$       


Payment in Lieu of Taxes (Required) 380,584$   361,820$     742,404$    705,518$     


Total Payment to City 399,796$   367,821$     767,617$    746,386$      








 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE STOUGHTON UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE 


STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton Utilities 2013 Audit 


Report and Management Letter. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
7-0 with Mayor Olson voting 


 
Fiscal Impact: None 


 
File Number: 


 
R-34-2014 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
April 8, 2014 


 
WHEREAS, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause LLP has prepared the Stoughton Utilities Audit Report and 


Management Letter for 2013, and 


 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met on March 17, 2014 to consider, approve, and 


recommend the approval of the Stoughton Utilities Audit Report and Management letter for 2013 and the 


adoption of the corresponding resolution, now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) are 


hereby authorized and directed to approve the Stoughton Utilities Audit Report and Management Letter 


for 2013. 


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


          


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 
 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR 
MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, March 17, 2014 – 5:00 p.m. 
Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
600 S. Fourth St. 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
Members Present: Citizen Member David Erdman, Citizen Member 


Jonathan Hajny, Alderperson Eric Hohol, Alderperson 
Paul Lawrence, Mayor Donna Olson, Citizen Member 
Alan Staats, and Alderperson Elvin (Sonny) Swangstu. 


  
Excused: None. 
 
Absent: None. 
 
Others Present: Jodi Dobson, CPA, Partner with Baker Tilly, Stoughton 


Utilities Office and Information Systems Supervisor 
Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Finance and 
Administrative Manager Kim Jennings, CPA, and 
Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz, P.E.  


 
Call To Order:  Mayor Donna Olson called the regular Stoughton Utilities 
Committee Meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.  
 
Stoughton Utilities 2013 Audit Report and Management Letter:  Jodi Dobson, 
CPA, Partner of Baker Tilly presented and discussed the 2013 Stoughton Utilities 
Audit Report and Management Letter.  Discussion followed.  Motion by Citizen 
Member David Erdman, the motion seconded by Alderperson Paul Lawrence, to 
accept the Stoughton Utilities 2013 Audit Report and Management Letter, and 
recommend the Audit and Management Letter and the adoption of the 
corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council on April 8, 2014.  The 
motion carried unanimously. 
 







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


 


 


Date:  March 11, 2014 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Kim M. Jennings, CPA 


  Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager 


 


  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities 2013 Audit Report And Management Letter. 


 


The Stoughton Utilities Audit Reports and Management Letter will be presented at the 


March 17, 2014 Stoughton Utilities Committee meeting.  Ms. Jodi Dobson of Baker Tilly 


Virchow Krause, LLP is scheduled to present the information. Please review the attached 


information and contact us if you have any questions prior to the meeting.   


 


We are requesting that the Utilities Committee accept the Stoughton Utilities 2013 Audit 


Report and Management Letter and recommend the acceptance of the audit report and the 


management letter and the adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton 


Common Council on April 8, 2014.   


 


Encl. 


 


cc: Jodi Dobson, CPA, Partner - Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 


Bethany Ryers, CPA, - Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 


 Brian G. Erickson - Stoughton Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor 


 Brian R. Hoops - Stoughton Utilities Office and Information Systems Supervisor 


 Sean O Grady - Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 


 Laurie Sullivan - City of Stoughton Finance Director 


  


  


 



















































































STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 
COMMUNICATION TO THOSE CHARGED  
WITH GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 


 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2013 


 
  







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 


 
 
 Page No. 
 
Communication of Other Control Comments, Recommendations and Informational Points  
  to Management that are not Material Weaknesses or Significant Deficiencies 1 – 2 
 
Other Communications to Those Charged with Governance  
 
 Two Way Communication Regarding Your Audit 3 – 4 
 
Required Communications by the Auditor to Those Charged with Governance 5 – 7 
 
 Management Representations   
 
  







 


COMMUNICATION OF OTHER CONTROL COMMENTS, RECOMMENDATIONS  
AND INFORMATIONAL POINTS TO MANAGEMENT THAT ARE NOT  


MATERIAL WEAKNESSES OR SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES 
  







 


Page 1 


 
OPERATIONAL RESULTS 
 
 ELECTRIC UTILITY OPERATING RESULTS 
 
The electric utility’s operating income decreased in 2013 to $948,000 compared to $1,139,000 in 2012. 
The primary reason for the decrease in operating income is due to an increase in operating expenses, 
particularly with distribution maintenance. 
 


 WATER UTILITY OPERATING RESULTS 
 
The water utility’s operating income decreased in 2013 to $567,000 compared to $647,000 in 2012. 
Water sales decreased by 2% due to a decrease in water consumption compared to consumption during 
the dry weather in 2012.  
 


 WASTEWATER OPERATING RESULTS 
 
The wastewater utility’s operating income decreased in 2013 to $478,000 compared to $555,000 in 2012. 
Revenues decreased 2%, which coincides with the decrease in water sales. Sewer rates have not 
changed since 2007. We understand that the sufficiency of revenues is reviewed as part of the annual 
budget process, but given the usage patterns that could have changed in the last five years we 
recommend management complete a detailed sewer rate review in the near future.  
 
 
CURRENT YEAR COMMENTS 
 
 GASB STATEMENT NO. 68: ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSIONS 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 68, which will change 
the accounting and financial reporting requirements for state and local governments that provide their 
employees with pensions. This Statement replaces the requirements of GASB Statements Nos. 27 and 
50 as they relate to pensions that are provided through pension plans administered as trusts, or 
equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. These changes will affect your financial statements for 
the year ended December 31, 2015. 
 
This Statement applies specifically to governments that provide their employees with pensions through 
pension plans in which a government’s contributions to the trust used to administer a pension plan are (1) 
irrevocable, (2) restricted to paying pension benefits, and (3) beyond the reach of creditors. 
 
Under the new standards, in financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement 
focus (accrual basis of accounting), a cost-sharing employer is required to recognize its proportionate 
share of the net pension liability of the Wisconsin Retirement System plan. The net pension liability is 
defined as the present value of projected benefit payments to be provided through the pension plan, to 
current and inactive employees, that is attributed to those employees’ past periods of service (total 
pension liability), less the amount of the pension plan’s net position.  
 
The new Statement contains requirements related to the actuarial cost method and certain other 
assumptions used in the preparation of an actuarial valuation. The Statement also requires that an 
actuarial valuation of the total pension liability be performed at least every two years, with more frequent 
valuations encouraged. In addition, this Statement also requires disclosing certain information in the 
notes to the financial statements, as well as presenting certain required supplementary information (RSI) 
for the ten most recent fiscal years.  
 
We are available to further discuss these changes and the impact on your financial statements.  
 
 
 







 


Page 2 


 
INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS 
 
 COMPLETE SEGREGATION OF DUTIES NOT FEASIBLE 
 
A properly designed system of internal control includes adequate staffing as well as policies and 
procedures to properly segregate duties. This includes systems that are designed to limit the access or 
control of any one individual to your government’s assets or accounting records, and to achieve a higher 
likelihood that errors or irregularities in the utility’s accounting processes would be discovered by your 
staff in a timely manner.  
 
At this time, due to staffing and financial limitations, the utility does not have proper internal controls in 
place to achieve ideal segregation of duties. As a result, errors or irregularities could occur as part of the 
financial process that may not be discovered by the utility.  
 
Procedures, designed to improve controls, have been established by management including: 
 


 Authorization of official depository. 
 Review and acceptance of the audit report and management letter. 
 Authorization of capital expenditures. 
 Approval of annual budgets. 
 Cross training of personnel and rotation of duties entailing custody of certain liquid assets. 


 
These procedures are helpful in assuring that management is knowledgeable of and involved with the 
day-to-day system operations. 
 
There are also key controls, which are listed below, that are not currently in place at the utility related to 
significant transaction cycles. These key controls are important in reducing the risk of errors or 
irregularities in the utility’s accounting processes.  


 Review of the year end accrued payroll. 
 Reviews of the monthly receivable reconciliations. 
 Review of new customer account setup. 
 Review of the reconciliation of open work orders to the construction balance in the ledger. 
 Review of the monthly or yearend financial statements. 
 Complete segregation of billing and receipting for miscellaneous services. 


 
Since these key controls are not currently in place, errors or irregularities could occur as part of the 
financial process that may not be discovered by the utility. Our review of internal control disclosed a 
control deficiency in that segregation of duties is not feasible due to the limited number of staff in the 
office. For example, many reconciliations are prepared by a person who is also involved in the day to day 
transactions. Although we do not feel this is a material weakness or significant deficiency we do believe it 
is important that the Committee is aware of this fact. 
 
This situation necessitates an increased amount of management involvement in the day-to-day operation 
of the system. This is not unusual in utilities of your size, but management should continue to be aware of 
this condition and realize that the concentration of duties and responsibilities in a limited number of 
individuals is not desirable from a control point of view. 
 
 
 
  







  


 


OTHER COMMUNICATIONS TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 
 


  







  


Page 3 


 
TWO WAY COMMUNICATION REGARDING YOUR AUDIT  
 
As part of our audit of your financial statements, we are providing communications to you throughout the 
audit process. Auditing requirements provide for two-way communication and are important in assisting 
the auditor and you with more information relevant to the audit. 
 
As this past audit is concluded, we use what we have learned to begin the planning process for next 
year’s audit. It is important that you understand the following points about the scope and timing of our 
next audit: 
 


a. We address the significant risks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, through 
our detailed audit procedures. 
 


b. We will obtain an understanding of the five components of internal control sufficient to assess the 
risk of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to error or fraud, and to 
design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. We will obtain a sufficient 
understanding by performing risk assessment procedures to evaluate the design of controls 
relevant to an audit of financial statements and to determine whether they have been 
implemented. We will use such knowledge to:  
 
> Identify types of potential misstatements. 
> Consider factors that affect the risks of material misstatement. 
> Design tests of controls, when applicable, and substantive procedures. 
 
We will not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or 
compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts or grant programs.  
 


c. The concept of materiality recognizes that some matters, either individually or in the aggregate, 
are important for fair presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles while other matters are not important. In performing the audit, we are 
concerned with matters that, either individually or in the aggregate, could be material to the 
financial statements. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance that material misstatements, whether caused by errors or fraud, are detected. 


 
We are very interested in your views regarding certain matters. Those matters are listed here: 


 
a. We typically will communicate with your top level of management unless you tell us otherwise. 


b. We understand that the utilities committee has the responsibility to oversee the strategic direction 
of your organization, as well as the overall accountability of the entity. Management has the 
responsibility for achieving the objectives of the entity. 


c. We need to know your views about your organization’s objectives and strategies, and the related 
business risks that may result in material misstatements. 


d. Which matters do you consider warrant particular attention during the audit, and are there any 
areas where you request additional procedures to be undertaken? 


e. Have you had any significant communications with regulators or grantor agencies? 


f. Are there other matters that you believe are relevant to the audit of the financial statements? 
  







  


Page 4 


 
TWO WAY COMMUNICATION REGARDING YOUR AUDIT (cont.) 


 
Also, is there anything that we need to know about the attitudes, awareness, and actions of the utilities 
concerning: 
 


a. The utilities’ internal control and its importance in the entity, including how those charged with 
governance oversee the effectiveness of internal control? 


b. The detection or the possibility of fraud? 
 
We also need to know if you have taken actions in response to developments in financial reporting, laws, 
accounting standards, governance practices, or other related matters, or in response to previous 
communications with us. 
 
With regard to the timing of our audit, here is some general information. If necessary, we may do 
preliminary financial audit work during the months of November or December. Our final financial fieldwork 
is scheduled during January to best coincide with your readiness and report deadlines. After fieldwork, we 
wrap up our financial audit procedures at our office and may issue drafts of our report for your review. 
Final copies of our report and other communications are issued after approval by your staff. This is 
typically 6-10 weeks after final fieldwork, but may vary depending on a number of factors.  
 
Keep in mind that while this communication may assist us with planning the scope and timing of the audit, 
it does not change the auditor’s sole responsibility to determine the overall audit strategy and the audit 
plan, including the nature, timing, and extent of procedures necessary to obtain sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence. 
 
We realize that you may have questions on what this all means, or wish to provide other feedback. We 
welcome the opportunity to hear from you. 







  


 


REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS BY THE AUDITOR TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 


  











To Stoughton Utilities Committee 
Stoughton Utilities 
 
 


Page 6 


 QUALITATIVE ASPECTS OF THE ENTITY’S SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRACTICES 
 
  Accounting Policies 


Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with the 
terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting policies 
and their application. The significant accounting policies used by the utilities are described in Note 1 to the 
financial statements. As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Stoughton Utilities changed 
accounting policies related to deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources by adopting 
Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB) Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as 
Assets and Liabilities in 2013. We noted no transactions entered into by the Stoughton Utilities during the year 
that were both significant and unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform 
you, or transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 
 
  Accounting Estimates 


Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based 
on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future 
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial 
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those 
expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements were the accrual of compensated 
absences and fair value of the ATC investment. We have reviewed managements’ assumptions and 
methodologies for these estimates. 
 
  Financial Statement Disclosures 


The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
 DIFFICULTIES ENCOUNTERED IN PERFORMING THE AUDIT 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing our audit. 
 
 CORRECTED AND UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management 
has corrected all such misstatements.   
 
In addition, the one misstatement detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management was 
not material to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
 DISAGREEMENTS WITH MANAGEMENT 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that 
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such 
disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
 
 CONSULTATIONS WITH OTHER INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial 
statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has 
all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 











 


 


MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS 
 
 























 


 


STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
Enterprise Funds of the  


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 


December 31, 2013 and 2012 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
Enterprise Funds of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 


December 31, 2013 and 2012 
 
 
 


 


Independent Auditors' Report 1 - 2


Management's Discussion and Analysis 3 - 19


Financial Statements 


Electric Utility 


Statements of Net Position 20 - 21


Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 22


Statements of Cash Flows 23 - 24


Water Utility 


Statements of Net Position 25 - 26


Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 27


Statements of Cash Flows 28 - 29


Wastewater Utility 


Statements of Net Position 30 - 31


Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 32


Statements of Cash Flows 33 - 34


Notes to Financial Statements 35 - 64


Supplemental Information 


Electric Utility 


Utility Plant 65


Operating Revenues and Expenses 66  - 67


Rate of Return - Regulatory Basis 68







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
Enterprise Funds of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 


December 31, 2013 and 2012 
 
 
 


Supplemental Information (cont.) 
 


 


Water Utility 


Utility Plant 69


Operating Revenues and Expenses 70 - 71


Rate of Return - Regulatory Basis 72


Wastewater Utility 


Utility Plant 73


Operating Revenues and Expenses 74


 















 


   


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION 
AND ANALYSIS 


 
 


STOUGHTON UTILITIES 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 3 


The management of the Stoughton Utilities (utilities) offers all persons interested in the financial 
position of the utilities an objective, easy to read overview and analysis of the utilities’ financial 
performance during the years ending December 31, 2013 and 2012. You are invited to read this 
narrative in conjunction with the utilities’ financial statements. 


 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 


 
ELECTRIC: 
 


 Electric sales remained constant in 2013. 
 


 The electric division’s net position increased by $432,739 from the prior year. 
 


 Refunded the 2003 revenue bonds for a net present value interest savings in excess of 
$560,000. 


 
 Financed $575,000 of capital improvements to improve operations and electric system 


reliability. 
 
WATER: 
 


 Completed $435,000 of capital improvements including approximately ½ mile of main 
replacements. 
     


 The water division’s net position increased by $109,141 from the prior year.  
 


 Sales decreased by 1.49% in 2013 due to a decrease in water consumption.  
Consumption was higher in 2012 due to unusually dry weather conditions.  There were 
no retail rate adjustments in 2013.     
 


WASTEWATER: 
 


 Completed $1,025,000 of sewer projects which included collecting main upgrades, slip 
lining of mains to extend their useful life, and equipment replacement at the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant.  
  


 Started construction for a $3.5 million electrical upgrade in the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant.  The project will be financed with a Wisconsin DNR Environmental Improvement 
Loan. 


 
 The wastewater division’s net position increased by $418,442 from the prior year. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 4 


 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


 
The utilities are self-supporting entities and separate enterprise funds of the City of Stoughton 
(city). The utilities provide electric, water, and wastewater service to properties within the city 
and also provides electric service to the following Townships: Dunkirk, Dunn, Pleasant Springs, Porter 
and Rutland.  
 
The water and electric utilities are managed by a Utilities Committee and operate under service 
rules and rates that are established by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). 
The accounting records are maintained in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts 
prescribed by the PSCW, and in accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board.  
 
The Utilities Committee also manages the wastewater utility.  The Utilities Committee 
establishes rates and service rules. Accounting records are maintained in accordance with the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 
 
This annual report consists of two parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis, and the basic 
financial statements, including the independent auditor’s report. 
 
An analysis of the utilities’ financial position begins with a review of the Statement of Net 
Position, and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. These two 
statements report the utilities’ net position and changes therein. The utilities’ net position – ‘the 
difference between assets and liabilities’ is key to measuring the financial health of the utilities. 
Over time, increases or decreases in the net position value are an indicator of whether the 
overall financial position is improving or deteriorating. However, it should be noted that the 
financial position may also be affected by other non-financial factors, including economic 
conditions, customer growth, climate conditions and new regulations. 
 
 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS  


 
The Statement of Net Position includes all of the utilities’ assets and liabilities and provides 
information about the nature and amount of investments in resources and the obligations to 
creditors. This statement provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure and assessing 
the liquidity and financial flexibility of the utilities.  
 
A summary of the utilities’ Statements of Net Position is presented below in Tables 1 through 3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 5 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 1 


Condensed Statement of Net Position – Electric Utility 
 


2013-2012
2013 2012 2011 Change


Current and Other Assets 10,114,745$ 9,518,367$   8,982,799$    596,378$       
Capital Assets 14,726,389  15,160,909   15,310,259    (434,520)       


Total Assets 24,841,134  24,679,276   24,293,058    161,858        


Long-Term Debt Outstanding 4,940,000    5,505,000     5,905,000      (565,000)       
Other Liabilities 2,640,380    2,346,261     2,264,789      294,119        


Total Liabilities 7,580,380    7,851,261     8,169,789      (270,881)       


Investment in Capital Assets 9,231,928    9,255,909     8,677,595      (23,981)         
Restricted 1,076,042    1,039,577     1,016,417      36,465          
Unrestricted 6,952,784    6,532,529     6,429,257      420,255        


Total Net Position 17,260,754$ 16,828,015$ 16,123,269$  432,739$       


 
In 2013, the electric utility net position increased $432,739, an increase of 2.57%. The increase 
was as anticipated and in line with the 2013 operating budget. 
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 6 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 2 


Condensed Statement of Net Position – Water Utility 
 


 
In 2013, the water utility net position increased $109,141, an increase of 0.96%. The water utility has 
experienced stable increases in net position since the last retail rate increase was implemented 
in 2010.  An estimated retail rate increase of 3.0% will likely occur in 2014 in order to maintain 
the water utility net position. 
 
 


2013-2012
2013 2012 2011 Change


Current and Other Assets 1,563,853$  1,656,392$   1,759,183$    (92,539)$       
Capital Assets 12,546,530  12,537,167   12,341,715    9,363            


Total Assets 14,110,383  14,193,559   14,100,898    (83,176)         


Long-Term Debt Outstanding 1,926,638    2,077,213     2,262,123      (150,575)       
Other Liabilities 654,701       696,443       638,518        (41,742)         


Total Liabilities 2,581,339    2,773,656     2,900,641      (192,317)       


Investment in Capital Assets 10,469,317  10,275,044   9,900,329      194,273        
Restricted 408,836       431,068       427,587        (22,232)         
Unrestricted 650,891       713,791       872,341        (62,900)         


Total Net Position 11,529,044$ 11,419,903$ 11,200,257$  109,141$       







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 7 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 3 


Condensed Statements of Net Position – Wastewater Utility 
 


2013-2012
2013 2012 2011 Change


Current and Other Assets 2,326,901$   2,941,906$   3,222,504$    (615,005)$    
Capital Assets 15,303,036   15,021,478   14,847,485    281,558       


Total Assets 17,629,937   17,963,384   18,069,989    (333,447)      


Long-Term Debt Outstanding 2,646,720     2,903,455     3,553,191      (256,735)      
Other Liabilities 429,810        924,964        891,302         (495,154)      


Total Liabilities 3,076,530     3,828,419     4,444,493      (751,889)      


Investment in Capital Assets 12,399,704   11,468,409   10,663,942    931,295       
Restricted 1,247,923     1,501,295     1,479,173      (253,372)      
Unrestricted 905,780        1,165,261     1,482,381      (259,481)      


Total Net Position 14,553,407$ 14,134,965$ 13,625,496$  418,442$     


 
In 2013, wastewater net position increased $418,442 or 2.96%. The increase was as anticipated and 
in line with the 2013 operating budget. 
 
The restricted portion of net position includes accounts that are limited by bond covenants. 
Listed below are restricted assets: 
 
 Redemption   –  Used for debt service payments. 
 Reserve    – Used for any deficiencies in the redemption account. 
 Depreciation  –  Used to restore deficiencies in the redemption and reserve accounts, and for 


funding plant replacements. 
 Construction –  Bond issue proceeds used only for the restricted construction project(s).  
 Replacement – Used for plant replacement. 
  
The specific nature or source of these changes becomes more evident in the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position as shown in Tables 4 through 6.  







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 8 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position provides an indication of 
the utilities’ financial health. 
 


Table 4 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, 


Expenses and Changes in Net Position - 
Electric Utility 


2013-2012
2013 2012 2011 Change


Operating Revenues 15,379,679$   15,385,267$   15,055,468$   (5,588)$          
Non-Operating Revenues 71,308           100,685         117,555          (29,377)          
     Total Revenues 15,450,987     15,485,952     15,173,023     (34,965)          


Depreciation Expense 918,885         910,353         912,530          8,532            
Other Operating Expense 13,512,427     13,336,299     13,136,259     176,128         
Non-Operating Expenses 254,852         276,156         289,363          (21,304)          
     Total Expenses 14,686,164     14,522,808     14,338,152     163,356         


     Income Before Capital
     Contributions and Transfers 764,823         963,144         834,871          (198,321)        


Capital Contributions 78,489           130,561         17,407           (52,072)          
Transfers - Tax Equivalent (380,584)        (363,359)        (322,881)         (17,225)          
Transfers  (29,989)          (25,600)          (20,788)          (4,389)           


Changes in Net Position 432,739         704,746         508,609          (272,007)        


Beginning Net Position 16,828,015     16,123,269     15,614,660     704,746         


Total Net Position-Ending 17,260,754$   16,828,015$   16,123,269$   432,739$       


 
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 9 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 


Table 5 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, 


Expenses and Changes in Net Position - 
Water Utility 


 
2013-2012


2013 2012 2011 Change


Operating Revenues 1,727,969$     1,756,878$     1,734,825$     (28,909)$        
Non-Operating Revenues 5,245             10,718           11,297           (5,473)           
     Total Revenues 1,733,214      1,767,596       1,746,122       (34,382)          


Depreciation Expense 381,278         364,679         342,667          16,599           
Other Operating Expense 779,963         745,471         788,488          34,492           
Non-Operating Expenses 90,133           97,706           175,123          (7,573)           
     Total Expenses 1,251,374      1,207,856       1,306,278       43,518           


     Income Before Capital
     Contributions and Transfers 481,840         559,740         439,844          (77,900)          


Capital Contributions -                9,000             86,600           (9,000)           
Transfers - Tax Equivalent (361,820)        (342,159)        (301,135)         (19,661)          
Transfers  (10,879)          (6,935)            (10,600)          (3,944)           


Changes in Net Position 109,141         219,646         214,709          (110,505)        


Beginning Net Position 11,419,903     11,200,257     10,985,548     219,646         


Total Net Position-Ending 11,529,044$   11,419,903$   11,200,257$   109,141$       


 
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 10 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 


Table 6 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, 


Expenses and Changes in Net Position - 
Wastewater Utility 


 
2013-2012


2013 2012 2011 Change


Operating Revenues 2,029,464$        2,062,606$      2,073,764$      (33,142)$         
Non-Operating Revenues 3,498                 9,763               19,138             (6,265)             
     Total Revenues 2,032,962          2,072,369        2,092,902        (39,407)           


Depreciation Expense 673,593             630,188           630,352           43,405            
Other Operating Expense 877,420             877,033           905,616           387                 
Non-Operating Expenses 85,280               104,934           124,008           (19,654)           
     Total Expenses 1,636,293          1,612,155        1,659,976        24,138            


     Income Before Capital
     Contributions and Transfers 396,669             460,214           432,926           (63,545)           


Capital Contributions 21,773               49,255             -                   (27,482)           


Changes in Net Position 418,442             509,469           432,926           (91,027)           


Beginning Net Position 14,134,965        13,625,496      13,192,570      509,469          


Total Net Position-Ending 14,553,407$     14,134,965$   13,625,496$   418,442$       


 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 11 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
 


Comparison of Electric Sales 
 
 


  


 


 


Electric sales remained relatively constant in 2013.  A review of retail rates will be completed in 
2014 to analyze the adequacy and structure of rates by customer class.  


2013 2012 2011


Residential 7,742,249$          7,711,886$          7,652,332$        
General Service 2,067,323            2,104,261            1,966,989          
Small Power 1,532,050            1,467,540            1,410,706          
Large Power 1,021,094            1,049,188            956,963             
Industrial Power 2,728,523            2,761,836            2,781,578          
Public Lighting 142,072               141,102               150,044             


Total Electric Sales 15,233,311$        15,235,813$        14,918,612$      


 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 12 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 


Comparison of Water Sales 
 


 


 


 


Sales decreased by $25,904 or 1.49% in 2013 due to a decrease in water consumption.  Sales 
were higher in 2012 due to dry weather conditions.  There were no retail rate adjustments in 
2013.  


2013 2012 2011


Residential 797,026$             816,587$             792,642$           
Commercial 192,994               196,348               193,971             
Industrial 250,544               255,137               263,376             
Public Authority 17,672                 19,222                 17,828               
Private Fire 26,318                 25,422                 25,417               
Public Fire 423,129               420,871               417,354             


Total Water Sales 1,707,683$          1,733,587$          1,710,588$        


 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 13 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Comparison of Wastewater Sales 


 


 


 


 


The utility experienced a decrease in revenues of $30,923 or 1.52% in 2013 due to a decrease 
in volume sales.  No retail rate increases were implemented in 2013. 


2013 2012 2011


Residential 1,388,955$          1,449,168$          1,403,877$        
Commercial 445,201               441,780               456,246             
Industrial 138,306               112,101               120,473             
Public Authority 25,519                 25,855                 24,129               


Total Wastewater Sales 1,997,981$          2,028,904$          2,004,725$        


 
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 14 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
The Statement of Cash Flows reports the cash provided and used by operating activities, as well 
as other cash sources such as investment income and cash payments for repayment of bonds 
and capital additions. 
 


Table 7 
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows  


Electric Utility 
 


2013-2012
2013 2012 2011 Change


Cash Flows From:
     Operating activites 2,039,792$     2,062,896$     1,941,440$     (23,104)$        
     Non-capital financing activities (346,703)        (302,751)        (867,454)         (43,952)          
     Capital and related financing
        activities (1,175,293)     (1,365,177)      (1,717,639)      189,884         
     Investing activities 409,111         408,202         (733,924)         909               


        Net Change in Cash and
           Cash Equivalents 926,907         803,170         (1,377,577)      123,737         


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   Beginning of Year 2,825,642      2,022,472       3,400,049       803,170         


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   End of Year 3,752,549$     2,825,642$     2,022,472$     926,907$       


 
The increase in cash and cash equivalents in 2013 is a result of cash flows from normal operating 
activities and maturities of long term investments.  The increase of $926,907 was anticipated and in line 
with the 2013 operating budget. 
 
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 15 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 8 


Condensed Statements of Cash Flows - 
Water Utility 


 
2013-2012


2013 2012 2011 Change


Cash Flows From:
     Operating activites 952,858$        1,059,453$      1,017,676$      (106,595)$       
     Non-Capital financing activities (353,038)         (308,070)         (269,762)          (44,968)           
     Capital and related financing
        activities (706,358)         (851,898)         (888,548)          145,540          
     Investing activities (236,512)         411,612           485,432           (648,124)         


        Net Change in Cash and
           Cash Equivalents (343,050)         311,097           344,798           (654,147)         


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   Beginning of Year 1,013,453       702,356           357,558           311,097          


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   End of Year 670,403$       1,013,453$     702,356$        (343,050)$      


 
The water utility experienced a decrease in cash and cash equivalents of $343,050 in 2013. The 
decrease is primarily due to the purchase of long term investment securities.   







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 16 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 9 


Condensed Statements of Cash Flows - 
Wastewater Utility 


 
2013-2012


2013 2012 2011 Change


Cash Flows From:
     Operating activites 1,178,921$     1,201,971$     1,256,322$     (23,050)$        
     Capital and related financing
        activities (1,792,026)     (1,490,850)      (1,574,558)      (301,176)        
     Investing activities (178,826)        287,856         177,730          (466,682)        


        Net Change in Cash and
           Cash Equivalents (791,931)        (1,023)            (140,506)         (790,908)        


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   Beginning of Year 2,241,709      2,242,732       2,383,238       (1,023)           


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   End of Year 1,449,778$     2,241,709$     2,242,732$     (791,931)$      


 
The utility experienced a decrease in cash and cash equivalents of $791,931 in 2013. The 
decrease is due to the purchase of long term investment securities and initial cash expenditures 
for a large wastewater treatment plant electrical upgrade.  The cash expended will be 
reimbursed with Wisconsin Clean Water Fund project financing. 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 17 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 10 


Capital Assets – Electric Utility 
 


2013-2012
2013 2012 2011 Change


Capital Assets
     Transmission and distribution 22,081,116$ 21,618,433$ 21,002,881$  462,683$     
     General 4,385,802     4,367,482     4,312,988      18,320         
          Total Capital Assets 26,466,918   25,985,915   25,315,869    481,003       


Less:  Accumulated depreciation (11,742,374)  (10,854,101)  (10,038,045)   (888,273)      
Construction in progress 1,845            29,095          32,435           (27,250)        


Net Capital Assets 14,726,389$ 15,160,909$ 15,310,259$ (434,520)$   


 
Table 11 


Capital Assets – Water Utility 
 


2013-2012
2013 2012 2011 Change


Capital Assets
     Source of supply 581,758$      581,758$      581,758$       -$               
     Pumping 1,461,653     1,428,957     1,407,274      32,696           
     Water treatment 90,763          90,763          90,763           -                 
     Transmission and distribution 14,776,519   14,400,401   13,904,420    376,118         
     General 1,189,714     1,185,462     914,078         4,252             
          Total Capital Assets 18,100,407   17,687,341   16,898,293    413,066         


Less:  Accumulated depreciation (5,578,071)    (5,174,407)    (4,785,085)     (403,664)        
Construction in progress 24,194          24,233          228,507         (39)                 


Net Capital Assets 12,546,530$ 12,537,167$ 12,341,715$ 9,363$          


 
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 18 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 12 


Capital Assets – Wastewater Utility 
 


2013-2012
2013 2012 2011 Change


Capital Assets
     Collection system 9,092,573$   8,789,146$   8,277,782$    303,427$       
     Collection system pumping 397,412        397,412        397,412         -                 
     Treatment and disposal 13,319,526   12,914,727   12,786,069    404,799         
     General 1,155,937     1,150,622     841,480         5,315             
          Total Capital Assets 23,965,448   23,251,907   22,302,743    713,541         


Less:  Accumulated depreciation (9,062,641)    (8,446,186)    (7,816,519)     (616,455)        
Construction in progress 400,229        215,757        361,261         184,472         


Net Capital Assets 15,303,036$ 15,021,478$ 14,847,485$ 281,558$      


 
 
LONG-TERM DEBT 


 
As of December 31, 2013, the electric utility had total mortgage revenue bond debt outstanding 
of $5,420,000 payable from and secured by a pledge of income and revenue to be derived from 
the operation of the electric utility. These issues were issued for electric system improvements, 
the construction of new substation, an east substation transformer, and costs associated with 
the implementation of automated meter reading (AMR). 
 
As of December 31, 2013, the water utility had total mortgage revenue bond debt outstanding of 
$2,077,213 payable from and secured by a pledge of income and revenue to be derived from the 
operation of the water utility. These issues were primarily for additions and improvements to the 
water system, street improvement projects, AMR implementation and a new tower.  
 
The wastewater utility had $2,903,455 of clean water fund loans outstanding as of December 31, 
2013. These bonds were issued for a series of wastewater treatment plant upgrade and 
expansion projects.  
 
Tables of separate bond issues are included in note 7 of this audit report. 
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 19 


 
CONTACTING UTILITY MANAGEMENT 


 
This financial report is designed to provide our customers, investors and creditors with a general 
overview of the utilities’ finances. If you have questions about this report, or need additional 
financial information, contact the Finance and Administrative Manager, Stoughton Utilities, 600 
South Fourth Street, P.O. Box 383, Stoughton, WI  53589. 
 
General information relating to the Stoughton Utilities can be found at the utilities’ web site at 
www.stoughtonutilities.com.   
 







 


ELECTRIC UTILITY 
 
 







2013 2012
CURRENT ASSETS


Cash and investments 5,622,496$        5,082,813$       
Interest receivable 19,115               30,252              
Restricted Assets


Redemption account 387,545             377,610            
Customer accounts receivable 1,627,431          1,445,185         
Other accounts receivable 65,639               167,935            
Due from municipality 17,389               24,918              
Current portion of advance to municipality 33,119               31,250              
Materials and supplies 136,045             139,181            
Prepayments 20,681               20,425              


Total Current Assets 7,929,460          7,319,569         


NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets


Reserve account 704,728             704,728            
Depreciation account 25,000               25,000              


Other Assets
Electric plant and maintenance reserve account 505,712             504,498            
Sick leave reserve account 173,704             170,916            
Advance to municipality 448,806             481,925            
Investment in ATC 302,062             282,798            
Nonutility property (net) 25,273               28,933              


Capital Assets
Plant in service 26,114,254        25,633,251       
Accumulated depreciation (11,742,374)       (10,854,101)      
Property held for future use 352,664             352,664            
Construction work in progress 1,845                 29,095              


Total Noncurrent Assets 16,911,674        17,359,707       


Total Assets 24,841,134        24,679,276       


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2013 and 2012


ASSETS


Page 20







2013 2012
CURRENT LIABILITIES


Accounts payable 1,071,358$        1,056,225$       
Due to municipality 453,337             363,359            
Customer deposits 155,552             144,259            
Accrued wages 21,305               18,512              
Accrued interest 2,315                 2,241                
Accrued liabilities 130,749             138,067            
Commitment to community 30,854               (24,064)             
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets


Current portion of revenue bonds 480,000             400,000            
Accrued interest 41,231               67,761              


Total Current Liabilities 2,386,701          2,166,360         


NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Revenue bonds 4,940,000          5,505,000         
Unamortized premium on bonds 74,461               -                    
Accrued sick leave 173,704             171,819            
Customer advances for construction 5,514                 8,082                


Total Noncurrent Liabilities 5,193,679          5,684,901         


Total Liabilities 7,580,380          7,851,261         


Net investment in capital assets 9,231,928          9,255,909         
Restricted for debt service 1,076,042          1,039,577         
Unrestricted 6,952,784          6,532,529         


TOTAL NET POSITION 17,260,754$     16,828,015$    


LIABILITIES


NET POSITION


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 21







2013 2012
OPERATING REVENUES


Sales of electricity 15,233,311$      15,235,813$     
Other 146,368             149,454            


Total Operating Revenues 15,379,679        15,385,267       


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance 13,512,427        13,336,299       
Depreciation 918,885             910,353            


Total Operating Expenses 14,431,312        14,246,652       


OPERATING INCOME 948,367             1,138,615         


NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 59,346               100,685            
Interest expense (199,379)            (274,683)           
Debt issuance costs (51,813)              -                    
Amortization of premium on bonds 11,962               -                    
Miscellaneous revenues (expenses) (3,660)                (1,473)               


Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (183,544)            (175,471)           


Income Before Contributions and Transfers 764,823             963,144            


CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 78,489               130,561            
TRANSFER IN (OUT) (29,989)              (25,600)             
TRANSFERS - TAX EQUIVALENT (380,584)            (363,359)           


CHANGE IN NET POSITION 432,739             704,746            


NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 16,828,015        16,123,269       


NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 17,260,754$     16,828,015$    


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 22







2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Received from customers 15,181,787$       15,166,459$     
Received for street lighting 132,993              132,550            
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (12,528,169)       (12,336,543)      
Paid to employees for operating payroll (758,112)            (917,915)           
Customer deposit 11,293                18,345              


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 2,039,792           2,062,896         


CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Paid to municipality for tax equivalent (363,359)            (322,881)           
Received from municipality principal on Wisconsin Retirement UAAL liability 31,250                41,569              
Received from municipality interest on Wisconsin Retirement UAAL liability 15,395                4,161                
Transfers to other funds (29,989)              (25,600)             


Net Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities (346,703)            (302,751)           


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (570,320)            (847,627)           
Received from the sale of capital assets 6,513                  3,774                
Capital contributions received 64,739                131,919            
Proceeds on bond refunding 3,170,000           -                    
Debt retired (3,655,000)         (375,000)           
Interest paid (225,835)            (278,243)           
Debt issuance costs paid (51,813)              -                    
Premium received 86,423                -                    


Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities (1,175,293)         (1,365,177)        


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments purchased (1,473,764)         (1,855,546)        
Investments sold and matured 1,847,051           2,084,356         
Dividends/(Investment) in ATC 12,731                7,466                
Investment income 23,093                171,926            


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 409,111              408,202            


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 926,907              803,170            


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 2,825,642           2,022,472         


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 3,752,549$         2,825,642$      


NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Unrealized gain (loss) on investments (63,334)$            (107,331)$        
ATC earnings allocated 31,995$              30,595$            


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012


Page 23







2013 2012
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
  FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Operating income 948,367$           1,138,615$       
Nonoperating revenue (expense) (3,660)                (1,473)               
Noncash items in operating income


Depreciation 918,885             910,353            
Depreciation charged to clearing and other utilities 39,600               39,600              


Changes in assets and liabilities
Customer accounts receivable (182,246)            46,299              
Other account receivable 113,478             (133,269)           
Due from municipality 7,529                 712                   
Due to municipality 72,753               -                    
Materials and supplies 3,136                 (4,124)               
Prepayments (256)                   4,852                
Accounts payable 58,635               87,308              
Customer deposits 11,293               18,345              
Accrued sick leave 1,885                 903                   
Other current liabilities (4,525)                35,438              
Commitment to community 54,918               (80,663)             


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,039,792$       2,062,896$      


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO
   STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION ACCOUNTS


Cash and investments 5,622,496$        5,082,813$       
Redemption account 387,545             377,610            
Reserve account 704,728             704,728            
Depreciation account 25,000               25,000              
Electric plant and maintenance reserve account 505,712             504,498            
Sick leave reserve account 173,704             170,916            


Total Cash and Investments 7,419,185          6,865,565         
Less: Noncash equivalents (3,666,636)         (4,039,923)        


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,752,549$       2,825,642$      


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 24







 


WATER UTILITY 
 







2013 2012
CURRENT ASSETS


Cash and investments 317,809$           405,347$          
Interest receivable 10,665               7,346                
Restricted Assets


Redemption account 123,710             147,233            
Customer accounts receivable 174,323             164,941            
Other accounts receivable 5,808                 -                    
Due from municipality 2,709                 6,341                
Materials and supplies 36,627               35,244              
Prepayments 7,157                 7,064                


Total Current Assets 678,808             773,516            


NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets


Reserve account 274,005             274,005            
Depreciation account 25,000               25,000              


Other Assets
Water plant and maintenance reserve account 447,924             447,481            
Sick leave reserve account 94,638               88,632              
Non-utility property (net) 43,478               47,758              


Capital Assets
Plant in service 18,100,407        17,687,341       
Accumulated depreciation (5,578,071)         (5,174,407)        
Construction work in progress 24,194               24,233              


Total Noncurrent Assets 13,431,575        13,420,043       


Total Assets 14,110,383        14,193,559       


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2013 and 2012


ASSETS


Page 25







2013 2012
CURRENT LIABILITIES


Accounts payable 20,627$             48,977$            
Due to municipality 361,820             342,159            
Customer deposits 39                      591                   
Accrued wages 13,123               12,190              
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets


Current portion of revenue bonds 150,575             184,910            
Accrued interest 13,879               15,170              


Total Current Liabilities 560,063             603,997            


NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Revenue bonds 1,926,638          2,077,213         
Accrued sick leave 94,638               92,446              


Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2,021,276          2,169,659         


Total Liabilities 2,581,339          2,773,656         


Net investment in capital assets 10,469,317        10,275,044       
Restricted 408,836             431,068            
Unrestricted 650,891             713,791            


TOTAL NET POSITION 11,529,044$     11,419,903$    


LIABILITIES


NET POSITION


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 26







2013 2012
OPERATING REVENUES


Sales of water 1,707,683$        1,733,587$       
Other 20,286               23,291              


Total Operating Revenues 1,727,969          1,756,878         


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance 779,963             745,471            
Depreciation 381,278             364,679            


Total Operating Expenses 1,161,241          1,110,150         


OPERATING INCOME 566,728             646,728            


NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 5,245                 10,718              
Interest expense (85,856)              (93,433)             
Miscellaneous expenses (4,277)                (4,273)               


Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (84,888)              (86,988)             


Income Before Contributions and Transfers 481,840             559,740            


CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS -                     9,000                
TRANSFER IN (OUT) (10,879)              (6,935)               
TRANSFERS - TAX EQUIVALENT (361,820)            (342,159)           


CHANGE IN NET POSITION 109,141             219,646            


NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 11,419,903        11,200,257       


NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 11,529,044$     11,419,903$    


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 27







2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Received from customers 1,728,676$        1,775,815$       
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (494,642)            (459,540)           
Paid to employees for operating payroll (281,176)            (256,822)           


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 952,858             1,059,453         


CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Paid to municipality for tax equivalent (342,159)            (301,135)           
Transfers to other funds (10,879)              (6,935)               


Net Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities (353,038)            (308,070)           


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (434,301)            (586,893)           
Capital contributions received -                     9,000                
Debt retired (184,910)            (179,263)           
Interest paid (87,147)              (94,742)             


Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities (706,358)            (851,898)           


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments purchased (608,868)            -                    
Investments sold and matured 370,430             394,835            
Investment income 1,926                 16,777              


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities (236,512)            411,612            


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (343,050)            311,097            


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 1,013,453          702,356            


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 670,403$           1,013,453$      


NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 14,871$             (8,914)$            


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012


Page 28







2013 2012
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
  FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Operating income 566,728$           646,728$          
Nonoperating income (expense) (4,277)                -                    
Noncash items in operating income


Depreciation 381,278             364,679            
Depreciation charged to clearing and other utilities 27,342               27,007              


Changes in assets and liabilities
Customer accounts receivable (9,382)                20,821              
Other account receivable (5,808)                4,457                
Due from municipality 3,632                 (6,341)               
Materials and supplies (1,383)                (11,987)             
Prepayments (93)                     1,764                
Accounts payable (7,753)                11,163              
Accrued wages 933                    (2,652)               
Accrued sick leave 2,192                 3,814                
Customer deposits (552)                   -                    


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 952,858$           1,059,453$      


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO
   STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION ACCOUNTS


Cash and investments 317,809$           405,347$          
Redemption account 123,710             147,233            
Reserve account 274,005             274,005            
Depreciation account 25,000               25,000              
Water plant and maintenance reserve account 447,924             447,481            
Sick leave reserve account 94,638               88,632              


Total Cash and Investments 1,283,086          1,387,698         
Less: Noncash equivalents (612,683)            (374,245)           


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 670,403$           1,013,453$      


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 29







 


WASTEWATER UTILITY 
 







2013 2012
CURRENT ASSETS


Cash and investments 738,999$           1,088,123$       
Interest receivable 4,107                 1,732                
Restricted Assets


Redemption account 198,451             456,417            
Customer accounts receivable 204,873             203,564            
Other accounts receivable 14,426               18,068              
Due from municipality 2,789                 5,971                
Prepayments 8,946                 8,829                


Total Current Assets 1,172,591          1,782,704         


NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets


Depreciation account 33,283               33,283              
Replacement account 1,029,299          1,028,014         
Construction account 123                    123                   


Other Assets
Sick leave reserve account 91,605               97,782              


Capital Assets
Plant in service 23,965,448        23,251,907       
Accumulated depreciation (9,062,641)         (8,446,186)        
Construction work in progress 400,229             215,757            


Total Noncurrent Assets 16,457,346        16,180,680       


Total Assets 17,629,937        17,963,384       


STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2013 and 2012


ASSETS


Page 30







2013 2012
CURRENT LIABILITIES


Accounts payable 47,522$             151,503$          
Accrued wages 20,838               15,588              
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets


Current portion of revenue bonds 256,735             649,737            
Accrued interest 13,110               16,419              


Total Current Liabilities 338,205             833,247            


NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Revenue bonds 2,646,720          2,903,455         
Accrued sick leave 91,605               91,717              


Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2,738,325          2,995,172         


Total Liabilities 3,076,530          3,828,419         


Net investment in capital assets 12,399,704        11,468,409       
Restricted for debt service 218,624             473,281            
Restricted for equipment replacement 1,029,299          1,028,014         
Unrestricted 905,780             1,165,261         


TOTAL NET POSITION 14,553,407$     14,134,965$    


LIABILITIES


NET POSITION


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 31







2013 2012
OPERATING REVENUES


Treatment charges 1,997,981$        2,028,904$       
Other 31,483               33,702              


Total Operating Revenues 2,029,464          2,062,606         


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance 877,420             877,033            
Depreciation 673,593             630,188            


Total Operating Expenses 1,551,013          1,507,221         


OPERATING INCOME 478,451             555,385            


NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 3,498                 9,763                
Interest expense (85,280)              (104,934)           


Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (81,782)              (95,171)             


Income Before Contributions 396,669             460,214            


CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 21,773               49,255              


CHANGE IN NET POSITION 418,442             509,469            


NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 14,134,965        13,625,496       


NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 14,553,407$     14,134,965$    


STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 32







2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Received from customers 2,034,979$        2,059,184$       
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (514,833)            (533,151)           
Paid to employees for operating payroll (341,225)            (324,062)           


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 1,178,921          1,201,971         


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,053,700)         (752,227)           
Debt retired (649,737)            (630,474)           
Interest paid (88,589)              (108,149)           


Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities (1,792,026)         (1,490,850)        


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments purchased (608,868)            (246,000)           
Investments sold and matured 428,919             510,721            
Investment income 1,123                 23,135              


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities (178,826)            287,856            


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (791,931)            (1,023)               


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 2,241,709          2,242,732         


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 1,449,778$        2,241,709$      


NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Unrealized gain (loss) on investments 22,685$             (14,721)$          


Capital assets financed by CTC program 21,773$             49,255$           


STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012


Page 33







2013 2012
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
  FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Operating income 478,451$           555,385$          
Nonoperating revenue (expense) -                    
Noncash items in operating income


Depreciation 673,593             630,188            
Changes in assets and liabilities


Customer accounts receivable (1,309)                19,070              
Other account receivable 3,642                 (16,521)             
Due from municipality 3,182                 (5,971)               
Prepayments (117)                   2,206                
Accounts payable 16,341               25,775              
Accrued sick leave (112)                   (6,065)               
Other current liabilities 5,250                 (2,096)               


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,178,921$       1,201,971$      


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO
   STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION ACCOUNTS


Cash and investments 738,999$           1,088,123$       
Redemption account 198,451             456,417            
Depreciation account 33,283               33,283              
Replacement account 1,029,299          1,028,014         
Construction account 123                    123                   
Sick leave reserve account 91,605               97,782              


Total Cash and Investments 2,091,760          2,703,742         
Less: Noncash equivalents (641,982)            (462,033)           


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,449,778$       2,241,709$      


STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 34







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


Page 35 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The financial statements of Stoughton Utilities (utilities) have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to enterprise funds of 
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  
 
The significant accounting principles and policies utilized by the utilities are described below. 
    
 REPORTING ENTITY 
 
The utilities are separate enterprise funds of the City of Stoughton (municipality). The utilities are 
managed by a utilities committee. The utilities provide electric, water and wastewater service to properties 
within the municipality.  The utilities also provide electric service to the Townships of Dunkirk, Dunn, 
Pleasant Springs, Porter and Rutland. 
 
The electric and water utilities operate under service rules and rates established by the Public Service 
Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).  The wastewater utility operates under rules and rates established by 
the utilities committee.  The utilities are also regulated by the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources. 
 
 MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 
 
The utilities are presented as enterprise funds of the municipality. Enterprise funds are used to account 
for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business or where the 
governing body has decided that the determination of revenues earned, costs incurred and net income is 
necessary for management accountability. 
 
The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and 
expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used.  Revenues, expenses, 
gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are 
recognized when the exchange takes place.   
 
In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 65 – Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.  
This statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred 
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as 
assets and liabilities.  The utilities implemented this standard effective January 1, 2013. 
 
Preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.) 
 


Page 36 


 ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 


 
  Deposits and Investments 
 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents have original maturities of three 
months or less from the date of acquisition. 
 
Investment of utilities' funds are restricted by state statutes.  Investments are limited to: 
 
 1. Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank or trust company maturing in three years or 


less. 


 2. Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district, village, town, or 
school district of the state. Also, bonds issued by a local exposition district, local professional 
baseball park district, local professional football stadium district, local cultural arts district or by the 
University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority. 


 3. Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government. 


 4. The local government investment pool. 


 5. Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest rating 
category of a nationally recognized rating agency. 


 6. Securities of an open end management investment company or investment trust, subject to various 
conditions and investment options. 


 7. Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions. 
 
The utilities have adopted an investment policy. That policy follows the state statute for allowable 
investments. 
 
Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on quoted market prices.  No 
investments are reported at amortized cost. Adjustments necessary to record investments at fair value 
are recorded in the operating statement as increases or decreases in investment income.  Market values 
may have changed significantly after year end. 
 
  Receivables/Payables 
 
Transactions between the utilities and other funds of the municipality that are representative of 
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at year end are referred to as advances to/from other funds. 
All other outstanding balances between the utilities and other funds of the municipality are reported as 
due to/from other funds. 
 
The utilities have the right under Wisconsin statutes to place delinquent electric, water and wastewater 
bills on the tax roll for collection for properties within the municipality. As such, no allowance for 
uncollectible customer accounts is considered necessary. 
 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.) 
 
 ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION (cont.) 
 


Page 37 


  Materials and Supplies  
 
Materials and supplies are generally used for construction, operation and maintenance work, not for 
resale. They are valued at the lower of cost or market utilizing the average cost method and charged to 
construction or expense when used. 
  
  Restricted Assets 
 
Mandatory segregations of assets are presented as restricted assets.  Such segregations are required by 
bond agreements and other external parties.  Current liabilities payable from these restricted assets are 
so classified.   
   
  Investment in American Transmission Company (ATC) 
 
The electric utility is a member of ATC.  ATC was formed by approximately 25 utilities to plan, construct, 
maintain, monitor and own electric transmission facilities in Wisconsin.  The utility owns less than 1/2 of 1 
percent of ATC. 
 
The investment earns dividends quarterly, some of which are paid in cash and some of which are 
required to be reinvested.  From time to time, the utility has the option to contribute additional funds to 
maintain their proportionate share of ownership.  The asset is valued at original cost plus additional 
contributions and reinvested dividends.   
 
  Sick Leave Reserve Account 
 
Upon retirement, these funds are used for insurance coverage for utility employees. 
 
   Plant and Maintenance Reserve Account 
 
These accounts are utilized to segregate funds for the future repairs and replacements of electric and 
water utility capital assets as designated by the committee.  
     
  Non-Utility Property 
 
Electric utility non-utility property consists of the city dam with a balance of $84,212 and leasehold rental 
property with a balance of $91,458 at December 31, 2013 and 2012.  Water utility non-utility property 
consists of a park shelter with a balance of $107,000 at December 31, 2013 and 2012.  The costs are 
being amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful life. 
 
       Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are generally defined by the utilities as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than 
$1,500 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. 
 
Capital assets of the utilities are recorded at cost or the fair market value at the time of contribution to the 
utilities. Major outlays for utilities plant are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during 
the construction phase is reflected in the capitalized value of the capital assets constructed, net of interest 
earned on the invested proceeds over the same period. Capital assets in service are depreciated using 
the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 
 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.) 
 
 ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION (cont.) 
 
  Capital Assets (cont.) 
 


Page 38 


  Years  
Electric Plant    


Transmission  33  
Distribution  25 - 54  
General  5 - 30  
    


Water Plant    
Source of supply  34  
Pumping  23 - 31  
Water treatment  30 - 31  
Transmission and distribution  18 - 77  
General  4 - 34  
    


Wastewater Plant    
Collecting system  100  
Collecting system pumping  25 - 50  
Treatment and disposal  15 - 40  
General  5 - 20  


 
  Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave 
 
Under terms of employment, employees are granted sick leave and vacations in varying amounts. Only 
benefits considered to be vested are disclosed in these statements.  Vested vacation and sick leave pay 
is accrued when earned in the financial statements.  The liability is liquidated from general operating 
revenues of the utilities.   
 
  Customer Advances for Construction 
 
The balance represents fees collected for future capital improvements.  The fees may be refundable 
based on rules filed with the PSCW or statutory requirements.   
 
     Commitment to Community 
 
The electric utility charges fees to all customers as required by the 1999 Energy Reliability Act and 2005 
Act 141. Revenues generated from the fees are used to fund energy conservation and low-income energy 
assistance ("Commitment to Community") programs. The utility is acting as an agent administering the 
low income program fees so revenues and expenses associated with the low income program are 
recorded as a current liability on the statement of net position. 
 
  Customer Deposits  
 
This account represents amounts deposited with the utilities by customers as security for payment of bills. 
 
  Accrued liabilities 
 
The balance represents collections of various payroll and sales taxes due to the state and federal 
government.







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.) 
 
 ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION (cont.) 
 


Page 39 


  Long-Term Obligations 
 
Long-term debt and other obligations are reported as utilities liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.  Gains or losses on 
prior refundings are amortized over the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever 
is shorter.  The balance at year end for premiums and discounts is shown as an increase or decrease in 
the liability section of the statement of net position.   
  
 REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
 
The utilities distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection 
with the utilities' principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the utilities are charges 
to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales 
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses 
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
  Charges for Services 
 
Billings are rendered and recorded monthly based on metered usage. The utilities do accrue revenues 
beyond billing dates.  
  
Current electric rates were approved by the PSCW on January 3, 2011.  The rates are designed to 
provide a 6.5% return on rate base 
  
Current water rates were approved by the PSCW effective September 1, 2010.  The rates are designed to 
earn a 6.5% return on rate base 
  
Current wastewater rates were approved by the utilities committee effective July 5, 2007.   
  
    Capital Contributions 
 
Cash and capital assets are contributed to the utilities from customers, the municipality or external 
parties.  The value of property contributed to the utilities is reported as revenue on the statements of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net position.   
 
  Transfers 
 
Transfers include the payment in lieu of taxes to the municipality and other operating transfers. 
 
 EFFECT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ON CURRENT PERIOD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has approved GASB Statement No. 67, 
Financial Reporting for Pension Plans – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25; Statement No. 68, 
Accounting and Financial reporting for Pensions – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27; Statement 
No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations; and Statement No. 70, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees.  Application of these 
standards may restate portions of these financial statements.







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.) 
 


Page 40 


 COMPARATIVE DATA 
 
Certain amounts presented in the prior year data may have been reclassified in order to be consistent 
with the current year’s presentation.   
 


NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 


 Carrying Value as of 
December 31,  


 


  2013  2012  Risks 


Checking and Savings $ 5,162,273 $ 5,099,721 Custodial credit risk 
LGIP  709,707  981,261 Credit risk 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit  2,226,329  1,493,474 Custodial credit, credit, 


concentration, and interest 
rate risks 


U.S. Agency Securities  2,694,972  2,874,519 Custodial credit, credit, 
concentration and interest 
rate risks 


Corporate Bonds  -  507,280 Custodial credit, credit, 
concentration and interest 
rate risks 


Petty Cash  750  750  


 Totals $ 10,794,031 $ 10,957,005  
 


Deposits in each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 for time and 
savings accounts (including NOW accounts), $250,000 for demand deposit accounts (interest bearing 
and noninterest bearing).  In addition, if deposits are held in an institution outside of the state in which the 
government is located, insured amounts are further limited to a total of $250,000 for the combined 
amount of all deposit accounts. 
 
Bank accounts are also insured by the State Deposit Guarantee Fund (SDGF) in the amount of $400,000.  
 
The utilities may also maintain separate cash and investment accounts at the same financial institutions 
utilized by the municipality.  Federal depository insurance and the SDGF apply to all municipal accounts, 
and accordingly, the amount of insured funds is not determinable for the utilities alone.  Therefore, 
coverage for the utilities may be reduced.  Investment income on commingled investments of the entire 
municipality is allocated based on average investment balances.  
 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (cont.) 
 


Page 41 


$500,000 of the utilities' investments have coverage from the Securities Investor Protection Corporation 
(SIPC).    
 
In addition, the utilities, with the city, have collateral or depository insurance agreements in the amount of 
$2,423,175 at December 31, 2013 and $3,690,884 at December 31, 2012. 
 
The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is part of the State Investment Fund (SIF), and 
is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory authority of Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF 
reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. Participants in the LGIP have the right to withdraw 
their funds in total on one day's notice. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the fair value of the LGIP's 
assets were substantially equal to the utilities' share. 
 
   Custodial Credit Risk 


 
Deposits 


Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the utilities' deposits may 
not be returned to the utilities. 


The utilities maintain certain deposits at the same institutions as the municipality.  The custodial credit risk 
pertaining specifically to the utilities' resources at these institutions cannot be determined individually for 
those accounts.  The following is a summary of the utilities' total deposit balances at these institutions. 


 


The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk. 
 
Investments 
 
For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the 
utilities will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. 
 


Bank Carrying Bank Carrying
Balance Value Balance Value


Wells Fargo 3,188,597$     3,246,867$      3,915,203$        3,876,690$     
Wells Fargo Brokerage 928                 928                  928                    928                 
Associated Bank 1,915,109       1,915,109        1,222,732          1,222,732       


Deposits Exposed to Custodial 
  Credit Risk 5,104,634$    5,162,904$     5,138,863$       5,100,350$     


2013 2012







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (cont.) 
 
  Custodial Credit Risk (cont.) 
 
Investments (cont.) 
 


Page 42 


As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 the utilities' investments were exposed to custodial credit risk as 
follows: 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed  2013   2012  


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty $ 2,694,972  $ 2,874,519  


Corporate Bonds    


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty $ -  $ 507,280  


Negotiable Certificates of Deposit    


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty $ 5,150  $ 10,232  
 
 All remaining certificates are covered by FDIC. 
 
The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk. 
 
  Credit Risk 


 
Credit risk is the risk an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. 
 
As of December 31, 2013, the utilities' investments were rated as follows: 
 


Investment Type 
Standard & 


Poors 


Moody's 
Investors 
Services 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed AAA Aa 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit not rated  


 
As of December 31, 2012, the utilities' investments were rated as follows: 
 


Investment Type 
Standard & 


Poors 


Moody's 
Investors 
Services 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed AAA Aa 
Corporate Bonds AA+ A1 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit not rated  







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (cont.) 
 
 Credit Risk (cont.) 


 


Page 43 


The utilities held investments in the Local Government Investment Pool which is an external pool that is 
not rated. 


 
The utilities' investment policy follows state statutes.  
 
 Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in 
a single issuer. 
 
At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the utilities' investment portfolio was concentrated as follows: 
 
   Percentage of Portfolio 


Issuer Investment Type  2013  2012 


Ginnie Mae U.S. Agencies – Implicitly Guaranteed 20.83% 21.06% 
GE Capital Corporate bond     -      4.63% 
FHR 4083 PA U.S. Agencies – Implicitly Guaranteed 4.03% 0% 
FHR 3857 EC U.S. Agencies – Implicitly Guaranteed 3.65% 0% 
FHLMC U.S. Agencies – Implicitly Guaranteed 3.69% 0% 
    


 
The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk. 


 
 Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
 
As of December 31, 2013, the utilities' investments were as follows: 
 


 Maturity (In Years) 


Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1 - 3 3 or more 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed $ 2,694,972 $ 216,701 $ - $ 2,478,271 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit  2,226,329           735,710  1,490,619  - 


Totals $ 4,921,301 $ 952,411 $ 1,490,619 $ 2,478,271 
 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (cont.) 
 
 Interest Rate Risk (cont.) 


Page 44 


 
As of December 31, 2012, the utilities' investments were as follows: 
 


 Maturity (In Years) 


Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1 - 3 3 or more 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed $ 2,874,519 $ 176,657 $ 215,299 $ 2,482,563 
Corporate Bonds  507,280  507,280  -  - 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit  1,493,474  248,124  735,118  510,232 


Totals $ 4,875,273 $ 932,061 $ 950,417 $ 2,992,795 
 
The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk. 
 


NOTE 3 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 
 
The following is a schedule of interfund balances for the years ending December 31, 2013 and 2012: 
 
  2013  2012 
 Due To   Due From   Amount  Principal Purpose  Amount   Principal Purpose 
      
Municipality Water utility $ 361,820 Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
$ 342,159  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
Electric utility Municipality  17,389 Operating  24,918  Operating 
Water utility Municipality  2,709 Operating  6,341  Operating 
Sewer utility Municipality  2,789 Operating  5,971  Operating 
Municipality Electric utility  72,753 Stormwater  -  Stormwater 
Municipality Electric utility  380,584 Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
 363,359  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
 
The following is a schedule of transfers for the years ending December 31, 2013 and 2012: 
 
  2013  2012 
 To   From   Amount  Principal Purpose  Amount   Principal Purpose 
      
Municipality Electric utility $ 29,989 Operating  $ 25,600  Operating  
Municipality Electric utility  380,584 Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
 363,359  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
Municipality Water utility  10,879 Operating  6,935  Operating 
Municipality Water utility  361,820 Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
 342,159  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
 
 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


Page 45 


NOTE 4 - ADVANCE RECEIVABLE 
 
In December 2011, the Electric Utility provided an advance to the General Fund in the amount of 
$554,744 for the purpose of full payment of the Wisconsin Retirement System Unfunded Actuarial 
Accrued Liability.  The General Fund will repay the Electric Utility over a period of fourteen years at 3.0% 
annual interest.  The amount outstanding at December 31, 2013 is $481,925. 
Repayment requirements to maturity follow: 
 


Year Ending    
December 31  Principal  Interest  Total 


2014 $ 33,119 $ 14,458 $ 47,577 
2015  35,065  13,464  48,529 
2016  37,088  12,412  49,500 
2017  39,190  11,300  50,490 
2018  41,375  10,124  51,499 
2019 - 2023  242,769  30,597  273,366 
2024 - 2025  53,319  1,778  55,097 


Totals $ 481,925 $ 94,133 $ 576,058 
 


NOTE 5 - RESTRICTED ASSETS 
 
 Restricted Accounts 
 
Certain proceeds of the utilities' debt, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are 
classified as restricted assets on the statement of net position because their use is limited. The following 
accounts are reported as restricted assets: 
 
 Redemption – Used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments  
   over the next twelve months.  
 Reserve – Used to report resources set aside to make up potential future  
   deficiencies in the redemption account. 
 Depreciation – Used to report resources set aside to fund plant renewals and  
   replacement or make up potential future deficiencies in the  
   redemption account. 
 Construction – Used to report debt proceeds restricted for use in construction. 
 
 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 5 - RESTRICTED ASSETS (cont.) 
 


Page 46 


Replacement Account 
 
As a condition of receiving state and federal funds for wastewater plant construction, the utilities have 
established an account for replacement of certain mechanical equipment.  
 
Restricted Net Position 
 
The following calculation supports the amount of electric restricted net position: 
 


  2013  2012 
Restricted Assets   


Redemption account $ 387,545 $ 377,610 
Reserve account  704,728  704,728 
Depreciation account  25,000  25,000 


Total Restricted Assets  1,117,273  1,107,338 
   


Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets  (41,231)  (67,761) 
   


Total Restricted Net Position as Calculated $ 1,076,042 $ 1,039,577 
 
The following calculation supports the amount of water restricted net position: 
 


  2013  2012 
Restricted Assets   


Redemption account $ 123,710 $ 147,233 
Reserve account  274,005  274,005 
Depreciation account  25,000  25,000 


Total Restricted Assets  422,715  446,238 
   


Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets  (13,879)  (15,170) 
   


Total Restricted Net Position as Calculated $ 408,836 $ 431,068 
 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 5 - RESTRICTED ASSETS (cont.) 
 
 Restricted Net Position (cont.) 


Page 47 


 
The following calculation supports the amount of wastewater restricted net position: 
 


  2013  2012 
Restricted Assets   


Redemption account $ 198,451 $ 456,417 
Depreciation account  33,283  33,283 
Replacement account  1,029,299  1,028,014 
Construction account  123  123 


Total Restricted Assets  1,261,156  1,517,837 


Less:  Restricted Assets Not Funded by Revenues   
Construction account  (123)  (123) 


Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets  (13,110)  (16,419) 


Total Restricted Net Position as Calculated $ 1,247,923 $ 1,501,295 
 


NOTE 6 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
 Electric Utility 
 
A summary of changes in electric capital assets for 2013 follows: 
 
  Balance       Balance 
  01/01/13  Increases  Decreases   12/31/13 
Capital assets, not being depreciated     


Land and land rights $ 573,461 $ - $ -  $ 573,461 
     
Capital assets being depreciated      


Transmission  15,019  -  -   15,019 
Distribution  21,382,617  531,617  68,934   21,845,300 
General  4,014,818  18,320  -   4,033,138 


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


 
 25,412,454 


 
 549,937 


 
 68,934  


 
 25,893,457 


     
Total Capital Assets  25,985,915  549,937  68,934   26,466,918 


     
Less:  Accumulated depreciation      


Transmission  (19,366)  -  -   (19,366) 
Distribution  (8,617,372)  (788,359)  76,725   (9,329,006) 
General  (2,217,363)  (176,639)  -   (2,394,002) 


Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 


 
 (10,854,101) 


 
 (964,998) 


 
 76,725  


 
 (11,742,374) 


     
Construction in progress  29,095  593,691  620,941   1,845 
     


Net Capital Assets $ 15,160,909   $ 14,726,389 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 6 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.) 
 
 Electric Utility (cont.) 
 


Page 48 


A summary of changes in electric capital assets for 2012 follows: 
 
  Balance       Balance 
  01/01/12  Increases  Decreases   12/31/12 
Capital assets, not being depreciated     


Land and land rights $ 573,461 $ - $ -  $ 573,461 
     
Capital assets being depreciated      


Transmission  15,019  -  -   15,019 
Distribution  20,767,065  736,803  121,251   21,382,617 
General  3,960,324  54,494  -   4,014,818 


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


 
 24,742,408 


 
 791,297 


 
 121,251  


 
 25,412,454 


     
Total Capital Assets  25,315,869  791,297  121,251   25,985,915 


     
Less:  Accumulated depreciation      


Transmission  (19,366)  -  -   (19,366) 
Distribution  (7,988,476)  (766,568)  137,672   (8,617,372) 
General  (2,030,203)  (187,160)  -   (2,217,363) 


Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 


 
 (10,038,045) 


 
 (953,728) 


 
 137,672  


 
 (10,854,101) 


     
Construction in progress  32,435  790,125  793,465   29,095 
     


Net Capital Assets $ 15,310,259   $ 15,160,909 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 6 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.) 
 


Page 49 


 Water Utility 
 
A summary of changes in water capital assets for 2013 follows: 
 
  Balance       Balance 
  01/01/13  Increases  Decreases   12/31/13 
Capital assets, not being depreciated     


Land and land rights $ 430,131 $ - $ -  $ 430,131 
     
Capital assets being depreciated      


Source of supply  570,123  -  -   570,123 
Pumping  1,428,957  32,696  -   1,461,653 
Water treatment  90,763  -  -   90,763 
Transmission and distribution  14,387,195  381,074  4,956  14,763,313 
General  780,172  4,252  -   784,424 


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


 
 17,257,210 


 
 418,022 


 
 4,956  


 
 17,670,276 


     
Total Capital Assets  17,687,341  418,022  4,956   18,100,407 


     
Less:  Accumulated depreciation      


Source of supply  (302,464)  (16,534)  -   (318,998) 
Pumping  (1,044,059)  (56,417)  -   (1,100,476) 
Water treatment  (86,892)  (437)  -   (87,329) 
Transmission and distribution  (3,198,394)  (268,403)  4,956   (3,461,841) 
General  (542,598)  (66,829)  -   (609,427) 


Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 


 
 (5,174,407) 


 
 (408,620) 


 
 4,956  


 
 (5,578,071) 


     
Construction in progress  24,233  475,491  475,530   24,194 
     


Net Capital Assets $ 12,537,167   $ 12,546,530 
 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 6 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.) 
 


Page 50 


 Water Utility (cont.) 
 
A summary of changes in water capital assets for 2012 follows: 
 
     
  Balance       Balance 
  01/01/12  Increases  Decreases   12/31/12 
Capital assets, not being depreciated     


Land and land rights $ 430,131 $ - $ -  $ 430,131 
     
Capital assets being depreciated      


Source of supply  570,123  -  -   570,123 
Pumping  1,407,274  21,683  -   1,428,957 
Water treatment  90,763  -  -   90,763 
Transmission and distribution  13,891,214  502,758  6,777   14,387,195 
General  508,788  271,384  -   780,172 


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


 
 16,468,162 


 
 795,825 


 
 6,777  


 
 17,257,210 


     
Total Capital Assets  16,898,293  795,825  6,777   17,687,341 


     
Less:  Accumulated depreciation      


Source of supply  (285,930)  (16,534)  -   (302,464) 
Pumping  (988,708)  (55,351)  -   (1,044,059) 
Water treatment  (85,576)  (1,316)  -   (86,892) 
Transmission and distribution  (2,939,773)  (261,187)  2,566   (3,198,394) 
General  (485,098)  (57,500)  -   (542,598) 


Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 


 
 (4,785,085) 


 
 (391,888) 


 
 2,566  


 
 (5,174,407) 


     
Construction in progress  228,507  582,673  786,947   24,233 
     


Net Capital Assets $ 12,341,715   $ 12,537,167 
     
     


     
     
     


     
     
     


     
     
     
     
     


     
     


 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 6 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.) 
 


Page 51 


 Wastewater Utility 
 
A summary of changes in wastewater capital assets for 2013 follows: 
 
  Balance       Balance 
  01/01/13  Increases  Decreases   12/31/13 
     
Capital assets being depreciated      


Collecting system $ 8,789,146 $ 307,765 $ 4,338  $ 9,092,573 
Collecting system pumping  397,412  -  -   397,412 
Treatment and disposal  12,914,727  457,599  52,800   13,319,526 
General  1,150,622  5,315  -   1,155,937 


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


 
 23,251,907 


 
 770,679 


 
 57,138  


 
 23,965,448 


     
Less:  Accumulated depreciation  (8,446,186)  (673,593)  57,138   (9,062,641) 
     
Construction in progress  215,757  1,028,549  844,077   400,229 
     


Net Capital Assets $ 15,021,478   $ 15,303,036 
 
A summary of changes in wastewater capital assets for 2012 follows: 
 
  Balance       Balance 
  01/01/12  Increases  Decreases   12/31/12 
     
Capital assets being depreciated      


Collecting system $ 8,277,782 $ 520,682 $ 9,318  $ 8,789,146 
Collecting system pumping  397,412  -  -   397,412 
Treatment and disposal  12,786,069  132,658  4,000   12,914,727 
General  841,480  309,142  -   1,150,622 


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


 
 22,302,743 


 
 962,482 


 
 13,318  


 
 23,251,907 


     
Less:  Accumulated depreciation  (7,816,519)  (642,985)  13,318   (8,446,186) 
     
Construction in progress  361,261  864,542  1,010,046   215,757 
     


Net Capital Assets $ 14,847,485   $ 15,021,478 
     
     
     
     


     
     
     
     







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


Page 52 


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 
 
 Revenue Bonds - Electric 
 
The following bonds have been issued: 
 
      Outstanding  
      Final  Interest  Original   Amount  
 Date   Purpose  Maturity  Rate  Amount   12/31/13  
       
 April 1, 2013  Electric system 


improvements 
 April 1, 2023 2.00 - 2.25 $ 3,170,000  $ 3,170,000  


       
November 
15, 2006  


Electric system 
improvements 


 April 1, 2023 4.00 - 4.50  2,550,000   2,250,000  


 
Revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity follows: 
 


 Year Ending    
December 31  Principal  Interest  Total 
    


2014 $ 480,000 $ 158,375 $ 638,375 
2015  480,000  145,275  625,275 
2016  490,000  131,856  621,856 
2017  500,000  117,488  617,488 
2018  520,000  102,288  622,288 
2019 - 2023  2,950,000  247,619  3,197,619 


    
Totals $ 5,420,000 $ 902,901 $ 6,322,901 


 
All utilities' revenues net of specified operating expenses are pledged as security of the above revenue 
bonds until the bonds are defeased.  Principal and interest paid for 2013 (including amounts refunded) 
and 2012 were $3,880,400 and $653,243, respectively.  Total gross revenues as defined for the same 
periods were $15,439,025 and $15,485,952, respectively.  Annual principal and interest payments are 
expected to require 4.1% of gross revenues. 
 
 Revenue Bonds - Water 
 
The following bonds have been issued: 
 
      Outstanding  
      Final  Interest  Original   Amount  
 Date   Purpose  Maturity  Rate  Amount   12/31/13  
       
November 
15, 2006  


Additions and 
improvements 


 May 1, 2023 4.00 - 4.50  1,925,000   1,575,000  


January 27, 
2010  


Additions and 
improvements 


 May 1, 2029 2.668  575,018   502,213 


 
 
 
 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.) 
 


Page 53 


 Revenue Bonds – Water (cont.) 
 
Revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity follows: 
 


 Year Ending    
December 31  Principal  Interest  Total 
    


2014 $ 150,575 $ 80,277 $ 230,852 
2015  151,257  74,273  225,530 
2016  176,958  67,719  244,677 
2017  177,677  60,428  238,105 
2018  178,415  52,929  231,344 
2019-2023  1,028,860  141,893  1,170,753 
2024-2028  175,510  17,017  192,527 
2029  37,961  506  38,467 


    
Totals $ 2,077,213 $ 495,042 $ 2,572,255 


 
All utilities' revenues net of specified operating expenses are pledged as security of the above revenue 
bonds until the bonds are defeased.  Principal and interest paid for 2013 and 2012 were $272,057 and 
$274,005, respectively.  Total gross revenues as defined for the same periods were $1,733,214 and 
$1,767,596, respectively.  Annual principal and interest payments are expected to require 9.3% of gross 
revenues. 
 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.) 
 


Page 54 


 Revenue Bonds - Wastewater 
 
The following bonds have been issued: 
 
      Outstanding  
      Final  Interest  Original   Amount  
 Date   Purpose  Maturity  Rate  Amount   12/31/13  
       
December 
22, 1999  


Wastewater interceptor  May 1, 2019  3.049  $ 623,465  $ 230,313  


July 12, 
2000  


WWTP improvements  May 1, 2020  3.049   1,116,259   470,602  


September 
10, 2003  


WWTP improvements  May 1, 2023  2.766   1,670,624   954,706  


June 27, 
2007  


WWTP improvements  May 1, 2027  2.475   1,539,762   1,247,834  


 
Revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity follows: 
 


 Year Ending    
December 31  Principal  Interest  Total 
    


2014 $ 256,735 $ 75,084 $ 331,819 
2015  263,891  67,829  331,720 
2016  271,247  60,369  331,616 
2017  278,809  52,700  331,509 
2018  286,584  44,816  331,400 
2019-2023  1,145,106  119,074  1,264,180 
2024-2027  401,083  20,156  421,239 


    
Totals $ 2,903,455 $ 440,028 $ 3,343,483 


 
All utilities' revenues net of specified operating expenses are pledged as security of the above revenue 
bonds until the bonds are defeased.  Principal and interest paid for 2013 and 2012 were $738,326 and 
$738,623, respectively.  Total gross revenues as defined for the same periods were $2,032,962 and 
$2,072,369, respectively.  Annual principal and interest payments are expected to require 11.7% of gross 
revenues. 
 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.) 
 


Page 55 


 Long-Term Obligations Summary - Electric 
 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/13      12/31/13   Due Within 
  Balance  Additions  Reductions  Balance   One Year 
       
Revenue bonds $ 5,905,000 $ 3,170,000 $ 3,655,000 $ 5,420,000  $ 480,000 
Unamortized premium 


on bonds 
 


- 83,431
 
 8,970


  
74,461 


  
-


Accrued sick leave  171,819 42,282  40,397  173,704   - 
Customer advances 


for construction 
 
 8,082  49,389


 
 51,957


 
 5,514  


 
 - 


      
Totals $ 6,084,901 $ 3,345,102 $ 3,756,324 $ 5,673,679  $ 480,000 


 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2012 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/12      12/31/12   Due Within  
  Balance  Additions  Reductions  Balance   One Year  
        
Revenue bonds $ 6,280,000 $ - $ 375,000 $ 5,905,000  $ 400,000  
Accrued sick leave  170,916  34,552  33,649  171,819   -  
Customer advances 


for construction 
 
 9,440 


 
 62,884 


 
 64,242 


 
 8,082  


 
 - 


 


       
Totals $ 6,460,356 $ 97,436 $ 472,891 $ 6,084,901  $ 400,000  


 
 Long-Term Obligations Summary - Water 
 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/13      12/31/13   Due Within 
  Balance  Additions  Reductions  Balance   One Year 
       
Revenue bonds $ 2,262,123 $ - $ 184,910 $ 2,077,213  $ 150,575 
Accrued sick leave  92,446  24,117  21,925  94,638   - 


      
Totals $ 2,354,569 $ 24,117 $ 206,835 $ 2,171,851  $ 150,575 


 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2012 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/12      12/31/12   Due Within  
  Balance  Additions  Reductions  Balance   One Year  
        
Revenue bonds $ 2,441,386 $ - $ 179,263 $ 2,262,123  $ 184,910  
Accrued sick leave  88,632  9,819  6,005  92,446   -  


       
Totals $ 2,530,018 $ 9,819 $ 185,268 $ 2,354,569  $ 184,910  







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.) 
 


Page 56 


 Long-Term Obligations Summary - Wastewater 
 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/13      12/31/13   Due Within 
  Balance  Additions  Reductions  Balance   One Year 
       
Revenue bonds $ 3,553,192 $ - $ 649,737 $ 2,903,455  $ 256,735 
Accrued sick leave  91,717  7,583  7,695  91,605   - 


      
Totals $ 3,644,909 $ 7,583 $ 657,432 $ 2,995,060  $ 256,735 


 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2012 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/12      12/31/12   Due Within  
  Balance  Additions  Reductions  Balance   One Year  
        
Revenue bonds $ 4,183,666 $ - $ 630,474 $ 3,553,192  $ 649,737  
Accrued sick leave  97,782  6,905  12,970  91,717   -  


       
Totals $ 4,281,448 $ 6,905 $ 643,444 $ 3,644,909  $ 649,737  


 
 Current Refunding 
 
On February 15, 2013, bonds in the amount of $3,170,000 were issued with an average interest rate 
of 2.13% to refund $3,580,000 of outstanding 2003 bonds with an average interest rate of 4.81%. The net 
proceeds along with existing debt service funds were used to prepay the outstanding debt service 
requirements on the old bonds. 
 
The cash flow requirements on the old bonds prior to the current refunding was $4,575,205 from April 
2013 through 2023. The cash flow requirements on the new bonds are $3,554,591 from October 2013 
through 2023. The current refunding resulted in an economic gain of $564,120. 
 
 Bond Covenant Disclosures 
 
The following information is provided in compliance with the resolutions creating the utilities' revenue 
bonds: 
 
 Insurance 
 
The utilities are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, or destruction of 
assets, errors and omissions, workers compensation, and health care of its employees. These risks are 
covered through the purchase of commercial insurance, with minimal deductibles. Settled claims have not 
exceeded coverage in any of the last three years. There were no significant reductions in coverage 
compared to the prior year. 
 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.) 
 
 Bond Covenant Disclosures (cont.) 
 
 Insurance (cont.) 
 


Page 57 


The utilities are covered under the following insurance policies at December 31, 2013: 
 


 Type  Coverage   Expiration 
    
Automobile $ 10,000,000 CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/14 
Excess Liability  5,000,000 CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/14 
Workers Compensation  5,000,000 CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/14 
  1,000,000 CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/14 
Boiler Insurance  100,000,000 CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/14 
Property  47,230,211 Wisconsin Local 2/1/14 
  Property Insurance  
  Fund  


 
 Debt Coverage - Electric  
 
Under terms of the resolutions providing for the issue of revenue bonds, revenues less operating 
expenses excluding depreciation (defined net earnings) must exceed 1.3 times the highest annual debt 
service of the bonds.  The coverage only includes revenue debt and does not include general obligation 
or other debt.  The coverage requirement was met in 2013 and 2012 as follows: 
 


  2013  2012   
     
Operating revenues $ 15,379,679 $ 15,385,267   
Investment income  59,346  100,685   
Less:  Operation and maintenance expenses  (13,512,427)  (13,336,299)   
     


Net Defined Earnings $ 1,926,598 $ 2,149,653   
     
Minimum Required Earnings per Resolution:     


Highest annual debt service  $ 649,338 $ 704,728   
Coverage factor  1.30  1.30   


     
Minimum Required Earnings $ 844,139 $ 916,146   


Actual Debt Coverage  2.97  3.05   







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.) 
 
 Bond Covenant Disclosures (cont.) 
 


Page 58 


 Debt Coverage - Water 
 
Under terms of the resolutions providing for the issue of revenue bonds, revenues less operating 
expenses excluding depreciation (defined net earnings) must exceed 1.3 times the highest annual debt 
service of the bonds.  The coverage only includes revenue debt and does not include general obligation 
or other debt.  The coverage requirement was met in 2013 and 2012 as follows: 
 


  2013  2012  
    
Operating revenues $ 1,727,969 $ 1,756,878  
Investment income  5,245  10,718  
Less:  Operation and maintenance expenses  (779,963)  (745,471)  
    


Net Defined Earnings $ 953,251 $ 1,022,125  
    
Minimum Required Earnings per Resolution:    


Highest annual debt service  $ 244,677 $ 272,056  
Coverage factor  1.30  1.30  


    
Minimum Required Earnings $ 318,080 $ 353,673  


Actual Debt Coverage  3.90  3.73  
 
  Debt Coverage - Wastewater 
 
Under terms of the resolutions providing for the issue of revenue bonds, revenues less operating 
expenses excluding depreciation (defined net earnings) must exceed 1.1 times the highest annual debt 
service of the bonds.  The coverage only includes revenue debt and does not include general obligation 
or other debt.  The coverage requirement was in 2013 and 2012 as follows: 
 


  2013  2012  
    
Operating revenues $ 2,029,464 $ 2,062,606  
Investment income  3,498  9,763  
Less:  Operation and maintenance expenses  (877,420)  (877,033)  
    


Net Defined Earnings $ 1,155,542 $ 1,195,336  
    
Minimum Required Earnings per Resolution:    


Highest annual debt service  $ 331,820 $ 738,326  
Coverage factor  1.10  1.10  


    
Minimum Required Earnings $ 365,002 $ 812,158  


Actual Debt Coverage  3.48  1.62  







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.) 
 
 Bond Covenant Disclosures (cont.) 
 


Page 59 


 Number of Customers - Electric 
 
The utility has the following number of customers and billed volumes for 2013 and 2012: 
 


  Customers  Sales (000 kWh) 
  2013  2012  2013   2012 
     
Residential  7,552  7,583  65,629   64,853 
General  852  840  18,500   18,624 
Small power  50  47  15,105   14,359 
Large power  8  8  10,937   11,153 
Industrial  6  6  30,266   30,081 
Street and highway lighting  6  6  976   913 
     


Totals  8,474  8,490  141,413  139,983 
 
 Number of Customers - Water 
 
The utility has the following number of customers and billed volumes for 2013 and 2012: 
 


  Customers  Sales (000 gals) 
  2013  2012  2013   2012 
     
Residential  4,381  4,401  214,740   228,325 
Commercial  413  426  83,772   81,977 
Industrial  25  23  175,414   179,812 
Public authority  43  47  5,864   6,839 
Interdepartmental  2  3  837   1,022 
     


Totals  4,864  4,900  480,627   497,975 
 
 Number of Customers - Wastewater 
 
The utility has the following number of customers and billed volumes for 2013 and 2012: 
 


  Customers  Sales (000 gals) 
  2013  2012  2013   2012 
     
Residential  4,375  4,345  213,095   225,577 
Commercial  399  389  81,512   80,010 
Industrial  21  21  27,101   21,831 
Public authority  32  33  4,193   4,258 
Interdepartmental  1  2  50   45 
     


Totals  4,828  4,790  325,951   331,721 
 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.) 
 
 Bond Covenant Disclosures (cont.) 
 


Page 60 


 Utilities Budget    
 
The 2013 and 2012 utilities' budgets were prepared and approved as required by the bond resolutions.   
   


NOTE 8 - NET POSITION  
 
GASB No. 34 requires the classification of net position into three components - investment in capital 
assets; restricted; and unrestricted.  These classifications are defined as follows: 
 
Net investment in capital assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets, including 
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the 
portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds are not included in the calculation of invested in 
capital assets. Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net position component as the 
unspent proceeds. 
 
Restricted - This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net position use through 
external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions 
or enabling legislation. 
 
Unrestricted  - This component of net position consists of net position that does not meet the definition of 
"restricted" or "invested in capital assets." 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the utilities' policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 8 - NET POSITION (cont.)  
 


Page 61 


The following calculation supports the electric net investment in capital assets: 
 
  2013   2012  
    
Plant in service $ 26,114,254  $ 25,633,251  
Accumulated depreciation  (11,742,374)   (10,854,101)  
Property held for future use 352,664 352,664  
Construction work in progress  1,845   29,095  


Sub-Totals  14,726,389   15,160,909  
    
Less:  Capital related debt    


Current portion of capital related long-term debt  480,000   400,000  
Long-term portion of capital related long-term debt  4,940,000   5,505,000  
Unamortized debt premium  74,461   -  


Sub-Totals  5,494,461   5,905,000  
 
Total Net Investment in Capital Assets 


 
$ 9,231,928  


 
$ 9,255,909 


 


 
The following calculation supports the water net investment in capital assets: 
 
  2013   2012  
    
Plant in service $ 18,100,407  $ 17,687,341  
Accumulated depreciation  (5,578,071)   (5,174,407)  
Construction work in progress  24,194   24,233  


Sub-Totals  12,546,530   12,537,167  
    
Less:  Capital related debt    


Current portion of capital related long-term debt  150,575   184,910  
Long-term portion of capital related long-term debt  1,926,638   2,077,213  
Unamortized debt issuance costs  -   -  


Sub-Totals  2,077,213   2,262,123  
 
Total Net Investment in Capital Assets 


 
$ 10,469,317  


 
$ 10,275,044 


 


 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 8 - NET POSITION (cont.)  
 


Page 62 


The following calculation supports the wastewater net investment in capital assets: 
 
  2013   2012  
    
Plant in service $ 23,965,448  $ 23,251,907  
Accumulated depreciation  (9,062,641)   (8,446,186)  
Construction work in progress  400,229   215,757  


Sub-Totals  15,303,036   15,021,478  
    
Less:  Capital related debt    


Current portion of capital related long-term debt  256,735   649,737  
Long-term portion of capital related long-term debt  2,646,720   2,903,455  


Sub-Totals  2,903,455   3,553,192  
    
Add:  Unspent debt proceeds    


Construction funds  123   123  
 
Total Net Investment in Capital Assets 


 
$ 12,399,704  


 
$ 11,468,409 


 


 


NOTE 9 - EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
 
All eligible employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS), a cost-sharing multiple 
employer defined benefit, public employee retirement system. All employees, initially employed by a 
participating WRS employer prior to July 1, 2011, expected to work at least 600 hours a year and 
expected to be employed for at least one year from employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in 
the WRS. All employees, initially employed by a participating WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and 
expected to work at least 1,200 hours a year and expected to be employed for at least one year from 
employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS. 
 
Prior to June 29, 2011, covered employees in the General category were required by statute to contribute 
6.5% of their salary to the plan. Employers could make these contributions to the plan on behalf of 
employees. Employers were required to contribute an actuarially determined amount necessary to fund 
the remaining projected cost of future benefits. 
 
Effective the first day of the first pay period on or after June 29, 2011 the employee required contribution 
was changed to one-half of the actuarially determined contribution rate for General category employees.  
Employers are required to contribute the remainder of the actuarially determined contribution rate.  The 
employer may not pay the employee required contribution unless provided for by an existing collective 
bargaining agreement.  Contribution rates for 2013 and 2012 are: 
 
     Employees Employer 
 
   2013       6.65%      6.65% 
   2012       5.90%      5.90% 
 
 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 9 - EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.) 


Page 63 


 
Electric 
 


  Year Ended December 31 
  2013  2012  2011 
    
Total Covered Employee Payroll $ 911,661 $ 917,915 $ 985,805 
Total Required Contributions $ 121,251 $ 108,314 $ 126,183 
Total Required Contributions  13.3%   11.8%   12.8%  


 
Water 


  Year Ended December 31 
  2013  2012  2011 
    
Total Covered Employee Payroll $ 260,471 $ 256,822 $ 240,336 
Total Required Contributions $ 34,643 $ 30,305 $ 30,763 
Total Required Contributions  13.3%   11.8%   12.8%  


 
Wastewater 


  Year Ended December 31 
  2013  2012  2011 
    
Total Covered Employee Payroll $ 343,835 $ 324,062 $ 299,570 
Total Required Contributions $ 45,730 $ 38,239 $ 38,345 
Total Required Contributions  13.3%   11.8%   12.8%  


 
Details of the plan are disclosed in the basic financial statements of the City of Stoughton. 
 


NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
 Long-Term Contracts - WPPI Energy 
 
The electric utility is one of 51 WPPI Energy member municipalities located throughout the States of 
Wisconsin, Iowa and Michigan. On December 1, 1989, each initial WPPI Energy member commenced 
purchasing electric service from WPPI Energy under a long-term Power Supply Contract for Participating 
Members (long-term contract). Under the long-term contract, WPPI Energy is obligated to provide and 
sell, and each member is obligated to take and pay for, the electric power and energy required for the 
operation of each member's electric utility.  
 
The long-term contract requires all WPPI Energy members to pay for power and energy requirements 
supplied or made available by WPPI Energy at rates sufficient to cover WPPI Energy's revenue 
requirement including power supply costs, administrative expenses and debt service. WPPI Energy's 
subsequent year's operating budget and rates are approved annually by its Board of Directors, consisting 
of representatives from each member. The members have agreed to charge rates to retail customers 
sufficient to meet their WPPI Energy obligations. The long-term contract provides that all payments to 
WPPI Energy constitute operating expenses of the utility payable from any operating and maintenance 
fund established for that system. 
 
In 2002, all WPPI Energy members ratified a thirteen year extension to their original thirty-five year 
contracts. The new contract expires at midnight on December 31, 2037. 
 
WPPI Energy's outstanding debt service obligation to be paid by its members through their wholesale 
power charges through the remainder of the long-term contract is $487 million as of December 31, 2013. 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 


 


NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (cont.) 


Page 64 


 
 Claims and Judgments 
 
From time to time, the utilities are party to various pending claims and legal proceedings. Although the 
outcome of such matters cannot be forecasted with certainty, it is the opinion of management and the 
utilities' legal counsel that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a 
material adverse effect on the utilities' financial position or results of operations. 
 


NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
 Wisconsin Municipal Insurance Commission (WMIC) 
  Cities and Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC) 
                        
The WMIC is an intergovernmental cooperation commission created by contract under Section 66.30 of 
the Wisconsin Statutes. It was created in August, 1987 for the purpose of facilitating the organization, 
establishment and capitalization of the CVMIC, and has numerous municipalities as members. 
 
The CVMIC is a municipal mutual insurance company established on September 19, 1987 under Section 
611.23 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The CVMIC provides liability insurance coverage to the municipalities 
which make up the membership of the WMIC. 
 
The CVMIC is self-insured up to a maximum of $2,000,000 of each insurance risk. Losses paid by CVMIC 
plus administrative expenses will be recovered through premiums to the participating pool of 
municipalities. The municipality's share of such losses is less than 1%. 
 
Management of each organization consists of a board of directors or officers comprised of 
representatives elected by each of three classes of participants based on population. The municipality 
does not exercise any control over the activities of the agencies beyond the election of the officers and 
board. 
 
Financial statements of WMIC and CVMIC are available directly from:  Cities and Village Mutual 
Insurance Company, 1250 South Sunnyslope Road, Suite 105, Brookfield, WI  53005. 
 
The municipality shows the general obligation bond that it owes to WMIC in the insurance internal service 
fund (governmental activities column of government-wide statement of net position).  The transactions of 
the organization are not included in these financial statements.   
 


NOTE 12 - SELF INSURANCE  
 
The utilities are part of the municipality's self-funded health insurance program with claims processed by 
an administrative firm on behalf of the municipality. A separate fund has been established into which 
deposits are made and actual claims are paid out. As part of the plan, a reinsurance policy has been 
purchased which covers claims in excess of $45,000 per individual up to a maximum of $1,000,000. 
Deposits to the self-insured fund in excess of the claims and other costs paid are retained by the 
municipality. The utilities' total contributions to the program during the years 2013 and 2012 were 
$380,119 and $327,527, respectively. Details of the plan can be found in the basic financial statements of 
the City of Stoughton 







 


 S U P P L E M E N T A L   I N F O R M A T I O N 
 







 


ELECTRIC UTILITY 







Balance Balance
1/1/2013 Additions Retirements 12/31/2013


TRANSMISSION
Land and land rights 1$                 -$            -$            1$                 
Poles and fixtures 5,035            -              -              5,035            
Overhead conductors and devices 9,984            -              -              9,984            


Total Transmission 15,020          -              -              15,020          


DISTRIBUTION
Land and land rights 220,796        -              -              220,796        
Structures and improvements 44,389          -              -              44,389          
Station equipment 4,269,937     6,000          -              4,275,937     
Poles, towers and fixtures 2,951,805     64,229        24,089        2,991,945     
Overhead conductors and devices 5,452,833     289,598      28,446        5,713,985     
Underground conduit 408,947        19,884        -              428,831        
Underground conductors and devices 2,644,596     43,303        1,770          2,686,129     
Line transformers 2,833,228     39,238        939             2,871,527     
Services 1,635,952     51,478        6,286          1,681,144     
Meters 632,258        5,778          -              638,036        
Street lighting and signal systems 508,672        12,109        7,404          513,377        


Total Distribution 21,603,413   531,617      68,934        22,066,096   


GENERAL
Structures and improvements 1,635,949     -              -              1,635,949     
Office furniture and equipment 192,342        18,320        -              210,662        
Computer equipment 178,348        -              -              178,348        
Transportation equipment 288,978        -              -              288,978        
Stores equipment 9,984            -              -              9,984            
Tools, shop and garage equipment 81,791          -              -              81,791          
Laboratory equipment 50,236          -              -              50,236          
Power-operated equipment 1,200,625     -              -              1,200,625     
Communication equipment 92,122          -              -              92,122          
SCADA equipment 279,453        -              -              279,453        
Miscellaneous equipment 4,990            -              -              4,990            


Total General 4,014,818     18,320        -              4,033,138     


TOTAL ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT 25,633,251$ 549,937$   68,934$      26,114,254$


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT
December 31, 2013


Page 65







OPERATING REVENUES 2013 2012
Sales of Electricity


Residential 5,217,505$        5,198,813$       
Rural 2,945,578          2,920,985         
General service 1,631,966          1,682,787         
Large commercial and industrial 1,373,160          1,281,437         
Large power 1,021,094          1,049,188         
Industrial 2,728,523          2,761,836         
Public street and highway lighting 132,993             132,550            
Interdepartmental 182,492             208,217            


Total Sales of Electricity 15,233,311        15,235,813       
Other Operating Revenues


Forfeited discounts 34,864               47,637              
Other 111,504             101,817            


Total Operating Revenues 15,379,679        15,385,267       


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and Maintenance


Other Power Supply
Purchased power 11,899,750        11,889,641       


Transmission  
Operating supervision and engineering 4,487                 6,919                
Station 46,350               35,150              
Overhead lines 76,057               77,054              
Underground lines 35,018               36,577              


Total Transmission 161,912             155,700            
Distribution


Street lighting and signal system 3,534                 6,585                
Meter 36,976               41,578              
Customer installations 174                    27                     
Miscellaneous 45,332               4,560                
Maintenance


Station equipment 15,021               33,627              
Overhead lines 266,969             213,053            
Underground lines 7,961                 10,258              
Line transformers 1,284                 842                   
Street lighting and signal system 140                    537                   
Miscellaneous -                     1,999                


Total Distribution 377,391             313,066            
Customer Accounts


Meter reading 6,808                 8,106                
Accounting and collecting labor 208,736             212,603            
Miscellaneous 19,441               234                   


Total Customer Accounts 234,985             220,943            


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


ELECTRIC UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012


Page 66







STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


ELECTRIC UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012


OPERATING EXPENSES (cont.)
Operation and Maintenance (cont.)


Administrative and General
Salaries 269,473$           214,060$          
Office supplies 32,183               32,621              
Outside services employed 31,058               19,920              
Property insurance 23,211               19,590              
Injuries and damages 16,951               24,421              
Employee pensions and benefits 238,598             221,491            
Miscellaneous 2,523                 13,490              
Rents 11,377               11,013              
Maintenance 42,170               33,025              


Total Administrative and General 667,544             589,631            
Taxes 170,845             167,318            


Total Operation and Maintenance 13,512,427        13,336,299       
Depreciation 918,885             910,353            


Total Operating Expenses 14,431,312        14,246,652       


OPERATING INCOME 948,367$           1,138,615$      


Page 67







2013 2012


Utility Plant in Service
Beginning of year 22,981,902$      22,421,815$         
End of year 23,396,576        22,981,902           


Average 23,189,239        22,701,859           


Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning of year (10,083,729)       (9,353,661)           
End of year (10,874,683)       (10,083,729)         


Average (10,479,206)       (9,718,695)           


Materials and Supplies
Beginning of year 139,181             135,057               
End of year 136,045             139,181               


Average 137,613             137,119               


Regulatory Liability
Beginning of year (243,764)            (265,924)              
End of year (221,604)            (243,764)              


Average (232,684)            (254,844)              


Customer Advances for Construction
Beginning of year (8,082)                (9,440)                  
End of year (5,514)                (8,082)                  


Average (6,798)                (8,761)                  


AVERAGE NET RATE BASE 12,608,164$     12,856,678$        


OPERATING INCOME - REGULATORY BASIS 693,277$          884,783$            


RATE OF RETURN (PERCENT) 5.50                 6.88                    


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


RATE OF RETURN - REGULATORY BASIS
December 31, 2013 and 2012


This schedule is computed based on Public Service Commission of Wisconsin regulatory accounting which
differs from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America due to GASB No. 34 as well as
PSC order 05-US-105, which was effective January 1, 2003 as amended September 8, 2004.


Page 68







 


WATER UTILITY 







Balance Balance
1/1/2013 Additions Retirements 12/31/2013


SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Land and land rights 11,635$             -$            -$            11,635$        
Wells and springs 570,123             -              -              570,123        


Total Source of Supply 581,758             -              -              581,758        


PUMPING
Structures and improvements 598,025             -              -              598,025        
Other power production equipment 246,036             32,696        -              278,732        
Electric pumping equipment 584,896             -              -              584,896        
Other pumping equipment -                     -              -              -                


Total Pumping 1,428,957          32,696        -              1,461,653     


WATER TREATMENT
Structures and improvements 13,671               -              -              13,671          
Water treatment equipment 77,092               -              -              77,092          


Total Water Treatment 90,763               -              -              90,763          


TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION
Land and land rights 13,206               -              -              13,206          
Structures and improvements 1,611                 -              -              1,611            
Distribution reservoirs and standpipes 1,955,850          -              -              1,955,850     
Transmission and distribution mains 8,784,697          250,855      3,384          9,032,168     
Services 1,939,695          84,191        1,572          2,022,314     
Meters 589,847             4,426          -              594,273        
Hydrants 1,114,522          41,602        -              1,156,124     
Other transmission and distribution plant 973                    -              -              973               


Total Transmission and Distribution 14,400,401        381,074      4,956          14,776,519   


GENERAL
Land and land rights 405,290             -              -              405,290        
Office furniture and equipment 56,523               4,252          -              60,775          
Computer equipment 59,925               -              -              59,925          
Transportation equipment 28,026               -              -              28,026          
Stores equipment 2,187                 -              -              2,187            
Tools, shop and garage equipment 35,109               -              -              35,109          
Power-operated equipment 102,034             -              -              102,034        
Communication equipment 37,858               -              -              37,858          
SCADA equipment 458,421             -              -              458,421        
Miscellaneous equipment 89                      -              -              89                 


Total General 1,185,462          4,252          -              1,189,714     


TOTAL WATER UTILITY PLANT 17,687,341$     418,022$   4,956$        18,100,407$


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


WATER UTILITY PLANT
December 31, 2013


Page 69







2013 2012
OPERATING REVENUES


Sales of Water
Metered


Residential 797,026$           816,587$          
Commercial 190,799             193,863            
Industrial 250,544             255,137            
Public authorities 17,672               19,222              
Interdepartmental 2,195                 2,485                


Total Metered Sales 1,258,236          1,287,294         
Private fire protection 26,318               25,422              
Public fire protection 423,129             420,871            


Total Sales of Water 1,707,683          1,733,587         
Other Operating Revenues


Forfeited discounts 4,741                 5,341                
Other 15,545               17,950              


Total Operating Revenues 1,727,969          1,756,878         


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and Maintenance


Operation labor -                     -                    
Maintenance


Wells and springs 3,191                 -                    
Total Source of Supply 3,191                 -                    


Pumping
Fuel or purchased power for pumping 116,965             121,645            
Pumping labor 7,137                 2,878                
Miscellaneous 455                    249                   
Maintenance


Structures and improvements 4,762                 3,185                
Pumping equipment 5,469                 9,552                


Total Pumping 134,788             137,509            
Water Treatment


Chemicals 11,869               18,349              
Operation labor 24,449               12,663              
Maintenance


Structures and improvements 875                    1,700                
Water treatment equipment 3,654                 3,640                


Total Water Treatment 40,847               36,352              


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


WATER UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012


Page 70







STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


WATER UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012


OPERATING EXPENSES (cont.)
Operation and Maintenance (cont.)


Transmission and Distribution
Transmission and distribution lines 11,694$             17,387$            
Meters 22,885               11,503              
Miscellaneous 59,315               7,385                
Maintenance


Reservoirs and standpipes 54,415               87,838              
Mains 39,533               36,055              
Services 17,676               26,422              
Meters -                     -                    
Hydrants 11,986               7,479                
Miscellaneous 591                    2,097                


Total Transmission and Distribution 218,095             196,166            
Customer Accounts


Meter reading 2,097                 2,442                
Accounting and collecting labor 75,969               76,337              


Total Customer Accounts 78,066               78,779              
Administrative and General


Salaries 152,946             154,387            
Office supplies 7,500                 10,745              
Outside services employed 24,169               4,783                
Property insurance 8,440                 7,123                
Injuries and damages 7,797                 8,930                
Employee pensions and benefits 80,708               89,521              
Regulatory commission -                     -                    
Rents 4,195                 4,005                
Maintenance 4,639                 3,238                


Total Administrative and General 290,394             282,732            
Taxes 14,583               13,933              


Total Operation and Maintenance 779,963             745,471            
Depreciation 381,278             364,679            


Total Operating Expenses 1,161,241          1,110,150         


OPERATING INCOME 566,728$          646,728$         


Page 71







2013 2012


Utility Plant in Service
Beginning of year 11,571,887$      10,791,839$     
End of year 11,984,953        11,571,887       


Average 11,778,420        11,181,863       


Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning of year (3,605,921)         (3,319,808)        
End of year (3,906,376)         (3,605,921)        


Average (3,756,149)         (3,462,865)        


Materials and Supplies
Beginning of year 35,244               23,257              
End of year 36,627               35,244              


Average 35,936               29,251              


Regulatory Liability
Beginning of year (376,512)            (410,740)           
End of year (342,284)            (376,512)           


Average (359,398)            (393,626)           


AVERAGE NET RATE BASE 7,698,809$       7,354,623$      


OPERATING INCOME - REGULATORY BASIS 277,025$          407,777$         


RATE OF RETURN (PERCENT) 3.60                  5.54                 


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


RATE OF RETURN - REGULATORY BASIS
December 31, 2013 and 2012


This schedule is computed based on Public Service Commission of Wisconsin regulatory accounting which
differs from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America due to GASB No. 34 as well
as PSC order 05-US-105, which was effective January 1, 2003 as amended September 8, 2004.


Page 72







 


WASTEWATER UTILITY 







Balance Balance
1/1/2013 Additions Retirements 12/31/2013


COLLECTING SYSTEM
Land and land rights 100$             -$         -$            100$             
Collecting mains 6,876,011     307,765   4,338          7,179,438     
Interceptor mains 1,864,084     -           -              1,864,084     
Force mains 48,951          -           -              48,951          


Total Collecting System 8,789,146     307,765   4,338          9,092,573     


COLLECTING SYSTEM PUMPING
Structures and improvements 67,382          -           -              67,382          
Electric pumping equipment 308,631        -           -              308,631        
Other pumping equipment 21,399          -           -              21,399          


Total Collecting System Pumping 397,412        -           -              397,412        


TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL
Structures and improvements 3,369,224     -           -              3,369,224     
Preliminary treatment equipment 1,259,171     336,195   52,800        1,542,566     
Primary treatment equipment 1,147,165     -           -              1,147,165     
Secondary treatment equipment 529,291        -           -              529,291        
Advanced treatment equipment 1,930,493     -           -              1,930,493     
Chlorination equipment 366,162        -           -              366,162        
Sludge treatment and disposal equipment 3,563,739     121,404   -              3,685,143     
Plant site pumping 685,498        -           -              685,498        
Flow metering and monitoring equipment 25,166          -           -              25,166          
Other treatment and disposal equipment 38,818          -           -              38,818          


Total Treatment and Disposal 12,914,727   457,599   52,800        13,319,526   


GENERAL
Structures and improvements 232,233        -           -              232,233        
Office furniture and equipment 56,773          5,315       -              62,088          
Computer equipment 110,021        -           -              110,021        
Transportation equipment 409,462        -           -              409,462        
Communication equipment 309,620        -           -              309,620        
Other general equipment 32,513          -           -              32,513          


Total General 1,150,622     5,315       -              1,155,937     


TOTAL WASTEWATER UTILITY PLANT 23,251,907$ 770,679$ 57,138$      23,965,448$


STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


WASTEWATER UTILITY PLANT
December 31, 2013


Page 73







2013 2012
OPERATING REVENUES


Wastewater Revenues
Residential 1,388,955$        1,449,168$       
Commercial 444,731             441,335            
Industrial 138,306             112,101            
Public authorities 25,519               25,855              
Interdepartmental 470                    445                   


Total Wastewater Revenues 1,997,981          2,028,904         
Other Operating Revenues


Forfeited discounts 4,535                 5,345                
Miscellaneous 26,948               28,357              


Total Operating Revenues 2,029,464          2,062,606         


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and Maintenance


Operation
Supervision and labor 61                      1,431                
Power and fuel for pumping 101,446             96,572              
Sludge conditioning chemicals 7,761                 14,188              
Other operating supplies 840                    -                    


Total Operation 110,108             112,191            
Maintenance


Collection system 73,666               52,593              
Treatment and disposal plant equipment 121,426             149,860            
General plant structures and equipment 86,443               71,430              


Total Maintenance 281,535             273,883            
Customer Accounts


Accounting and collecting 110,777             133,485            
Administrative and General


Salaries 92,201               87,050              
Office supplies 21,065               13,066              
Outside services employed 11,265               48,957              
Insurance 19,112               18,394              
Employee pensions and benefits 124,135             88,391              
Miscellaneous 24,908               20,846              
Rents 57,768               57,660              


Total Administrative and General 350,454             334,364            
Taxes 24,546               23,110              


Total Operation and Maintenance 877,420             877,033            
Depreciation 673,593             630,188            


Total Operating Expenses 1,551,013          1,507,221         


OPERATING INCOME 478,451$           555,385$         


STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


WASTEWATER UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012


Page 74





